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WE LdVE DULLT alll LIIIDLCSSIVE
tradition of performance

and Success.

We have opportunities in virtually every area of the,

Company to continue this tradition.

We are working to extend ounr geographic veach through acquisitions and growth in

new markets, expand our business through addiz‘iom‘ to our prodict and service lines

and enhance onr operations through improved business methods.

M UGl Corporation
W S&P 500 Index
M S&P Utilities Index

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative
Total Shareholder Return Between
UGI Corporation, S&P 500 Index and
S&P Utilities Index

UGH's stock has significantly
cutperformed the S&P 500 and the
S&P Utilities indexes aver the
past five years. In 2001, if you had

$363

invested $10¢0 in UGH Corporation | $140
INYSE: UGI) shares, as of L]
September 30, 2006, it would he s
worth $325, which represents $100 | so0 ‘
an average annual return of more \/’/
than 26%. I Ste i

\
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UGI Corporation Propane Gas and Electric
UG Corporation {NYSE: UGH is a distributor and Whalty owned UG Utilities, Inc. distributes natural

UGl Corporation owns 44% of AmeriGas P ‘mners, LP.
(NYSE: APU), the largest retail marketer of propane
in the U.5. AmeriGas Partners, L.P. serves 1.3 million
custemers from approximately 600 distribl‘ltion toca-
tions in 46 states. UGI Corparation is also a retait

marketer of energy products and services, including
propane, butane, natural gas and electricity. We
have paid dividends for 122 consecutive years and
have increased our dividend each year for the past
19 years, UGl is a balanced growth and income marketer of propane and butane in Austria, France
and Switzetland through its international subsidiar-

ies, Antargaz and Flaga. Through joint ven‘tures, we

investment with a compound total return to

shareholders of 26.6% per year over the past five
years. alse serve the Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland,
Romania, Slovakia and the People's Repub‘lic of
For more infermation about UGH Corporation and its China. In 2006, international operations sold nearly

haidiane MWW UdICorp. com 488 million gaitpns gf propane and butape

gas and electricity to approximately 535,000 custom-
ers in eastern Pennsylvania. UG! Energy Services,
Inc. markets natural gas and electricity under the
trade names GASMARK® and POWERMARK® to more
than 16,000 commercial and industrial customers in
eight states. We also own a variety of assets that
support the storage, transportation and delivery

of natural gas products. Threugh a subsidiary, we
own electric generation assets in Pennsylvania.
Heating, air conditioning, refrigeration and electrical

o pravided pn a regional ba
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Year Ended September 30, 2006 2005 2004
Iincome Statement Data {millions, except per share data) |
Revenues $5,221.0 $4,888.7 .+ $3,784.7
Operating income $ 4677 $ 503.0 $ 3313
Net income . $ 176.2 3 1875 $ 1B
Earnings per common share {diluted) $ 165 $ 177 , $ 115
Common Stock Data " |
Shares outstanding {millions) 105.5 194.8 102.4
Return on average common equity 16.8% 20.5% 16.7%
Book value per common share $ 1042 $ 048 $ 8.5
Dividend rate per common share $ 0.705 $ ole75 $ 0.625
Market price of common stock
High $ 28.64 $ 29.98 $ 18.68
Low $ 2021 % 18.45 $ 14,43
Close $ 24.45 $ 28.15 $ 18.63
Business Segment Data (millions of dollars)
Net income ({loss) I
AmeriGas Propane $ 251 $ 176 $ 294
International Propane 671 99.4 13.3
Gas Utility 38.1 39.3 379
Electric Utility 10.5 1.5 1o
Energy Services 31.3 S 217 18.2
Corporate & QOther 4.1 (2.0} 1.8
$ 176.2 $ 1875 $ M6
2006 Neot Income by
Business Segment
38% - international Propane Con’tents
22% - Gas Utility 1 Fina:ncia'l Highlights
18% - Energy Services 2 Letter to Our Shareholders
14% - AmeriGas Propane 4 Business Review
o . - 13 Financial Review
sf Electric Utility 30 Repclm of Management
2% - Corporate & Other 3 Rep%:rt of Independent Registered

Public Accounting Firm .
32 Consolidated Financial Statements
64 Shareholder Information
65 Dire}:tors and Officers
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For manly years, we have attributed UGI’s
success lt_ca our intense focus on what
really co|unts: driving long-term perfor-
mance by seizing market opportunities
and maintaining our focus on execution.
During fiscal year 2006, this unwaver-

ing focus resulted in our identification of
several significant opportunities to expand
our businesses. At the same time, we
undertock efforts to enhance ouf ability to
serve ouir existing customers and extend
our reach to new customers by offering
innovati\:.fe products and services.

In most cases, the opportunities we
seized have translated into better short-
term, as well as long-term, financial per-
fermance. Thus, we have become accus-
tomed to reporting increases in both net |
income and earnings per share in our an-
nual Iettz'ar. As we entered fiscal year 20086,
however, we advised you that we did not
expect our earnings to increase due to
unusually strong earnings from our French
business in the prior year. While our
advice proved to be reliable, in fiscal year
2006 we were able to overcome the unan-
ticipated dual challenges of significantly
warmer-than-normal winter weather and
an unprecedented rise in energy prices. As
a result, we achieved our second-best-gver
level of earnings. At the same time, we
kept our word and raised our dividend by
mare than 4%, the nineteenth consecutive

annual increase.
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- As we were writing last year'é letter,

the price of our common stock had fallen

from the record level in effect atthe end

of fiscal year 2005. Yet, as fiscal year 2006

progressed, our stock price recovered

in response 10 the progress we made.

Thus, while total return to shareholders

fell 10.5% during fiscal year 2006, nearly

thét entire decline occurred in the pericd

September 30, 2005 through December 31,

2005. Since January 1, 2008, total return

to shareholders has increased nearly 40%.

Similarly, the total return to sharehold- ;

ers we delivered over the last eight years

tracks our superior long-term financial
performance: over the eight-year period
ended September 30, 2006, our earnings
per share grew at a compounded annual
rate of 19_.0%, while compounded an-

nual total return to shareholders grew by

21.1%.This return compares very favorably

with Standard & Poor’s Utility Index, which
had a return of 4.7% over this period.

In 2006, we were once again recognized
for our sustained superior performance:

* Forbes named UGI to their Platinum
400 list of best-managed companies in
America;

* Public Uriiitfeé Fortnightly again placed
UGI on its list of “400 Best Energy

Companies”;
.

Barron's Dow Jones Business and
Financial Weekly again ranked UGI
among its 500 top-performing large

companies;

r tradition of success bec c1se
7?f/az‘zmz we. Have bm/_

!

* Platt’s named UGI one of the “Top 250
Global Energy Companies"}

» J.D. Power and Associates r_ankea UGl
Utilities, Inc. “Highest in Customer
Satisfaction with Natural Gas Service in
the Eastern U.S., FourYears in a Row”
We are confident we will continue our

tradition of success because of the strong

foundation we've built over many years.

We have clear strategies for each of our

businesses, strengths in the core com-

petencies critical i}our industry and an
corganizational structure that enables us to
leverage our strengths and achieve

our goals.

This combination of strategy, strength
and structure enables us to capitalize on
opportunities, and we did so |last year. We
took two major steps to expand our busi-
nesses and position ourselves for future
growth. The first was the acqufsition of PG
Energy, now known as UGI Penn Natural
Gas, a natural gas distribution utility serv-
ing northeastern Pennsylvania. The second
step reflects our international reach: the
formation of a joint venture with Progas
to distribute LP Gas in Eastern Europe.
These two transactions reflect our view
that successful companies in the energy
distribution business are those that can
operate efficiently and create value in both
regulated and competitive markets.

The merger of UG| Penn Natural Gas

with our existing UGI natural gas utility
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allows us to combine two companies with

long hisltories of reliably providing natural
gas at c'ompetiti\}e rates. Each company is
also known for |t5 outstanding customer
service.We beheve providing competitive
rates arid excellent customer service are
essent1e|al elements in our commitment to
enhanc.le the core of our businesses.

The second major step, the formation
of our jJ)int venture to distribute LP Gas
in Eastern Eurape, is equally important to
our Iongj-term success. The union of these
businesses enhances their strengths by
enabling broader access to high-growth
marketsl, while at the same time provid-
ing opp!onunities to extend their product
Iines.Tl':le expansion of our businesses in
these and other global markets promises
great pﬁpoﬂunity. While there are near-
term chlallenges in some of these markets
that limit initial returns, we need to make
strategic investments in these developing
market§ today to capture the growth op-

1
portuni?ies of tomorrow.
]
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Perhaps the most promising long-term
investment we make, however, is the
investment in our people. We constantly
remind ourselves that the most important
thing we can do for employees is to build
a healthy, vibrant company that treats.
people with respect and creates opportu-
nities for them. Thus, we remain commit-
ted to creating & true meritocracy in which
our employees have the tools and sﬁpport
they need to satisfy our customers and
develop their careers. Qur concern for our
employees has also led us to elevate safe-
ty awareness to a higher level through-
out the entire organizétion. A successful
company provides its people with a safe
environment, competitive compensation
and rewarding career paths.

UGI has been — and will continue to
be - a good carporate citizen. Our success
allows us to give back to the communi-
ties we serve. Community involvement is
vitally important and gratifying to all of us,
and our commitment is deep, broad and

multifaceted. We are confident that all of

Lon R. Greenberg
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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LonR. Greenbém and John L Watsh

|
. our employees feel a strong sense of

pride through these eﬁorts.

Our success would ;not have been
possible without tremendous dedication
and talent at every iev‘el. In particular,
we want to thank Tony Mendicino, UGI's
C‘hief Financial Of‘ficer!' who will retire in
the spring of 2007, for his vision, leader-
shlp and wisdom. It has been an honor
tc‘: partner with him as our Company
has grown and prospered over the last
ten years.The experie::'sce has been
especially rewarding t'o us as we have
benefited fromTony’s openness, honesty
and sense of humor. '

We also want to theka our Board for
their active involveme‘nt in our Com-
pany. We could not have achieved the
success we have withbut them.

| Our team will remain unrelenting and
uncompror;nising in ot;nr drive to deliver
on our promises. We are confident

tLat we will accomplis!h our goeals and
tr:1ereby continue to ee;arn your Support in

the future. “

John L. Waish ;
Premdent and Chief Operatlng Officer

December 5, 2006




Domestic Propane

We strive to continually enhance our service by being the
most reliable, safest and most responsive propane company,

Propane is an environmentally superior fuel that is used mainly in suburban and rural areas where

natural gas is not available. in the home it is used for space heating, water heating, clothes drying
and cooking, It also has many cemmercial, industrial and agriculiural a

pplicx’nions, including use as
an engine fuel for torklifts and over-the-road vehicles, '
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Domestic Propane

Since 1959, when AmeriGas began as a
three-location propane distributorship, we
have focused on growing the business.
Five decades later, we are expanding our
customer base through effective sales and
marketing efforts, by acquiring other pro-
pane marketers, by developing strategic ac-
count relationships with large regional and
national propane users and by growing our
cylinder exchange business.

Growth Strategies Extend Reach
and Expand Customer Offerings

Core Residential Market Growth. We con-
tinually leverage our reputation as a reli-
able, safe and responsive propane delivery
company to grow our residential customer
base. We encourage every field employee
to grow the business and we reward them
with a bonus as part of our incentive
pregram. .
Acquisitions Add Gallons. To extend our
national footprint, we seek quality propane
businesses to add 1o the AmeriGas family.
In 20086, we welcamed new employees and
customers in California and Georgia.
Strategic Accounts Group Adds 1,300
Locations. As the nation’s largest propane
supplier, we are well positioned to serve
multi-location regional and national cus-
tomers. In 2006, we grew our strategic ac-
counts volume by more than 5% and added
more than 1,300 customer locations.
Volume Increases 13% in Grili Cylinder
Exchange Business. We have approximate-
ly 22,000 distribution points for Ameri-
Gas cylinders, primarily at home stores,
convenience stores and supermarkets. In
2006, we re-branded our pre-filled cylinder

To enhance service to

our AmeriGas Cylinder
Exchange partners and
customers, wo installed
credit-card-activated
vending machines that
allow canveniant, 24-hour
accesstoa ﬁ!lnd tank.

i
exchange business from PPX® to Ameri-
Gas Cylinder Exchange to better leverage
the AmeriGas brand.

AmeriGas’ Value Proposutmn
Focuses on Enhancmg Sarvice

We believe customer on‘alty is based on
offering the best value. AmeriGas’ value
proposition is to be'the r+1ost reliable,
safest and most responsive propane
company. We have é:reatt‘ad a customer
service index to measure and reward our
employees for their. perférmance relative
to these values,

Reliabie. Customer loyalty is main-
tained by reliably delivering fuel and by
providing quality service through our
team of dedicated service technicians. In
2006, we received a "ver'y satisfied” rating
from 95% of customers s'urveyed who had
received a service call from AmeriGas.

Safe. Outstandinig saflety performance
has been a pricrity for many years. We
continually make improvements and
invest in state-of-the-art equipment and
training programs to ens:ure the safety of
AmeriGas personnel and our customers.
Our highly trained safetyi specialists are
available to address custpmer concerns
through our nationwide 24 hour Emergen-
cy Call Center. As a result of our combined
safety efforts, we reduce(‘i vehicle inci-
dents and emploveel injquies by more than
20% this year.

Responsive. In response to escalating
energy prices in recent years, we devel-
oped and enhanced seve:ral guaranteed
price programs that helped insulate
customers from product price volatility.
These programs allow customers to pre-
buy gas or to lock in thr;*lrI product cost for
a set period of time.'In 2006 we enrolled
an additional 13,000 custlomers into these
programs.

Our extensive efforts to ensure reliabil-
ity, safety and respons:veness have pald
off with increased custonluer satisfaction
and loyalty. In 2008, our (IJveraiI customer
satisfaction rating was an impressive 96%.

AmeriGas has approxi-
mately 600 distribution
locations in 46 states.
Our extensive geograph-
ic network puts us in 2
position to sarve 95% of
the U.S. populstion.
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International Propane

In 2008, our internaticnal propane division
achieved growth in a number of areas. We
extended our international propane pres-
ence to three new high-growth European
markets. We also expanded our product
offerings in France and Austria and an-
hanced our marketing effectiveness with
a new call center in Austria. We currently
have significant operations in eight Euro-
pean countrigs that diversify our weather
risk and support our growth and income
objectives.

Flaga Extends Geographic Reach
Through Joint Venture with Progas

Our Austrian-based Flaga operation
formed a joint venture with German-based
Progas that created a growth platform for
the retail distribution of liquefied petro-
leum gas {LPG} in Central and Eastern
Europe. Through the joint venture, Flaga
now distributes retail LPG in the Czech
Republic, Hungary, Poland, Romania and
Slovakia under the existing trade names
of Flaga and Progas. This new footprint
gives Flaga the opportunity to expand
with the growing energy demands in the
developing economies of these countries.
Concurrently with the formation of the
jeint venture, Flaga purchased the LPG
distribution business of Progas in Aus-
tria, thereby expanding our presence in
Austria. In 2006, Flaga-affiliated opera-
tions distributed approximately 65 million
gallons of LPG.

Flaga, the market leader in Austria,
soon will expand its product offerings and

provide customers with comprehensive
and targeted energy solutions. Flaga Aus-

|
Antargaz is a leading
distributar {)f LPG in
Francej In ZINE Antargaz
expanded its business by
’ imrnducing'a new cook-

ing cylinde}, and extended °

its geurplhic reach by
gaining cunliractsto in-
stall piped gas networks

to supply 26 small towns.

|

1
tria also enhanced its services by estab-
lishing a customer relationship manage-
ment system that infcludcias a customer call
center. The customer u:.aIIL center doubles
as a telemarketing \Ifehic!e forincreasing
sales and improving customer retention,

i
Antargaz Expands Product Line
with New Composite Cylinder

Antargaz is one of the Iegding distribu-
tors of LPG in France, with a market share
of approximately 24%. irL 2006, Antargaz
introduced an innovative, exchangeable
cylinder made of a Ilightweight composite
material that we believe is safer and more
convenient than other cylinders currently
on the market. Branded {Calypso,” these
cylinders are distribluted at 1,000 retail

outlets and are used primarily for in-home -

cooking and in small space heating ap-
plications. '

Antargaz contimjes to extend piped
networks supplying LPG|to small towns
that are beyond the’ natu‘ra! gas distribu-
tion grid. In 2006, Antargaz contracted to
install piped LPG networks in 26 smalil
towns in western France’. Piped LPG net-
works are a cost-effective, convenient and
environmentally sound alternative energy
solution for commulnities that traditionally
rely on wood or coa'l.

|
Nantong Hua@lyangl LPG Processing Co.
Positioned for Gr«;)wth in the People's
Republic of China
We are a co-owner (f)f a retail propane dis-
tribution combany in the Nantong region
of China. Our economic presence in China
positions us to takeiadva‘ntage of future
expansion opportunities|in the growing
Chinese energy market.

[

|
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International :
Propane Operations

[] Antargaz
O Flaga

t
[ Central Europe
Joint Venture |
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Gas and Electric Service

UGI Penn Natural Gas Extends
Geographic Reach of UGl Gas Service
We seized a major opportunity to extend
our natural gas service in 2006 by ac-
quiring the assets of PG Energy for $580
million. These operations, now known as
UGI Penn Natural Gas, are contiguous to
our existing natural gas service area in
northeastern Pennsylvania. These opera-
tions overlap our existing electric utility,
so many of their customers already know
UG! and our fang-standing commitment
to customer service. UGl Penn Natural
Gas expanded our natural gas customer
base by 50%, for a total of approximately
473,000 customers. We will enhance our
ability to supply safe and reliable gas
service by employing the best practices of
each organization. We will reap the ben-
efits of joining two organizations that have
a tradition of high customer satisfaction
and a demonstrated commitment to the
communities served.

Gas Utility Receives Highest
Satisfaction Ranking

for 4th Consecutive Year

In 2006, UGI Gas Service was again ranked
“Highest in Customer Satisfaction with
Natural Gas Service in the Eastern United
States;” according to J.D. Power and Asso-
ciates.* UGl is the only natural gas utility
in the country to receive this prestigious
award four years in a row. This recogni-
tion is the direct result of the commitment
of our employees to provide exceptional
service to our customers every single day.

Our Gas Lhility has been
proactive in meking capital
investmants to extend gas
main into developing commu-
nities. We work cooperatively
~ with builders to gain a high
percentage :nf new homes.
Our market share in new
residential developments
exceads 99% where natural
gas is available.

UG] Utility Operations
0O UGI Gaz Division

[J UGl Electric Division
[ UGI Penn Natural Gas

o

Gas and Electric Ser\nces Invest in
Technology to Enhanca Service,
Effectiveness and Growth
We continue to |r|vest in automated meter-
reading equipment that enhances cus-
tomer service, improves b}lllng accuracy
and reduces cost! Qur mll.jlti—year invest-
ment in a field-level asset management
system allows fleld employees to access
digital maps and charts dlrectly from
our service trucks?.The m:amtenance and
upgrade to our gas distribution network
now can be done on a relal-time basis in
the field, which reduces trave! time and

s time on site to complete facilities design.
In 2006, we lowered the cost to extend our
gas service to over 8,000 new customers
by continually in\lresting in technology and
by effectively working with residential
and commercial develoders on projects
throughout our service area.

Electric Utility Expands Substation
and Extends Commodltv Pricing
Settlement

Acting on ourplan for thle future, UGI
Electric Service completed a $4 million

. 1
expansion and renovatloln of our Moun-
tain Substation, which inlcreased by 33%

the capacity of our main ltransmission
feed into our service are?.The installation
of a third high-voltage trelmsformer will

enhance the relial:ility of| our distribution
system and positlen us to support future
system growth.

Beginning January 1, 2007 we will
extend a three-year prlce cap agreement
that includes customers who choose to
purchase commodity ele‘ctricity from UGI.
The agreement will allomr us to recover,
through customer rates, increases in elec-
tric commodity prices and simultaneously
will provide a {evel of rate certainty for our
customers.

*J.D. Power and Associates 2003 2006 Gas Utility
Residential Customer § atnsfam-on Studiess™. 2006 study
based on responses from 12, 369_reS|dem|a! natural gas
customers, who were surveyed April - June 2006. In the
Eastern U.S., 16 utititiek were ranked in the study.
www.jdpower.com
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Related Energy Services

Energy Services '

Increases Earnings by 37%

UGI Energy Services is a full-gervice, re-
gional energy distributor that sells natural
gas, electricit\i/. fuel oil and propane to
more than 10,000 commercial and indus-
trial customers on 31 utility évstems in
eight states. Energy commodity prices can
be volatile, as evidenced when natural gas
prices first soared after Hurricanes Katrina
and Rita damaged parts of the Gulf Coast
production capacity and then fell sharply
due to a8 mild winter. We responded to this
volatility by expanding the opportunity for
our customers to purchase all or a portion
of their energy requirementsith rough

a number of fixed price plans. We then
contract for gas supplies at fixed costs and
eliminate price volatility. We now target
smaller commercial customers, many of
whom will be first-time transbortation cus-
tomers, with fixed price alternatives previ-
ously available only to large end users.
Peak Gas Supply Assets

Provide Value-Added Services

In 2008, we expanded.the capacity of our
propanefair mixing and liquefied natu-

ral gas (LNG) plants in Pennsylvania to
meet gas supply needs on peak usage
winter days. Our three propane/air mix-
ing plants capitalize on the similarity and
interchangeability of propane and natural
gas to economically meet peak winter gas
demands. These economies are accom-
plished by blending a propane/air mixture
with natural gas at a fraction of the cost of
contracting for conventional pipeline ser-
vice for just the peak days. Similarly, we
expanded the capacity of our LNG peaking

Qur HVAC h:usinass cantin-
ues to grow and handles
residential jand specialized
commercial work. We have
developed a particular niche
in serving the healthcare and
pharmaceutical industries.
This therapy pool is just one
room in a nzlainr healthcare

facility with ‘operating suites,

medical oﬂ‘ices and a fitness
center. ’

facility, where we super-cool and liquefy
natural gas and store reserves for periods
of peak demand. In 2007,‘ we plan to ex-
pand these facilities. In 20086, we expanded
the rail loading facilities at our Atlantic En-
ergy propane storage ang import terminal
in Chesapeake, Virginia. ?y expanding the
rail capability of this strategically located
facility, we extended its market reach and
increased its throughput? capacity by 10%.

Electric Generation
Seeking to Expand

We own 150 megawatts of base load, coal-
fired generation in Pennsylvania. We sell
our electric power through a combination
of fixed and spot price sales to wholesale
and retail customers. We will examine
future opportunities to expand our gen-
eration capacity within our Mid-Atlantic
footprint through acquisitions, develop-
ment projects or the potential repowering
of existing plants.

HVAC Business Continues to
Extend Service Area and
Expand Service Offerings

Qur heating, ventilating and air condition-
ing {HVAC) business exqerienced double-
digit revenue growth in ?006 and currently
serves motre than 100,0q0 residential,
commercial and industrial customers,
primarily in southeasterr‘w Pennsylvania.
Through the acquisition ‘of select busi-
nesses, we have expanded our range of
complementary services‘ beyond HVAC to
inciude refrigeration, p!qmbing and elec-
tric services for residenti‘al, commercial

Enerpy Services, Inc.
our enargy marketing
business, serves

more than 10,000 com-
mercial and indus?ria!
customers on 31 gas
utility systems in eight
states,
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Energy Services -~

s
Our HVAC business| has bem expmfzc/mg into

complementary J€1”Z/ZU|95. %

P
Dutstanding customer service underscores all of our efforts

I4 - -
across each of our business units.

|'ServiceMark™

and industrial customers. Combined with
ocur engineering and design capabilities,
these new businesses enable us to'pursue
large-scale and specialized commercial
work. We have developed a particular
niche in serving the healthcare and phar-
maceutical industries, and our multi-mil-
lion-dollar projects range from healthcare
facilities in our local area to specialized
environmental rooms for a pharmaceutical
client in Puerto Rico.

_ ; [ﬁm"rm@ o COOLING o PLU]IN@]

Colhtinuing aTradition

UGI' Corpora;ion has a 124-year history of
performance and success in the energy
busmess Going forward, we will con-
tinue to use our strong operational skills
to el_xtend our presence intc new mar

kets around the world, which will further
dwersufy our weather risk and open new
growth opportunities, We intend to expand
our|business through the use of innova-
tivel.products and creative service optidns.
And we will always seek to enhance the
way we do business by implementing
bett:er operating approaches that serve our
customers and our shareholders. We look
forward to continued success.

\
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Financial Review
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Busmess Overvrew

uaGl Corporatlon 5 UGI Vis a holdlng company that d|str|butes and
rnarkets|energy products and related services through subsidiaries
and joint-venture affiliates. We are a domestic and international dis-
tributor of propane and butane (which are liquefied petroleumn gases
("LPG "): a provider of natural gas and electric service through regu-

lated local distribution utilities; a generator of electricity through our

] ownersh:p of electrrc generation.assets and ownershrp interests- m s

electrlc generatlon facilities; a regronal marketer of energy com- .
rmodmes and a provrder of heatrng and cooling serwces

A We conduct. a inational propane dlstnbutron busrness through '

‘ArnenGas Partners L.P ("AmeriGas Partners”) and |ts pr|nC|pa|
,operatlng subsrdlarles AmeriGas Propane, L.P (“AmenGas } :
'OLP; ) and AmerlGas Eagle Propane LP ("Eagle OLP") At.
September 30, 2006 UG, through its’ wholly owned second- :
itier suberdrary An;rerlGas|Propane Inc. {the * General Partner")
held an ‘approxrmate 449;0 ef'fectrve |nterest in AmerllGas
IPartners We refer to ArlnienGas Partnersrand its subsidiaries \
rtogethelr as.the f’artnerismp and the General Partner and |ts
:subs!|d|alr|es rnclu’d:ng the Partnershrp, as "AmeriGas Propane’j
Our wholly owned subsrdrary UGI Enterpr:ses Ino
i Enterpnses ) (1) conducts an LPG drstnbutron business in
lFranoe (2) conducts LPthlstrrbutlon busrnesses and participates
Jinan LPG joint- venture b'usmess in. central and eastern Europe
(collectrvely, "Flaga”}; and {3, partrcrpates in an LPG Jomt venture
business in the Nantong region of China. Our LPG distribution
business in France is conducted through Antargaz, an operating
subsidiary of AGZ Holding ("AGZ"), and its operating subsidiaries
(collectwely, “Antargaz”). We refer to our foreign operations col- .
lectwely as “International Propane During Fiscal 2006, we

formed a Dutch private limited liability company, UGI Internatlonall

Holdrngs B.V., to hold our interests in Antargaz and Flaga.

Our natural gas and electric distribution utility businesses are
conducted through UGI Utilities, Inc. and its subsidiary, UGI Penn
Natural Gas, Inc. {("UGIPNG"). On August 24, 2006, UGI Utilities,
Inc., through UGIPNG, acquired the natural gas utility business of
PG Energy, an operating division of Southern Union Company
{"PG Energy Acquisition”). See Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for a more detailed discussion. The term
"UGI Utilities” is used sometimes as an abbreviated reference to
UGI Utilities, Inc. or UG Utilities, Inc. and UGIPNG. UG! Utilities
owns and operates {1) a natural gas distribution utility in eastern
Pennsylvania (“UGI Gas"), {2) a natural gas distribution utility in
northeastern Pennsylvania (“PNG Gas"”), and (3} an electric distr-
bution utility in northeastern Pennsylvania ("Electric Utility"}. UGI
Gas and PNG Gas are collectively referred to herein as "Gas
Utility”" Gas Utility and Electric Utility are subject to regulation by
the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission {"PUC"}.

Enterprises also conducts an energy marketing business prima-
rily in the eastern region of the United States through its sub-
sidiaries {collectively, “Energy Services”). Energy Services’ wholly
owned subsidiary UGI Development Company ("UGID") owns and
operates a 48-megawatt coalfired electric generation station and
owns a 6% interest in Pennsylvania-based electric generation
assets. In addition, Energy Services’ wholly owned subsidiary UGl
Asset Management, Inc., through its subsidiary Atlantic Energy,
Inc. {collectively, “Asset Management”) owns a propane storage
terr_nina‘l located in Chesapeake, Virginia. Energy Services also

tion facility, propane storage and propane-air mixing assets.

owns and operates a naltural gas liquefaction, storage and vaporiza-

Through other sub5|d|ar|es Enterprises owns and operates heat;
ing, ventilation, alr—condrtronrng, refrigeration and electrical contract—
ing services businesses in the Middle Atlantic states ("HVAC/R" )

This Financial Review should be read in conjunction with our
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes to Consolrdated
Financial Statements mcludtng the reportable segment mtorrna-
tion included: |n Note 17 : .

Results of Operatlons

The foilowrng arltlalyses compare the Cornpany slresults of oper-
ations for (1) the year;ended September 30, 2006 ("Fiscal 20067}
with the year, ended Septernber 3{0 2005 {" Frscal 2005") and
(2} Fiscal 2005 with the year ended September 30 2004 .

R =k Ut

(..Frscal 2004" )} ] N i\
b il :
2006 Compa‘red W|th 2005 ! .
Consolldatedlﬂesults . »
oo i . ~ Variance-
ool . . . Favorahle
; 1+ L X006 L2005 {Unfavorable),
Sy T ]' %ofTowall | . %ofTott
TS 1; Mot Nt Net MNet Nat )
I ||“E; ‘| Ingams - -tncoma| | Incomé " Income  Income % Change
[Mrlllonsofdollars) H I I‘ I ' it _ ' -
AmeriGas Propane TSR 182% $ 176 94% $°75 426%
International Propane 671 381% 994 530% (32.3) (32.5)%
Gas Utility 81 216% 393 210%  (1.2) (3%
Electric Utiity 05 60% 115 61% (100 (B7%
Energy Services N3 178% 217 116% 96 442%
Corporate & Other 41 23% (200 {1.0)% 61 NM.
Total ' $1762 1000% $187.5 100.0% ${11.3] (6.0)%

N.M. — Variance is not meaningful.

Executive Overview
Winter weather conditions in the United States and Europe are
generally the most important variables affecting our annual
earnings performance. This is because a substantial portion of
the energy commodities we sell is used in heating applications.
Temperatures in our domestic service territories were warmer
than normal ins Fiscal 2006 and warmer than in the prior year.
During Fiscal 2006, LPG and natural gas prices rose from what
were already high levels in Fiscal 2005 contributing to conserva-
tion across our customer base, both domestically and internation-
ally. We continued to focus on our core competencies as a mar-
keter and distributor of energy products and services and during
Fiscal 2006 (1) completed the PG Energy Acquisition which
expanded our Gas Utility's natural gas distribution operations into
northeastern Pennsylvania by approximately 158,000 customers
and {2) expanded our presence in central and eastern Europe
through our 50% partnership interest in Zentraleuropa LPG -
Holding GmbH ("ZLH"} which was formed in February 2006. Our
net income declined to $176.2 million in Fiscal 2006 from $1875
million in Fiscal 2005. The change in our net income for Fiscal
2006 reflects (1) the absence of $14.2 million of net income
recorded in Fiscal 2005 resulting from the resolution of certain of
Antargaz’ non-income tax contingencies and (2} Antargaz' return
1o more normal LPG margins from unusually high margins experi-
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enced during Fiscal 2005. The effects of these two factors were
partially offset by (1) a $5.3 million aftertax gain from Energy ' !
Services’ sale of its 50% partnership interest in Hunlock Creek’
Energy Ventures {"Energy Ventures”), {2) approximately $3.9 mil--
lion lower aftertax losses on early extinguishments of debt prima-
rily associated with AmeriGas Propane refinancings, and (3) a
lower effective tax rate. During Fiscal 2006, the stronger dollar
compared to the euro accounted for approximately $7 milliontof
the decrease in net income fror Fiscal 2005. Largely due to the
beneficial effects of changes in management's estimate of taxes

E
|
|

Temperatures in AmeriGas Propane’s service territories based
upon heating degree days during Fiscal 2006 were 10.2%
warmer than normal compared with temperatures that were
6.9%,warmer than normal during Fiscal 2005. Retail propane vol-
umes sold decreased approximately 5.8% principally due to the
warmer winter weather and the negative effects of customer
conservation driven by continued high propane selling prices.

Retail propane revenues increased $136.8 million reflecting a
$233. 8 million increase due to higher average selling prices par-
tially effset by a $970 million decrease due to the lower retail vol-

to be paid associated with planned repatriation.of foreign. ear-..-«— -umes.sold. Wholesale propane revenues decreased $2.8 million

ings, our effective tax rate detlined approximately 3% in Fiscal

AmeriGas Propane’s 43% higher contribution to net income
reflects (1) the lower aftertax losses on early extinguishments of
debt associated with refinancings which reduced future annual
interest expense and (2) higher average margin per retail gallon
sold and higher fees in response to increases in operating and

administrative expenses. International Propane’s Fiscal 2006 results '

primarily reflect the absence of Antargaz’ unusually high margins
per gallon of LPG sold from which Fiscal 2005 benefited and the
absence of a $14.2 million net aftertax gain assomated with the
resolution of certain non-income re!ated tax contmgenmes offset, in
part, by the lower estimate of taxes to be paid on the planned
repatriation of foreign earnings. Energy Services’ improved results
over the prior year reflect the gam on the sale of Energy Ventures
and increased sales of liguid fuels to dual fuel customers.

Looking ahead to Fiscal 2007 although energy prices are
expected to retreat from the hisftoric levels reached in Fiscal
2006, we anticipate customers thl continue to make efforts 1o
reduce their consumption of energy As part of our business
strategy, we continue to seek new growth opportunities
through acquisitions. Although the PG Energy Acquisition did
not have a material effect on our Fiscal 2006 results, we expect
to see earnings growth from our Gas Utility as a result of the
PG Energy Acquisition in Fiscal 2007 We also expect that
International Propane will continue to face increasing competi-
tion with other LPG suppliers and other sources of energy.

tncrease
AmeriGas Propane: 2006 2005 ({Decrease)
{Millions of doltars) :
Revenues $21193 $1,9633 $156.0  7.9%
Total margin {a) $ 7755 § 7433 $322 43%
Partnership EBITDA (h) $ 23719 § 2158 $220 102%
Operating income $ 1841 § 1681 $160 95%
Retail gallons sold (millions) 9752 11,0349 {897y (581%
Degree days - % warmer

than normal {c} 10.2% 6.9% -

(a} Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

(b} Partnership EBITDA (earnings befere interesi expense, income taxes and depreciation and
amortization) should not be considered as an alternative to net income {as an indicator of
operating performance) or as an alternative to cash flow (as a measure of liquidity or ability to
servica debt obligations) and is not a measure of perfarmance or financial condition under
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Management uses
Partnership EBITDA as the primary measure of segment profitability for the AmeriGas ?mpane
reportable segment {see Note 17 to Consalidated Financial Statements).

(c} Deviation from average heating degree days based upon natmnal weather statistics
provided by the National Oceanic and Atmespheric Administration ("NOAA") for 335 air-
ports in the United States, excluding Alaska.
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reflecting a $274 million decrease due to lower volumes sold

- 2006 compared to Fiscal 2005 =~menmmrmor dramrasmer o s [argely offset by-a $24.6 million-increase due to higher average™

selling prices. In Fiscal 2006, our average retail propane product
cost per retail gallon sold was approximately 18% higher than in
Fiscal 2005 resulting in higher yearoveryear prices to our cus-
torners. The average wholesale cost per gallon of propane during
Fiscal 2006 at Mont Belvieu, one of the major supply points in
the United States, was approximately 21% greater than the aver-
age cost per gallon during Fiscal 2005. Total cost of sales
increased to $1,343.8 million in Fiscal 2006 from $1,220.0 million
in Fiscal 2005 primarily reflecting the increase in propane product
costs partially offset by the decreased volumes sold. Total margin
increased $32.2 million principally due to ]hlgher average propane
margins per gallon and higher fees in response to increases in
operating and administrative expenses. '

Partnership EBITDA during Fiscal 2006 increased $22.0 million
compared to Fiscal 2005 as a result of the previously mentioned
increase in total margin and a $16.5 million decrease in the loss on
the early extinguishments of debt from $33 6 million in Fiscal 2005
to $171 million in Fiscal 2006. These changes were pamally offset
by a $17.1 million increase in operating and administrative expenses
and a $9.5 million decrease in other income primarily reflecting the
absence of a $9.1 million pre-tax gain on the sale of its 50% own-
ership interest in Atlantic Energy to Energy Services which was
recognized during Fiscal 2005. The $171 million loss on the early
extinguishments of debt that was incurred during Fiscal 2006 was
associated with the refinancings of AmeriGas OLP's Series A and
Series C First Mortgage Notes totaling $228.8 million and $59.6
million of the Partnership's $60 million 10% Senior Notes with
$350 million of 7125% Senior Notes due 2016. The Partnership
also used a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of the
7125% Senior Notes to repay its $35 million term loan. The
increase in operating and administrative expenses principally result-
ed from higher {1} vehicle fuel and lease costs, {2) employee com-
pensation and benefits and (3} maintenance and repairs. These
increases were partially offset by a $72 million favorable net
expense reduction related to general insurance and litigation
claims, primarily reflecting improved claims history. The Partnership
recovered significant increases in certain costs, such as vehicle
fuel, through delivery surcharges.

Operating income increased $16.0 million reflectmg the
increase in margin and a $1.2 million decrease in depreciation
expense largely offset by the aforementioned $17.1 million h|gher
operating and admlnlstratlve expenses.
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; . Increase
International Propane: 2006 200% {Decrease}
[Millions of dollats) - '

Revenues' - ' © $9455 $9439  $ 16 02%
Total margin (a) $4283  $4998 $(71.5) (14.31%
Operating income $1193  $1938 $(74.5) (18.41%
Income before income taxes $ 939 $159.0 $(65.1) {40.9)%

Antargaz retail gatlons sold {millions) 3152 3384 (232} 16.91%
Antargaz total margin, , : oo
m|ll|ons of euros [a) « - -£3302 €363.2 €(33.00 9.11%

l(a]_Total margtn represems total reveriues less total cost of sales.

Temperatures in Internanonal Propane’s service territories
based upon heating degree days during Fiscal 2006 were gener-
ally comparable to the prior year. During Fiscal 2008, the monthly
average currency translation rate was $1.23 per euro compared to
$1.27 per euro during Fiscal 2005. Antargaz’ retail LPG volumes
sold decreased to 315.2 million gallons in Fiscal 2008 from 338.4
million gailons in Fiscal 2005 due in large part to the late onset of
winter weather in December, lower agricultural volumes sold and
the effects of customer conservation on volumes sold.

International Propane revenues increased slightly as approxi-
mately $12 million of increased revenues from Antargaz were
largely offset by a decline in Flaga's revenues. The increase in
Antargaz’ revenues reflects higher retail LPG selling prices large-
ly offset by the effects of the stronger dollar versus the euro.
The decrease in Flaga's revenues largely reflects the effects of
Flaga's Czech Republic and Slovakia businesses being con-
tributed to ZLH in February of 2006. International Propane’s total
cost of sales incréased to $5172 million in Fiscal 2006 from
$444 1 million in Fiscal 2005 reflecting higher LPG product costs
on lower retail volumes sold partially offset by the beneficial
effects of the stronger dollar compared to the euro.

Total International Propane margin declined $71.5 millicn in
Fiscal 2006 compared to Fiscal 2005 primarily (1} reflecting both
the decline in Antargaz’ volumes and its unusually high LPG unit
margins in Fiscal 2005 and (2} due to the stronger doliar versus
the euro. Antargaz’ total base currency margin declined €33.0
million reflecting the lower volumes sold and lower unit margins.

The decrease in International Propane operating income princi-
pally reflects the decline in total rmargin, the absence of $18.8 mil-
lion of income from the reversal of certain of Antargaz’ nor-incorne
tax related reserves which were recorded in the prior year (see dis-
cussion in “Antargaz Tax Matters”) partially offset by a decrease of
$19.0 million in operating and administrative expenses. The
decrease in operating and administrative expenses reflects the ben-
eficial effects of the stronger dollar and lower euro-based operating
and administrative expenses at Antargaz and Flaga. The decline in
Flaga's operating and administrative expenses largely reflect the
absence of expenses from the businesses contributed to ZLH.

The decrease in International Propane income before income
taxes reflects the decrease in operating income and a $1.4 million
loss on early extinguishment of debt, partially offset by approxi-
mately $6.7 milion lower interest expense and changes in minority
interest. The decrease in interest expense is attributable to interest
savings as a result of our refinancings which are discussed further
in Financial Condition and Liguidity. The changes in minority interest

reflect the minority interest holder’s share of costs associated with
the shut-down of one of Antargaz’ majority owned filling centers.

Increase

Gas Utility: 2006 2005 (Decrease)
Millions of dollars)
Revenues $71290  §5851 $1389 23.7%
Totat margin (a) $2m1  $1950 § 61  31%
(Operating income $842 t®6 § 26 32%
income before income taxes $624 §650 § (2B (4.00%
System]throughpi]tE ' S .

bllhons of cublclfeet( bty - B26  BAT (2.1} (2.5)%
Degree davs % warmer B

than normal (b:l T R1% 0% - -

{al Total margm represents total revenues less total cost of sales.

{b} Deviation from average heating degree days based upon weather statistics provided
by NOAA for 4 airparts located within UGI Gas™ service territory. Fiscal 2005 degree day
statistics have been restated to reflect the current-year, four-location average from the
previous single location average. PNG Gas’ degree days for the period from August 24,
2006 through September 30, 2006 were not material and have been excluded.

Temperatures in Gas Utility's service territory based upon heat-
ing degree days were 8.7% warmer than normal in Fiscal 2006
compared with temperatures that were 2.0% warmer than normal
in Fiscal 2005. Total distribution system throughput declined
2.1 bef in Fiscal 2006 despite 2.7 bef of throughput coninbuted by
PNG Gas’ operations during the period from August 24, 2006
through September 30, 2006. Notwithstanding yearover-year
growth in the number of UGI Gas’ firm- residential, commercial
and industrial {"retail core-market”) customers, its Fiscal 2006
throughput was approximatély 6% lower than in Fiscal 2005 pri-
marily due to a reduction in retail core-market customer usage
largely resulting from warmer weather and customer conservation
in response to the pass-through of higher natural gas costs.

The increase in Gas Utility revenues during Fiscal 2006 is prin-
cipally the result of an $86.6 million increase in UGI Gas' retail
core-market revenues reflecting higher average purchased gas
cost ("PGC"} rates; $43.0 million of higher revenues from UGH
Gas' low-margin off-system sales; and, to a much lesser extent,
revenues from PNG Gas subsequent to the PG Energy
Acquisition. Increases or decreases in retail core-market cus-
tomer revenues and cost of sales result principally from changes
in retail core-market volumes and the leve!l of gas costs collected
through the PGC recovery mechanism. Under the PGC recovery
mechanism, Gas Utility records the cost of gas associated with
sales to retail core-market customers at amounts included in PGC
rates. The difference between actual gas costs and the amount
included in rates is deferred on the balance sheet as a regulatory
asset or liability and represents amounts to be collected from or
refunded to customers in a future period. As a result of the pass-
through nature of the PGC recovery mechanism, increases or
decreases in gas costs associated with retail core-market cus-
tomers have no direct effect on retail core-market margin. Gas
Utility's cost of gas was $522.9 million in Fiscal 2006 compared
to $390.1 million in Fiscal 2005 largely reflecting the effects of
the higher PGC rates, the higher low-margin off-system sales
and, to a much lesser extent, cost of gas associated with PNG
Gas’ operations subsequent to the PG Energy Acquisition.
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The $6.1 million increase in Gas Utility total margin in Fiscal
2006 principally reflects greater margin generated from higher
average interruptible delivery service unit margins and margin
from PNG Gas partially offset by lower retail core-market margin.
The increase in average interruptible delivery service unit mar-
gins reflects an increase in the spread between dglivered prices
for natural gas and alternative fuels, principally oil. The lower
gross margin from retail core-market customers largely reflects
the previously mentioned lower average usage per customer.

Gas Utility operating income increased $2.6 million in Fiscal
2006 as the $6.1 million increase in total margin was partially
offset by a $2.6 million increase in depreciation and amortiza- .
tion expense, including depreciation expense associated with
PNG Gas, and slightly higher operating and administrative- - -
expenses. Fiscal 2008 operating and administrative expenses
were slightly higher than in Fiscal 2005 reflecting operating and
administrative expenses from PNG Gas and higher uncollectible
accounts and customer assistance expense partially offset by
lower distribution system expenses resulting in large part from
the mild heating-season weather and lower stock-based com-
pensation expense. |

The decrease in Gas Utility income before income taxes in
Fiscal 2006 reflects the increase in operating income which was
more than offset by higher interest expense. The higher interest
expense resulted from higher average short-term debt out-
standing, higher short-term interest rates and interest on long-
term debt associated with the PG Energy Acqguisition.

increase

Electric Utility: 2006 2005 (Decrease)
[Milligns of doltars)
Revenues $98.0 $96.1 . $19  20%
Total margin {a} $a17 3431 N4 (32%
Operating income o .$207  $216 . $109) {4.2)%
Income before income taxes | $182 $199 $01.7) (8.5)%
Distribution sales - millions of . . .

kilowatt hours {“gwh") - 1,0050 10218 {16.8) (1.6)%

{a} Total margin represents total revenues less total cost of sales and revenue-related
faxes, i.e. qross receipts taxes of $5.3 million and $5.2 millien in Fiscal 2006 and Fiscal
2005, respectively. For financial statement purposes, revenue-related taxes are included
in "Utility taxes other than income taxes™ on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Electric Utifity's Fiscal 2006 kilowatt-hour sales decreased 1.6%
principally reflecting the effects of warmer heating-season weath-
er. Electric Utility revenues increased 2.0% principally reflecting -
the effects of a 3.0% increase in its Provider of Last Resort
{"POLR"} electric generation rates effective January 1, 2006 par-
tially offset by the lower kilowatt-hour sales. Electric Utility's-cost
of sales increased to $51.0 million in Fiscal 2006 from $478 million
in Fiscal 2005 as a result of higher perunit purchased power costs
partially offset by the lower kilowatt-hour sales. .

Electric Utility total margin in Fiscal 2006-decreased $1.4 mil-_
lion principally as a result of the lower kilowati-hour sales and
the increase in perunit purchased power costs. In accordance
with the terms of its POLR settlement which became effective
in June 2006, Electric Utility expects to increase its. POLR rates
effective January 1, 2007 which will affect all metered cus-
tormers. This increase is expected to raise the average cost to
residential customers by approximately 35% over the costs in
effect during calendar year 2006.
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Electric Utility operating income decreased $0.9 million reflecting
the decrease in total margin and slightly higher depreciation and
amortization expense slightly offset by lower operating and adminis-
trative expenses. The decrease in Electric Utifity income before .
income taxes in Fiscal 2006 reflects the decrease in operating
incorme and higher interest expense resulting from higher average -
short-term debt outstanding and higher short-term interest rates.

Energy Services: 2006 2005 Increase

{Millions of dollars) :
Revenues $1.4143 $13550.  $593  4.4%
Total margin {a) $ 81 § 736 _ _$125 17.0%
Operating income T$ 818 35 $156 ~ 41.6%
Income before income taxes .. $ 531.3% 375 -§156  416%

(a) Total margin represents total revenues less 1otat cost of sales.

Energy Services revenues increased to $1,414.3 million in Fiscal
2006 from $1,355.0 million in Fiscal 2005 despite an approximate
22% decline in natural gas volumes sold. Approximately $20 million
of the total increase in revenues reflects a 5.5% inc;eéase in -
prapane volumes sold combined with higher propane selling prices
resulting from higher propane product costs. The decfine in natural
gas volumes sold largely reflects the effects of customer losses
associated with, among other things, maintenance of our credit
risk management policy in a high natural gas cost environment. The
increase in propane volurmes sold reflects, in part, the full-year
ownership of its 20 million gallon propane storage terminal located.
in Chesapeake, Virginia. The propane terminal was purchased
through two separate transactions with ConocoPhillips Company -
and AmeriGas Propane in November 2004. See Note 2 to
Consolidated Financial Statements for. additional information
regarding the acquisition.

Energy Services total margin increased-$12.5 million result-
ing from higher natural gas margins, including winter storage
and peaking services, and, 1o a lesser extent, higher margin
from its propane storage terminal. )

The increase in Energy Services operating income and income
before income taxes principally reflects the previously mentioned
increase in tota! margin and a $3.1 million gain on the March 2006
sale of its 50% ownership interest in Energy Ventures partially off-
set by higher operating and administrative expenses. The
increased operating and administrative expenses were largely
associated with electric generation. As part of the consideration
for the sale of our 50% ownership interest, Energy Ventures trans-
ferred its 48-megawatt coalfired electric generation station to
UGID. As a result, UGID is no longer incurring cost of sales associ-
ated with purchasing a portion of its power needs from Energy
Ventures, but is incurring operating and administrative expenses -
associated with the operation of the electric generation station.

Interest Expense and Income Taxes. Interest experise decreased
to $123.6 million in Fiscal 2006 from $130.2 million in Fiscal =
2005 principally due to $12.4 million lower interest expense
largely assaciated with debt refinancings in International Propane
and AmeriGas Propane partially offset by higher intérest expense
associated with greater short-term borrowings with higher inter-
est ratés in Gas Utility and Eléctric Utility. The Company's effec-
tive income tax rate was 36.0% in Fiscal 2006 and 38.9% in
Fiscal 2005 reflecting management’s lower estimate of taxes to
be paid associated with planned repatriation of foreign earnings.
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.PG Energy Acquisition. On January 26, 20086, UGl signed a.
definitive agreement to acquire the natural gas -utility business of
PG Energy from Southern Union Company for approximately
$580 million in cash, subject to certain adjustments associated
with the: working capital of the acquired business. UGI assigned

its rights under the Purchase and Sale Agreement to UGIPNG.
The transaction was approved by the PUC and effective August
‘24, 2006 UGIPNG acquired the regulated-assets of PG Energy. .
The PG Energy busmess serves approximately 158,000 cus-
tomers |n thirteen- counties in northeastern Pennsylvania:The: :
‘cash payment of $5801mtli|on was funded by UG Utilities W|th
‘the net proceeds,from the issuance of $275 million of UGI
|Ut|I|t|es |bank Ioans under a Credit Agreement dated.as of .
August 18, 2006 (the .Bndge Loan”), cash capital contnbuuons

from UGI of $265 miillion and $40 million of borrowings under its

revolvmg credit agreement for working capital. In September
2008, UGI Utilities repaid the Bridge Loan with proceeds from
the issuance of $175 million of 5.753% Senior Notes due 2016
and $100 million of 6.206% Senior Notes due 2036.

2005 Compared with 2004
Consolidated Results
Variance—
Favorable
205 2004 [Unfavorable)
% of Total % of Total
Net Net Net Net Net
Income  Income  Income  incame  Income % Change
|Millions of dollars)
AmeriGas Propane . $178. 94% §294 263% $(11.8) (40.1)%
“International Propane = 99.4 ‘53.0%  13311.9% " 86.1° NM.
Gas Utility 383 21.0% 379 340% 140 3T%
« Electric Utility 115 6.1% 10 99% 05 45%.
Energy Services 217 116% 182 163% 35 1972%
Corporate & QOther (o (1.1)% 1.8 16% - {38 NM
Total $187.5 100.0% $1116 1000% $759 68.0%

N.M. — Variance is nat meaningful.

Highlights from Fiscal 2005:

* increased net income contributed by all operating business
units with the exception of AmeriGas Propane which (1)
incurred a $9.4 million aftertax loss on the early extinguish-
ment of debt associated with a refinancing that reduced
future annual interest expense and (2) experienced reduced
volumes sold due to customer conservation and warmer
weather _

» International Propane’s results included Antargaz for a full
fiscal year, including a winterheating season, whereas Fiscal
‘2004 included Antargaz as a 19.5% equity investment from
October 1, 2003 through March 31, 2004 }

= International Propane’s results included the beneficial effects
of unusually high retail margin per gallon and a $14.2 million
net aftertax gain associated with the resolution of certain
non-income related.tax contingencies

¢ Fiscal 2005 benefited from the absence of a $9.1 million pre-
tax loss recorded in Fiscal 2004 on the forward purchase of
euros used to fix a portion of the euro-denominated pur-
chase price of AGZ
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) S . Increase .
AmeriGas Propane: -- 2005. . 2004 {Decrease). .
IMillions of dollars) : R .
Revenues $1.9633 $1,775.9 $187.4 106%
Total margin $ 7433 $ 7467  $ (34) (05)%
Partnership EBITDA $ 2159 § 2559  ${40.0) {156)%
Operating incame $ 1681 $ 1760 % (79) (45)%
Retail gallons sold tmlllmns) 1,0349 1,059 242} (2.31%
Degree days =% warmer o ]

 than normal 'l' S 69% 49% ;_ -

ﬂ'emperatures in’AmeriGas Propane's service territories based'
upon heating degree days were 6.9% warmer than normal in ... '
Fiscal 2005 compared W|th temperatures that were 4.9% warmer

" than normal during Fiscal 2004: Retail propane velurmes sold

decreased approximately 2.3% principally due to the warmer
than normat winter weather and the negative effects of customer
conservation on volumes sold, which is primarily attributed to
increased propane selling prices. Low-margin wholesale propane
volumes sold decreased during Fiscal 2005 reflecting lower vol-
umes sold in connection with product cost hedging activities.

Retail propane revenues increased $199.1 million reflecting a
$232.9 million increase due to higher average selling prices par-
tially offset by a $33.8 million decrease due to the lower retail vol-
umes sold. Wholesale propane revenues decreased $19.1 million
reflecting a $54.1 miilion decrease due to lower volumes sold
partially offset by a $35.0 million increase‘due to higher average
selling prices. The higher average retail and wholesale sefling
prices per gallon reflect significantly higher propane product
costs. The average ‘wholesale cost per gallon of propane during °
Fiscal 2005 at Mont Belvieu was approximately 28% greater than
the average cost per gallon during Fiscal 2004, Total-cost of ‘sales
increased to $1,220.0 million in Fiscal 2005 from $1,029.2 million
in Fiscal 2004 reflecting the higher propane product costs.

Total margin decreased $3.4 million principally due to the lower
retail volumes sold partially offset by higher margin from ancillary
sales and services and, to a much lesser extent, slightly higher
average retail propane margins per gallon. Contributing to the
decline in total margin during Fiscal 2005 was lower margin gener-
ated by our AmeriGas Cylinder Exchange program {formerly its
Prefiled Propane Xchange® program) due largely to competitive
pricing pressures and the high cost of propane.

Partnership EBITDA during Fiscal 2005 decreased $40.0 mil-
lion compared to Fiscal 2004 as a result of (1) a $33.6 million
loss on early extinguishment of debt resulting from the
Partnership’s refinancing of its Senior Notes in May 2005, (2) a
$171 miilion increase in operating and administrative expenses -
and (3) the $3.4 million decrease in total margin all of which
were partially offset by a'$14.0 million increase in other income.
A $6.3 million increase in vehicle fuel expense and a $3.7 million
increase in vehicle lease costs were the most significant causes:
of the increase in operating and administrative expenses.
Increases in maintenance and repairs, uncollectible accounts
expense and general insurance expense, among others, also
contributed to the higher operating and administrative expenses.
The increase in other income primarily reflects higher gains on
fixed asset disposals and higher customer finance charges.

Operating income decreased $79 million reflecting the decrease
in margin and the aforementioned higher operating and administra-
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tive expenses which were partially offset by the higher other
income and a $74 million decrease in depreciation expense. The
decrease in deprecmtlon expense is largely attributed to lower capl-
tal expenditures related to AmeriGas Cylinder Exchange.

_ Increase

International Propane: 2005 2004 (Decrease}
{Millions of doltars} ' _

Revenues $9439 33334 $6105 NM.
Total margin $4938 $1713 $328.5 NM.
Operating income™ ™~ T $1938 $205  C $1733  NM.
income {loss} from equity investees .$ (26)  § 1086 ${13.2) NM.
Income before income taxes $1590 §137 $1453 NM.

N.M. ~ Not meaningful due to Antargaz Acquisition on March 31, 2004,

International Propane’s results of operations in Fiscal 2005
significantly increased compared to Fiscal 2004 due to the con-
solidation of all of Antargaz’ operations for a full twelve months,
including the winterheating season, compared to the consolida-
tion for only six months in Fiscal 2004 which primarily included ,
the spring and summer months. Antargaz’ revenues, total mar-.
gin and operating income during Fiscal 200% were $869.9 mil-
lion, $468.4 miliion and $188.3 million, respectively, compared to
$270.8 miliion, $140.7 mitlion and $15.1 million, respectively,
from April 1, 2004 to September 30, 2004, Weather in
International Propane’s service territories based upon heating
degree days was warmer than normal during Fiscal 2005. During
Fiscal 2005, Antargaz sold approximately 338 million retail gal-
lons of LPG while experiencing weather that was approximately
4% warmer than normal compared to 336 million retail gallons
sold while experiencing weather that was 5% warmer than nor-
mal during the twelve months ended September 30, 2004.

International Propane’s revenues increased significantly dur-
ing Fiscal 2005 due to the absence of revenues in Fiscal 2004
when Antargaz was an equity investment during the first six
months of the fiscal year and, to a lesser extent, higher LPG
selling prices. Flaga's revenues increased $11.4 million in Fiscal
2005 due to the effects of (1) higher LPG selling prices, (2} a
7% increase in volumes sold, targely resulting from the acquisi-
tion of the Czech business of BP PLC in the fourth quarter of
Fiscal 2004 and (3} the beneficial currency translation effects of
a stronger euro versus the dollar.

.International Propane's increase in total margin is attributable
to Antargaz’ performance. Antargaz continued to benefit from
high unit margins primarily reflecting the effects of declining LPG
costs during much of the Fiscal 2005 heating season. Antargaz’
LPG purchases are principally denominated in U.S. dollars.
Accordingly, its LPG costs further declined during the Fiscal 2005
heating season due to the strengthening euro.versus the.dollar.
Based upon average historical unit margins, management esti-
mated the positive effect of Antargaz’ high-unit margins and the
effects of a weak dollar on our net incorme during Fiscal 2005 to
be approxirmately $0.25 per diluted share. The eure was translat-
ed at a monthly average exchange rate of 1,27 dcllars per euro
during Fiscal 2005 compared to 1.22 dollars per euro during Fiscal
- 2004. Flaga's total margin decreased slightly in Fiscal 2005 result-
ing from lower margins.per gallon of LPG as it was unable to
pass on all of the higher average LPG costs to its customers.

The increase in International Propane operating income princi-
pally reflects the inclusion of Antargaz for twelve months, includ-
ing $18.8 million resulting from the reversal of certain non-income
tax refated reserves (see discussion in “Antargaz Tax Matters "},
the previously mentioned increase in margin and the absence of a
$9.1 million loss incurred in the prior year resulting from the settle-
ment of contracts for the forward purchase of euros used to fund
a portion of the purchase price of the Antargaz Acquisition partially
offset by higher operating and administrative expenses and higher
depreciation and amortization resulting from the Antargaz
Acquisition. Flaga’s operating income increased slightly primarily
reflecting the favorable effects of a stronger euro versus the dollar
and a decrease in operating and administrative expenses partially
offset by the decrease in its margin.

International Propane income from equity investees in Fiscal
2005 includes losses related to Antargaz’ equity investment in
Geovexin compared to Fiscal 2004 which includes equity
investee income from our 19.5% ownership mterest in AGZ
through March 31, 2004,

The increase in International Propane income before income
taxes reflects the increase in operating income partially offset
by the decrease in equity investee income and greater interest
expense resulting from the Antargaz Acquisition.

Gas Utility: ' 2005 2004

Increase
{Millions of dollars)
Revenues _ £585.1 35604 $247  44%
Total margin $1950 $1915 $35 18%
Operating income , $ 816 § 80 $.15  1.9%
Incorne before income taxes $ 650 §642 $08 12%
System throughput - . .
billions of cubic feet {"bcf”) - 847 82.2 25  30%

Degree days - % warmer . ‘

. than normal - - o 20% 2.9% - -

Weather in Gas Utility’s service territory based upon heating
degree days was 2.0% warmer than normal in Fiscal 2005 com-
pared with weather that was 2.9% warmer than normal in Fiscal
2004. Total distribution system throughput increased in Fiscal
2005 due primarily to greater interruptible delivery service vol-
umes, Notwithstanding the volume effects of the slightly colder
weather and an increase in the number of retail core-market cus-
tomers, Fiscat 2005 retail core-market throughput was substan-
tially equal to Fiscal 2004 primarily due to a reduction in customer
usage per degree day. The lower usage per degree day primarily
reflects the effects of conservation in response to higher natural
gas prices.

The increase in Gas Utility revenues during 2005 is principal-
ly the result of a $53.4 million increase in retail core-market rev-
enues reflecting higher average PGC rates and, to a lesser
extent, the increase in throughput and higher revenues from
interruptible customers. These increases were partially offset by
a $372 million decrease in revenues from low-margin off-sys-
tem sales. Gas Utility's cost of gas was $390.1 million in Fiscal
2005 compared to $368.9 million in Fiscal 2004 reflecting the
ef‘fects of the higher PGC rates partially offset by lower cost of
sales assocuated with lower off-system sales.




The $3 5 million increase in Gasi Utility. total margin in Fiscal -
2005 pnncrpally reflects greater margm generated from higher -
" interruptible delivery service volumes and higher average inter-
ruptible delivery service unit margins. The increase in average
interruptible delivery service unit margins reflects an increase in
the spread between delivered prices for natural gas and alterna-
tive fuels pnncrpal!y oil. Gross margin from retail core-market
Fustomers ‘was relatlvely stable as Iower usage. per degree day
was nffset by an mcrease in the number of customers ’

Gas Ut:llty operatlng rncome increased $1.5 mrllron in Fiscal -
2005 as Ithe $3.5 million iricrease in total margin and a $1.9 million
increase 'in other income were partially offset by higher operating
and administrative expenses and a $1.2 million increase in depreci-
ation and amortization, The increase in other income is dug in
large part to the absence of costs recorded in Fiscal 2004 related
to a regulatory claim resulting from the discontinuance of natural
gas service to certain.custorners. Fiscal 2005 operating and
administrative expenses were slightly higher than in Fiscal 2004
as a $1.9 million increase in uncollectible accounts and customer
assistance expenses, the absence of environmental insurance set-
tlemenits received in the prior year and higher professional servic-
es expenses were partially offset by lower injuries and damages
and drstnbutron system expenses. The increase in depreciation
expense 'reflects the normal effects of yearly capltal expenditures.

The i increase in Gas Utility | mcome before incomeé taxes in
Fiscal 2005 reflects the increase in operating income partially off-
set by hrgher interest expense re5ultmg from hlgher average
shart- term debt outstandrng and higher short-term interest rates,
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Electric Utlllty. 2005 2004 Increase
(Millions of dollars)
Revenues . $96.1 $89.7 $64  71%
Total margin (a} $43.1 $416 $15  36%
Operating income $216  $209 $0.7  33%
Income before income taxes $1429 $189 $i0  53%
Distribution sales - millions of

kilowatt hours {"gwh"} 1,021.8 983.9 379 39%

(a) Total margin represents total revenues lass total cost of sales and revenue-related
taxes, i.e. gross receipts taxes of $5.2 and $4.8 million in Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004,
respectively. For financial statement purposes, revenue-refated taxes are ingluded in
“Utiliy 1axes other than income taxes” on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Electric Utility's Fiscal 2005 kilowatt-hour sales increased
principally reflecting slightly colder Fiscal 2005 heating-season
weather and warmer Fiscal 2005 cooling-season weather which
increased sales for air conditioning. The increase in Electric
Utility revenues principally reflects the effects of a 4.5%
increase-in its POLR electric generation rates effective January
1, 2005 and the higher kilowatt-hour sales. Electric Utility's cost
of sales increased to $478 million in Fiscal 2005 from $43.3 mil-
lion in Fiscal 2004 as a result of higher perunit purchased
power costs and the higher sales.

Electric Utility total margin in Fiscal 2005 increased $1.5 mil-
lion principally as a result of the previously mentioned increase
in POLR rates and the higher kilowatt-hour sales partially offset
by the increase in perunit purchased power costs. Operating
income and income before income taxes in Fiscal 2005 were high-
er than the prior year as the increase in total margin was partially
offset by higher operating and administrative costs, principally high-
er distribution system maintenance expenses.

‘Energy Services:* , - . .:-2005. - 2004 ,--7 Increase.

(Millins of dollars) -~ -+ " - I R e
Revenues $1.3550 | $967.2 $3878 40.1%
Total margin $ 736 | $550 $186 338%
{perating income § 35§31 8 64 206%

[ncome before income taxes $ 375§ 34 $ 64 206%

.- = _a? AR
RN

The $3878 mrllron mcrease ini Energy Servrces Jrevenues in
Fascal 2005 resulted pnmanly from (1} mcreased natural gas pnces
and to a Iesser extent an approxrmate 2% growth in. natural gas
volumes sold, (2} approanately $70 million of revenues generated
by Asset Management’s propane terminal, which was acguired by
Energy Services in November 2004, and {3) $9.2 million of
increased revenues from UGID's electric generation. The increase
in UGID’s electric generation revenues largely reflects reduced
electricity generated in Fiscal 2004 resulting from a scheduled
plant maintenance outage. Energy Services total margin increased
$18.6 million resuking from (1} a $10.0 millien increase in natural
gas related margin principally due to higher income from winter
storage and peaking services, (2} Asset Management'’s contribu-
tion of $5.6 million of margin and {3) increased margin from UGID.

The increase in Energy Services operating income and income
before income taxes principally reflects the previously mentioned
increase in total margin partially oﬁset by $9.3 million higher
operating and administrative expenses $1.7 million hrgher depre-
ciation and amoftization and $1.3 million Iower other income. The
two main drivers.of the increased operatmg and admrmstratwe
expenses were operating and admrnrstratwe expenses associated
with the propane terminal since its acquisition in November 2004
and higher uncoliectible accounts expense. The increase in deprf-,L
ciation and amortization is also largely attributable to Asset
Management’s propane terminal since its acquisiticn.

N Mﬂ;—w——_“ el rn o e

Interest Expense and Income Taxes. Interest expense increased
to $130.2 million in Fiscal 2005 from $119.1 million in Fiscal
2004 principally due to $13.8 million higher-International
Propane interest expense as a result of the Antargaz Acquisition
partially offset by lower AmeriGas Propane interest expense.
The Company’s effective income tax rate was 38.9% in Fiscal
2005 and 36.6% in Fiscal 2004.

Financial Condition and Liquidity

Capitalization and Liquidity

Total cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments were
$201.0 million at September 30, 2006 compared with $385.0 mil-
lion at September 30, 2005. Excluding cash, cash equivalents and .
short-term investrnents that reside at UGl's operating subsidieries
at September 30, 2006 and 2005, we had $16.6 million and
$138.7 million, respectively, of cash, cash eqguivalenis and short-
term investments. The primary sources of UGH's cash are the divi-
dends and other cash payments made to UGI or its corporate
subsidiaries by its principal business segments. The decline in
cash and short-term investments largely reflects $265 million in
cash used to fund a portion of the $580 million purchase price of
PG Energy. In August 2008, UGI entered into a revolving credit
facility which expires April 30, 2007 UGI may borrow up to $50
million on the facility. At September 30, 2006, no amounts were
outstanding under UGI's revolving credit facility.
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AmeriGas Propane’s ability to pay dividends to UGl is largely
dependent upon distributions it receives from AmeriGas Partners.
At September 30, 2006, our 44% effective ownership interest in
the Partnership consisted of approximately 24.5 million Cornmon
Units and an approximate 2% general partner interest. - - .
Approximately 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter, the
Partnership distributes all of its Available Cash (as defined in the
Third Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnershrp of
AmeriGas Partners, the “Partnership Agreement "} relating to such
fiscal quarter. The ability of the Partnership to pay distributions on all-
Units depends upon a number of factors. These factors include {1)
the level of Partnership eamings; (2) the cash needs of the ]
Partnership’s operatrons (|nc|ud|ng cash needed for marntarnmg ‘and”
increasing operatrng capacity); (3) changes in opefating workmg cap-
ital; and {4) the ability of the F’artnershrp to borrow under its Credit
Agreement, to refinance maturing debt and to increase its long-term
debt. Some of these factors are affected by’ conditions beyond our
control including weather, competition in markets we serve, the
cost of propane and changes in capital market conditions. Based
upon the number of Partnership units outstanding on September
30, 2008, the amount of Available Cash needed annually to pay
the distributions on all Units is approximately $133 million.

During Fiscal 2004, Antargaz’ then-current Senior Facilities
Agreement was amended to permit AGZ to pay a one-time cumu-
lative dividend of approximately $54.4 million which was based
on 50% of AGZ's consolidated net incorne on a French GAAP
basis for the two-year period ended March 31, 2004. “The amount
of dividends received in Fiscal 2005, based on AGZ's consolidated

" net income on a French GAAP basis for the period Apnl 1, 2004
through September 30, 2004, was $1.3 million. Dividends remain
subject to restrictions- under its new Senior Facilities Agreement
The increased amount of International Propané’s dividends and
cash payments in Fiscal 2006 largely reflects the effects-of |
Antargaz’ significantly higher earnings in 2005 and its refinancing.
We estimate dividends and cash payments from International
Propane in Fiscal 2007 to be approximately $50 to $55-million.

During Fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004, AmeriGas Propane, UGI
Utilities, International Propane and Energy Services paid dividends
and made cash payments to UG and its subsidiaries as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 2006 2005 2004
(Mitlions of dollars) R R
AmeriGas Propane $ 383 $ 454 $ 39.0
UG! Utilities 376 - . 385 45,0
International Propane . 1046 - 225 54.4
Energy Services - s 90 15.0
Total $2153 - . $1194. $153.4

" Dividends and other cash distributions are available to pay.

dividends on UGI Common Stock and for investment purposes.
On April 25, 2006, UG ] Board of Directors approved an increase

in the quarterly dividend rate on UG Common Stock to $0.17625
per share or $0.705 per share on an annual basis, which was effec-
tive with the dividend payable on July 1, 2006 te shareholders of
record on June, 15, 2006. On April 24, 2006, AmeriGas Propane’s
Board of Directors approved an increase in its quarterly distribution .
rate on AmeriGas Partners Cornmon Units to $0.58 per Common
Unit ($2.32 annually) from $0.56 per Common Unit ($2.24 annualty}.
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The increase in AmeriGas Partner’s distribution was effective with
the payment of its distribution for the quarter ended June 30, 2006.

AmeriGas Partners. The Partnership’s debt outstanding at
September 30, 2006 totaled $933.7 million. There were no
amounts outstanding under AmenGas OLP’s Credit Agreement
at September 30, 2006,

Effective November 6, 2006, AmeriGas OLP entered into a
new unsecured Credit Agresment that extended the expiration
date to October 15, 2011, increased the Revolving Credit Facility
to $125,million, tightened certain covenants and reduced cer-
tain costs. The Acquisition Facrhty remains at $75 mllhon The
remaining principal terms of the former and new Credlt
Agreement are similar except that the obligations under the
new Credit Agreement are unsecured. The Revolwng Credit
Facrlrty may be used for worktng capltal and general purposes
of AmeriGas OLP The Acqwsmon Facnhty provrdes AmenGas
OLP with the ability to borrow up to $75 million to finance the
purchase of propane businesses or propane business assets or,
to the extent it is not so used, for working capital and general
purposes, subject to restrictions in the AmeriGas Partners
Senior Notes indentures. Issued and outstanding letters of cred-
it under the Revolving Credit Facility, which reduce the amount
available for borrowings, totaled $58.9 million at September 30,
2006 and is approximately the same amount issued and out-
standing during all of Fiscal 2008. At September 30, 2005,
issued and outstanding letters of credit under the Revolving
Credit Facility totaled $56.3 million and is approximately the
same amount issued and outstanding during all of Fiscal 2005.
AmeriGas OLP's short-term borrowing needs are seasonal and
are typically greatest during the fall and winter heating-season
months due to the need to fund higher levels of working capi-
tal. Due in part to the issuance of 2.3 million Common Units in
September 2005, the Partnership generally did not need to use
its Revolving Credit Facility to fund its operations during Fiscal
2006. The average daily and peak bank loan borrowings out-
standing under the Credit Agreement during Fiscal 2005 were
$279 million and $98.0 million, respectively. -

AmeriGas Partners periodically issues equity securities and may
continue to do so. Proceeds from the Partnership’s equity offerings
have generally been used by the Partnershlp 1o reduce indebted-
ness and for general Partnership purposes, including funding acqui-
sitions. AmeriGas Partners has an.effective unallocated debt and
equity shelf registration statement with the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC") under which it may issue Common
Units or Senior Notes due 2016 in underwritten public offerings.

AmeriGas OLP must meet certain financial covenants in
order to borrow under its Credit Agreement including, but not .
limited to, a minimum interest coverage ratio, a maximum debt
to EBITDA ratio and a minimum EBITDA, as defined. AmeriGas - -
OLP’s financial covenants calculated as-of September 30, 2006
permitted it 10 borrow up to the maximum amount available -
under either the former or new Credit Agreement. For a more
detailed discussion of the Partnership's credit facilities, see
Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements. Based upon exist-
ing cash balances, cash expected to be generated from opera-
ticns and borrowings available under its Credit Agreement, the
Partnership’s management believes that the Partnership will be
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able to meet its anticipated contractual commitments and pro-
jected cash needs during Fiscal 2007 )

Intemational Propane. At September 30, 2006, Antargaz had
total debt outstanding of €383.1 million ($485.9 million). There
were no'amounts borrowed under the revolving portion of the
Senior Facilities Agreement during the twelve months ended
September 30,-2006. .

In December 2008, AGZ executed a flve-year floating-rate
Senior Facilities Agreement that expires on March 31, 2011 and
consists of {1) a €380 million variable-rate term loan and (2} a €50
million reveolving credit facility. AGZ executed interest rate swap
agreements to fix the rate of inierest on the term loan for the
duration of the loan. The proceeds from the new term loan were
used to repay its €175 million term loan, to fund the redemption
of its €165 million High Yield Bonds and for general purposes,

The Senior Facilities term loan has been collateralized by
substantially all of Antargaz’ shares in its subsidiaries and by
substantially all of its accounts receivable. Antargaz’ manage-
ment believes that it will be able to meet its anticipated con-
tractual commitments and projected cash needs during Fiscal
2007 principally with cash generated from operations.

The Senior Facilities Agreement restricts the ability of AGZ
to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness and make
investments. For a more detailed discussion of Antargaz’ debt,
see Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

At September 30, 20086, Flaga had total outstanding debt of _
"€55.8 mrllron ($70 7 million}. On July 26,2006, Flaga entered
into, a euro-based term loan facrllty in the am0unt of €48 m|I||on
($60 9 m|llron} and a new worklng capital facmty with 3 major
European bank for up to €8 million which both expire in =~ ~
September 2011. Borrowings under. the working capital facility
commitment totaled €74 million ($9.4 million} at September 30,
2006. Generally, principal payments on the term loan of €3 mil-
lion are due semi-annually on March 31 and September 30 each
year with final payments totaling €24 0 millien due in 2011, Debt
issued under these agreements is subject to guarantees by UGI.
Flaga's joint venture, ZLH, has multi-currency working capital
facilities that provide for borrowings up to a total of €14 million,
half of which is subject to guarantees by UGI. For a mare
detailed discussion of Flaga's debt, see Note 3 to Consolidated
Financial Staternents.

UGI Utilities. UG Utilities’ debt outstanding totaled $728.0 mil-
lion at Septerber 30, 2006. Included in this amount is $216.0
million of bank loans outstanding. In September 2006, UGI
Uilities issued $175 million of 5.753% Senior Notes due 2016
and $100 million of 6.206% Senior Notes due 2036 and used
the proceeds to fund a portion of the $880 million PG Energy
Acquisition purchase price.

UGI Utitities has a revolving credit agreement under which it
may borrow up to a total of $350 million. This agreement is cur-
rently scheduled to expire in August 2007 but may be automati-
cally extended by UGI Utilities to August 2011. At September
30, 2006, there was $216.0 million outstanding under the
revolving credit agreement, From time to time, UGI Utilities has
entered into short-term borrowings under uncommitted arrange-
ments with major banks in order to meet liquidity needs. Short-

term borrowings, including amounts cuistanding under the -
revolving credit agreements, are classified as bank loans on the®
Consolidated Balance Sheets. UG Utilities™ credit agreement.
requires it to maintain a maximum ratio of Consolidated Debt to
Consolidated Total Capital, as defined, of 0.65 to 1.00. During

Fiscal 2006 and 2005 average daily bank loan borrowings were
$118.4 million and $52.9 million, respectively, and peak bank
loan borrowings totaled $219.0 million and $91.4 million, respec- .
tively. Peak borrowings typically occur during the peak heating
season months of December and January. The increase in aver-
age and peak bank loan borrowings during Fiscal 2006 reflects
in large part borrowings to fund increased working capital pri-
marily resulting from higher natural gas prices and borrowings
related to the working capital of PNG Gas.

UGI Utilities has a shelf registration statement with the SEC
under which it may issue up to an additional $75 million of
Medium-Term Notes or other debt securities.

Based upon cash expected to be generated from Gas Utility
and Electric Utility operations, borrowings available under its
revolving credit agreement and the availability of its Medium-
Term Notes, UGI Utilities' management believes that it will be
able to meet its anticipated contraciual and projected cash com-
mitments during Fiscal 2007. For a more detailed discussion of
UGI Utilities’ long-term debt and revolving credit facilities, see
Note 3 to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Energy Services. UGI Energy Services, Inc. {"ESI”) has a $200
million receivables purchase facility ("Receivables Facility”) wuth
an issuer of recewables backed commercral paper expiring in
April 2009, although the Hecesvables Facnllty may terminate
prior 1o such date due to the termination of commitments of
the Receivables Facility’s back-up purchasers. Prior to
September 2006, ESI's Receivables Facility was $150 million, In
order to provide additional short-term liguidity during the peak
heating season due to increased energy product costs, the )
maximum level of funding available at any one time from this
facility was temporarily increased to $300 million for the period
from November 1, 2005 to April 24, 2006.

Under the Receivables Facility, ESI transfers, on an ongoing
basis and without recourse, its trade accounts receivable to its
wholly owned, special purpose subsidiary, Energy Services
Funding Caorporation {“ESFC"), which is consolidated for financial
statement purposes. ESFC, in turn, has sold, and subject to cer-
tain conditions, may from time to time sell, an undivided interest
in the receivables to a cormmercial paper conduit.of a major .
bank. ESFC was created and has been structured to isolate its .
assets from creditors of .-ES| and its affiliates, including UGI. This
two-step transaction is accounted for as a sale of receivables fol-
lowing the provisions of SFAS No. 140, "Accounting for Transfers
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of -
Liabilities” ESI continues to service, administer and-collect trade
receivables on behalf of the commercial paper issuer and ESFC.
At September 30, 20086, the outstanding balance of ESFC trade .
receivables was $24.1 million which is net of $60.5 million that
was sold to the commercial paper conduit and removed from
the balance sheet. Based upon cash expected to be generated -
from operations and borrowings available under its Receivables "
Facility, management believes that Energy Services wili be able
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to meet its-anticipated contractual and projected cash commit- .
ments during Fiscal 2007, . .

In addition, a-major bank has committed to issue up to £50 mil-
lion of standby letters of credit, secured by cash or marketable
securities {“LC Facility”). At September 30, 2008, there were no
letters of credit outstanding. Energy Services expects to fund the
collateral requirements with borrowings under its Receivables
Facility. The LC Facility expires in April 2007 ‘

Gash Flows . L

Operatrng Activities. Due to the seasonal Tnature of the Companys
businesses, cash flows from operating activities are generally .
strongest during the second and third fiscal quarters when cus-
tomers pay for natural gas, LPG, electricity and other energy prod-
ucts consumed during the peak heating season months.
Conversely, operating cash flows are generally at their lowest lev-
els during the first and fourth fiscal quarters when the Company’s
investment in working capital, principally inventories andfor
accounts receivable, is generally greatest. AmeriGas Propane and
UGI Utitittes primarily use bank loans 1o satisfy their seasonal -
operating cash flow needs. Energy Services Uses its Receivables
Facility to satisfy its operating cash flow needs. Antargaz has his-
torically been successfu! funding its operating cash flow needs
without using its revolver. )

Cash flow provided by operating activities was $279.4 million
in Fiscal 2006, $4377 million in Fiscal 2005 and $260.7 millicn in
Fiscal 2004. The decrease in cash flow from operating activities in
Fiscal 2006 largely reflects the greater cash required to fund B
working capital. Cash flow from operatlng activities before
changes in operating working capital was $404.6 mrlhon in Fiscal
2006, $426.5 million in Fiscal 2005 and $333.0 million in Fiscal
2004. Changes in operating worklng capital used cash flow of
$125.2 million in Fiscal 2006 compared with cash flow provided
of $11.2 million in Fiscal 2005 and cash flow used of $72.3 million
in Fiscal 2004. The increase in cash needed to fund waorking capi-
tal in Fiscal 2006 largely reflects changes in accounts payable due
in part to the timing of inventory purchases and payments, a
decrease in accrued income taxes, and changes in deferred fuel
costs partially offset by a decrease in accounts receivable.

Investing Activities. Investing activity cash flow is principally
affected by capital expenditures and investments in propenty, plant
and equipment, cash paid for acquisitions of businesses, changes
in short-term investments and proceeds from sales of assets. Net
cash flow used in investing activities was $7075 million in Fisca!
2006, $196.3 miltion in.Fiscal 2005 and $412.8 million in.Fiscal
2004. The increase in cash used by investing activities largely
reflects the $580 million paid for the PG Energy Acquisition and,
1o a lesser extent, increased capital expenditures. During Fiscal
2006, we spent $191.7 million for property, plant and equipment,
$158.4 million in Fiscal 2005 and $133.7 million in Fiscal 2004.
The increase largely reflects greater capital expenditures by -
International Propane, UGH Utilities and AmeriGas Propane. Our
investing activities in Fiscal 2006 also include cash proceeds from
the sale of our 50% ownership interest in Energy Ventures partiak-
ly offset by cash used in the formation of our 50% ownershrp
interest in ZLH. .
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Financing Activities. Cash flow provided by financing-activities . -
was $2989.7 million in Fiscal 2006 compared with cash flow used
by financing activities of $72.6 million in Fiscal 2005 and cash flow
provided by financing activitiés of $159.0 million i in Flscal 2004.
Financing activity cash flow changes are primarily due to
issuances and repayments of long- term debt, net bank loan
borrowings, dividends and distributions on UGl Common Stock
and AmeriGas Partners Common Units, and proceeds from public
offerings of AmeriGas Partnérs Common Units and issuances of
UGI Common Stock.

In December 2005 Antargaz entered into a 6380 million
term loan. The proceeds were used to repay the exlstrng €175
million Senior Facmtles term loan, redeem its €165 mnlllon of
High Yield Bonds and for general corporate purposes Antargaz
incurred a $1.4 million loss on extinguishment of” debt associat-
ed with its refinancings. Also in December 2005 UG Utilities
refinanced $50 million of its maturing 7.14% Medium-Term
Notes with the proceeds from the issuance of $50 million of
5.64% Medium-Term Notes due December 2015. In January
2008, the Partnership and AP Eagle Finance Corp. issued $350
million of 7125% Senior Notes due 2016. The proceeds of this
registered pubhc debt offering weare used to refinance
AmeriGas OLP's $160 million Series A and $68.8 million Series
C First Mortgage Not_es, including a make-whole premium, its
$35 miillion term loan due October 1, 2006 and $59.6 million of
the Partnership’s $60 million 10% Senior Notes due 2006 pur-
suant to a tender offer, plus a premium. The Partnership
incurred a $17.1 million loss on early extinguishment of debt
associated with these reﬁnancings' As previously mentioned,
UGI Utilities issued $175 million of 6.753% Senior Notes due
2016 and $100 million of 6.206% Senior Notes due 2036, the
proceeds of which were used to fund a ‘portion of the
PG Energy Acquisition. During Fiscal 2008, UGI Utilities’ net
bank loan borrowings totaled $134.8 million. Included in UG1
Utilities’ Fiscal 2006 net bank loan borrowrngs are repayments
of two $35 million borrow:ngs with maturities greater than
three months and a $20 million borrowmg rmade on June 1,
20086, which was repaid in Septémber 20086. '

During Fiscal 2008, we paid cash dividends on UG Common
Stock of $72.6 million and the Partnership paid regular quarterly
distributions onall limited partner units’

UGI Utilities Pension Plan

UG Utilities sponsors two defined benefit pension plans (" Pens:on
Plan”) for employees of UGI Utilities, UGIPNG, UG! and certain of:
UGI's other subsidiaries. As a result of the PG Energy Acquisition,
we acquired the pension assets and assumed the pension liabili-
ties related to the Employees’ Retirerment Plan of Southern Union
Company Pennsylvania Division {the “Division Plan”), The fair value
of Pension Plan assets was $274.6 million and $211.7 million at
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The increase in the fair
value of the Pension Plan assets substantially reflects the fair value
of the Division Plan assets acquired. At September 30; 2006 and
2005, the Pension Plan's assets exceeded accumulated benefit
obligations by $6.0 million and $74 million, respectively. The
Company is in full compliance with regulations governing defined
benefit pension plans, including Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 ("ERISA") rules and regulations, and does not
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anticipate it.will be required to:makea contribution to,the Pension

"~ Plan iniFiscal 2007, Pre-tax pension expense associated with our» -

Pension'Plan:reflected in Fiscal 2006, 2005 and. 2004:results was
$3.1 million; $3.0 million and $1.2 million, respectively. The increase
in pension expense during this period reflects the changes in the
market;value of Pension Plan assets, decreases in the discount
rate assumption and, beginning October 2004, the expiration of the
Pension Plan's transition asset amortization. Pension expense in

t Fiscal 2007 is. expected to be apprommately $2.4 mllllon e
Capltal Expendltures

In the following table, we present capital expenditures (which
exclude acquisitions) by our business segments for Fiscal 2008,
2005 and 2004, We also provide amounts we expect to spend
in Fiscal 2007 Increases in capital expenditures are in support
of growth and new marketing initiatives. We expect to finance
Fiscal 2007 capital expenditures principally from cash generated
by operations and borrowings under our credit facilities.

Year Ended September 30, 2007 2006 2005 2004
{Millions of dollars) {estimate)

AmeriGas Propane $791 $707 $626 §617
International Propane . 709 55.5 420 216
Gas Utility 0.7 492 388 355
Electric Utility 6.4 a0 1.5 53
Energy Services 117 7.0 6.2 28
Other - 22 0.3 13 0.7

Total | o 410 1917 $1684  $1337
S P L

Contractual Cash Obllgatmns and Commntments
The Company has contractual cash’obligations that extend beyond
“Fiscal 2006. Such obligations include scheduled repayments of
long-term debt, -interest on long-term fixed rate debt, operating
lease payments, uncenditional purchase cbligations for pipeline
capacity, pipefine transportation and natural gas storage services
and commitments to purchase natural gas, LPG and electricity.
The following table presents contractual cash obligations under
agreements existing as of September 30, 2006.

Payments Due by Period

1 year 2-3 4-5 After
Totzl or less years years 5 years

{Millions of dollars)-
Long-term debt
Interest on long-term

$1,9957 § 34 §922 § 6151 $1.2570

fixed rate debt 1,084.1 120.2 2313 205 5275
Operating leases 2482 5.1 838 561 532
AmeriGas Propane

supply contracts 207 207 - - -
International Propane

supply contracts 2174 1162 1012 - -
Energy Services .

supply contracts 661.5 548.1 113.4 - -

Gas Utility and Electric Utility
supply, storage and
transportation contracts  886.1 367.2 3016 1304 86.9

Total $6.1137 81,2589 §9235 §$1.006.7 $19246
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Related Party Transactlonst R

Dunng,Frscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 we, dld not enter into any
related party transactions that had a material effect on our finan-
cial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Oﬁ'-BaIance-Sheet Arrangentents .

We do not have any. off balance sheet arrangements that are,
expected 10 have : a materaal effect on our flnancral condrtron .
change in financial condition, revenues or expenses results of
operations, liguidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.

Utility Regulatory Matters

As a result of Pennsylvania's Natural Gas Choice and
Competition Act (the “Gas Competition Act”), since July 1,
1999, all natural gas consumers in Pennsylvania, including resi-
dential and smaller commercial and industrial customers (”core-
market customers”), have been able to purchase gas supplies
from entities other than natural gas distribution companies
(“NGDCs"). Under the Gas Competition Act, NGDCs, like UG!
Gas and PNG Gas, continue to serve as the supplier of last
resort for all core-market customers, and such sales of gas, as
well'as the distributién service ‘provided by NGDCs, continue to
be subject to rate regulation by the PUC. As of September 30,
2006, fewer than two percent of UGI Gas’ core-market cus-
tomers purchase their gas from alternate suppliers. Currently,
none of PNG Gas’ core- market customers purchase therr gas
from alternate supphers )

Prior to the PG Energy Acquisition on April 13, 2006 an .
application was filed with the PUC seekrng an increase in base
rates. In an order entered on November 30, 2008, the PUC
approved a settlement of the base rate proceedlng of PG -
Energy {PNG Gas). The settlement provides for an increase- in. '
natural gas distribution base rates of $12.5 million annually or *
approximately 4%, effective December 2, 2006. In addition, the
settlement provides PNG Gas the ability to recover up'to $1 )
millien of additional corporate franchise tax through the state
tax adjustment surcharge mechanism.

As a result of the Electricity Generation Customer Choice and
Competition Act (the “Electric Compstition Act”) that became
effective January 1, 1997 all of Electric Utility’s customers are per-
mitted to acquire their electricity fiom entities other than Electric-
Utility. As of September 30, 2006, none of Electric Utility's Ccus-
tomers have chosen an alternative electricity generation’-suppli'er. '
Electric Utility remains the provider of last resort (“POLR"} for its, |
customers that are not served by an afternate electfic generatrcn
provider. The terms and conditions under which Electric Utlhty pro-
vides POLR service, and rules governing the rates that may be
charged for such service, have been established in a series of
PUC approved settlements, the latest of which became effective
in June 2006 (collectively, the "POLR Settlemert”). -

Electric Utility's POLR service rules provide for annual shop-
ping periods during which customers may elect to remain on
POLR service or choose an alternate supplier. Customers who
do not select an alternate supplier are obligated to remain on
POLR service until the next shopping period. Residential cus-
tomers who return to POLR service must remain on POLR serv-

23




UGI Corporation 2008 Annual Report

Financial Review (continued)

ice until the date of the second open shopping period after
returning. Commercial and industrial customers who return to
POLR service must remain on POLR service until the next open
shopping period and may, in certain circumstances, be subject
to generation rate surcharges. In October 2005, Electric Utility
was notified by the only alternative electric generation supplier in
its service territory that it would cease providing electric genera-
tion service during the first quarter of Fiscal 2008.

Consistent with the terms of the POLR Settlement, Electric
Utility’s POLR rates increased 4.5% on January 1, 2005 and 3%

on January 1, 2006 (a total of 75% above the total rates in effect _

on December 31, 2004). Electric Utility is permitted to further
increase its POLR rates annually in January of 2007 2008 and
2009. Electric Utility expects to increase its POLR rates effective
January 1, 2007 which will affect all metered customers. This
increase is expected to raise the average cost 1o residential cus-
tomers by approximately 35% over the costs in effect during cal-
endar year 2006. Electric Utility is also permitted to and has
entered into multiple-year fixed-rate POLR service contracts with
certain of its customers. The PUC is currently developing post-
rate-cap POLR regulations that are expected to further define
POLR service cbligations and pricing.

We account for the operations of Gas Utility and Electric Utility
in accordance with SFAS No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types of Regulation”.{"SFAS 71"). SFAS 71 requires us to
record the effects of rate regulation in the financial statements.
SFAS 71 allows us to defer expenses and revenues on the bal-
ance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when it is probable
that those expenses and incorme will be allowed in the ratemaking
process in a period different from the period in which they would
have been reflected in the income staterment of an unregulated
company. These deferred assets and liabilities are then flowed
through the income statement in the period in which the same
amounts are included in rates and recovered from or refunded to
customers. As required by SFAS 71, we monitor our regulatary
and competitive environments to determine whether the recovery
of our regulatory assets continues to be probable. If we were to
determine that recovery of these regulatory assets is no longer
probable, such assets would be written off against earnings. We
believe that SFAS 71 continues to apply to our regulated opera-
tions and that the recovery of our regulatory assets is probable. .

Manufactui'ed Gas Plants

From the late 1800s through the mid-1900s, UGI Utilities and its
former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of manufac-
tured gas plants ("MGPs”} prior to the general availability of
natural gas. Some constituents of coal tars and other residues
of the manufactured gas process are today constdered haz-
ardous substances under the Superfund Law and may be pres-
ent on the sites of former MGPs. Between 1882 and 1953, UGI
Utilities owned the stock of subsidiary gas companies in
Pennsylvania and elsewhere and also operatéd the businesses
of some gas companies under agreement. Pursuant to the
requirements of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935,
UGI Utilities divested all of its utility operations other than those
which now constitute UG| Gas and Electric Utility.

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for investigation and
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rermediation of hazardous substances at Pennsylvania MGP
sites to be material to its results of operations because UGH
Gas is currently permitted to include in rates, through future -
base rate proceedings, prudently incurred remediation costs
associated with such sites. In accordance with existing regula-
tory practices of the PUC, PNG Gas amortizes as removal ¢cost
over a five-year period site- specafuc environmental investigation
and remediation costs.

As a result of the acquisition of PG Energy by UG! Utilities’
wholly-owned subsidiary, UGIPNG, UGIPNG became party to a

. Muiti-Site Remediation Consent Qrder and Agreement between

PG Energy and the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental
Protection dated March 31, 2004 ("Mult1-S|te Agreement”}. The
Multi-Site Agreement requires UGIPNG to perform annually a
specified level of activities associated with environmental
investigation and remediation work at eleven currently owned
properties on which MGP-related facilities were operated
{"Properties”). Under the Multi-Site Agreement, UGIPNG is not
required to spend more than $1.1 million in any calendar year for
such environmental expenditures, including costs to perform
work on the Properties. Costs related to investigation and reme-
diation of one property formesly owned by UGIPNG are also
included in this cap. The Multi-Site Agreement terminates at the
end of fifteen years but may be terminated by either party at the
end of any two-year period beginning with the effective date.

UGI Utilittes has been notified of several sites outside
Pennsylvania on which private parties allege MGPs were for-
merly owned or operated by it or owned or operated by its for-
mer subsidiaries. Such parties are investigating the extent of
environmental contamination or performing environmental
remediation. UGI Utilities is currently litigating four claims
against it relating to out-of-state sites. We accrue environmental
investigation and cleanup costs when it is probable that a liabili-
ty exists and the amount or range of amounts ¢an be reason-
ably estimated.

Management believes that under applicable Iaw UGI Utilities
shoutd not be liable in those instances in which a former sub-
sidiary owned or operated an MGP There could be, however,
significant future costs of an uncertain amount associated with
envircnmental damage caused by MGPs outside Pennsylvania
that UGI Utilities directly operated, or that were owned or oper-
ated by former subsidiaries of UGI Utilities, if a court were to
conclude that (1} the subsidiary's separate corporate form
should be disregarded or {2) UGl Utilities should be considered
to have heen an operator because of its conduct with respect
to its subsidiary's MGP

On September 22, 2006, South Carolina Electric & Gas ‘
Company {*SCE&G"), a subsidiary of SCANA Corporation, filed
a lawsuit against UGI Utilities in the District Court of South
Carolina seeking contribution from UG Utilities for past and
future remediation costs related to the operations of a former
MGP located in Charleston, South Carolina. SCE&G asserts that
the plant operated from 1855 to 1954 and alleges that UGI
Utilities contralled operations of the plant from 1910 10 1926
and is liable for 47% of the costs associated with the site.
SCE&G asserts that it has spent approximately $22 million in
remediation costs and $26 million in third-party claims relating
to the site and estimates that future remediation costs could be
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as. hlgh as $2.5 million. SCE&G further asserts that it has.
received a demand from the United-States Justice Depariment
for natural resource damages. UGI Utilities believes that it has
good defenses to this claim and is defending the suit,

In Aprit 2003, Citizens Communications Company (" Citizens™)
served a complaint naming UGI Utilities as a third-party defendant
in a civil action pending in the United States District for the District
of Mame In that action, the plaintiff, City of Bangor, Maine
{"City") sued Citizens 1o recover environmental response costs
associated with MGP wastes generated at a plant allegedly oper-
ated by Citizens' predecessors at a site on the Penobscot River.
Citizens subsequently joined UG Utilities and ten other third-party
defendants alleging that the third-party defendants are responsible
for an equitable share of costs Citizens may be required to pay to
the City for cleaning up tar deposits in the Penobscot River.
Chizens alieges that UGI Utilities and its predecessors owned and
operated the ptant from 1901 to 1928. Studies conducted by the
City and Citizens suggest that it could cost up to $18 million to
clean up the river. Citizens' third party claims have been stayed
pending a resotution of the City’s suit against Citizens, which was
tried-in September 2005. Maine’s Department of Environmental
Protection {“DEP"} informed UGI Utilities in March 2005 that it
considers UG Utilities to be a potentially responsible party for
costs incurred by the State of Maine related to gas plant contami-
nants at this site. On June 27 2006, the court issued an order
finding Citizens responsible for 60% of the cleanup costs. The
armount of Citizens’ liability has not been finally determined. The
court has stayed further proceedings while the City and Citizens
discuss settlement. UGI Utilities believes that it has good defens-
es to Citizens’ claim and to any claim that the DEP may bring to
recover its costs, and is defending the Citizens’ suit.

By letter dated July 29, 2003, Atlanta Gas Light Company
{"AGL"} served UGI Utilities with a complaint filed in the United
States District Court for the Middle District of Florida in which
AGL alleges that UGI Utilities is responsible for 20% of approxi-
mately $8 million incurred by AGL in the investigation and remedi-
ation of a former MGP site'in St. Augustine, Florida. UGI Utilities
formerty owned stock of the St. Augustine Gas Company, the
owner and operator of the MGF On March 22, 2005, the trial
court granted UGI Utilities’ motion for summary judgment. AGL
appealed and on September 6, 2008, the Eleventh Circuit Court
of Appeals affirmed the trial court’s entry of summary |udgment
effectively terminating the case.

AGL previously informed UGI Utilities that it was mvesngat-
ing contamination that appeared to be related.to MGP opera-
tions at a.site owned by AGL in Savannah, Georgia. A former
subsidiary of UGI Utilities operated the MGP in the early 1900s.
AGL has informed UGI Utilities that it has begun remediation of
MGP wastes at the site and believes that the total cost of
remediation could be as high as $55 million. AGL has not fited
suit against UGI Utilities for a share of these costs. UGI Utilities
believes that it will have good defenses to any action that may
arise out of this site.

On September 20, 2001, Consolidated Edison Company of
New York (“ConEd") filed suit against UGI Utilities in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York,
seeking contribution from UGI Utilities for an allocated share of
response costs associated with investigating and assessing gas

plant related contamination at former MGP -sites in Westchester,
County, New York. The complaint a!leges that UG Utilities
“owned and operated” the MGPs prior to 1904. The complaint
also seeks a declaration that UG| Utilities is responsible for an ™
allocated percentage of future investigative and remedial costs
at the sites. ConEd believes that the cost of remediation for all

of the sites could exceed $70 million.

The trial court granted UGI WUtilities” motion for summary judg-
ment and dismissed ConEd’s complaint. The grant of summary’
judgment was entered April 1, 2004, ConkEd appealed and on
September 9, 2005 a panel of the Second Circuit Court of
Appeals affirmed in part and reversed in part the decision of the
trial court. The appellate panel affirmed the trial court’s decision
dismissing claims that UG! Utilities was liable under CERCLA as
an operator of MGPs owned and operated by its former sub-
sidiaries. The appellate pane! reversed the trial court’s decision
that UGI Utilities was refeased from liability at three sites where
UG| Utilities operated MGPs under lease. On October 7 2005,
UGI Utilities filed for reconsideration of the panel’s order, which
was denied by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January
17 2006. On April 14, 2006, Utilities filed a petition requesting
that the United States Supreme Court review the-decision of the
Second Circuit Court of Appeals. On October 2, 20086, the
Supreme Court enteréd an order inviting the Solicitor General to
file a brief expressing the views of the United States-in this case.

By letter dated June-24, 2004, KeySpan Energy {“KeySpan”)
informed UGI Utilities that KeySpan has spant $2.3 million and
expects to spend another $11 million to clean up an MGP site it
owns in Sag Harbor, New York, KeySpan believes that UGI
Utilittes is respeonsible for approximately 50% of these costs as
a result of UGI Utilities” alleged direct ownership and operation
of the plant from 1885 to 1902. By letter dated June 6, 2006,
KeySpan reported that the New York Department of
Environmental Conservation has approved a remedy for the site
that is estimated to cost approximately $10 million. KeySpan-
believes that the cost could be as high'as $20 million. UGI
Utilities is in the process of’ rewewmg the mformanon prowded
by KeySpan and is investigating this claim.

On September 11, 2006, UGI Utilities received a complaint
filed by Yankee Gas Services Company and Connectlcut nght
and Power Company, subsidiaries’ of Northeast Uuhtles (togeth-
er the “Northeast Companies”), in the United States District
caurt for the District of Connecticut seeking contribution from
UGI Utilities for past and future remediation costs related to
MGP operations o thirteen sites owned by the Northeast
Companies in nine cities in the State of Connecticut. The
Northeast Companies allege that UGl Utilities controlted opera-
tions of the plants from 1883 to 1941. The'Northeast Companies
estimated that remediation costs for all of the sites would total
approximately $215 million and asserted that UG Utilities is
responsible for approximately $103 million of this amount. Based
on information supplied by the Northeast Companies and UGI
Utilities” own investigation, UGI Utilities believes that it may have
operated one of the sites, Waterbury North, under lease for a
portion of its operating history. UGI Utilities is reviewing the
Northeast Companies’ estimate that remediation costs at
Waterbury Nerth could total $23 million. UG Utilities believes
that it has good defenses to this claim and is defending the suit.
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Antargaz Tax Matters

French tax authorities levy various taxes on legal entities and
individuals regularly operating a business in France which.are
commoenly referred to collectively as "business tax” The .
amount of business tax charged annually is generally dependent
upon the value of the entity's tangible fixed assets. Prior to the
Antargaz Acquisition, Antargaz filed suit against French tax
authorities in connection with the assessment.of business tax
related to the tax treatment of certain of its owned tanks at
customer locations. Eif Antar France and EIf Aquitaine, now

" Toal France, former owners of Antardaz, agréed to'indennify .~

Antargaz for all payments that would have been due from
Antargaz in respect of the tax related to its tanks for the period
from January 1, 1997 through December 31, 2000. Antargaz
has recorded liabilities for business taxes related to various
classes of equipment. On February 4, 2005, Antargaz received
a letter that was issued by the French government to the French
Committee of Butane and Propane (“CFBP"}, a butane/propane
industry group, concerning the business tax, that eliminated the
requirernent for Antargaz to pay business tax associated with
tanks at certain customer locations. In addition, during Fiscal
2005, resolution was reached relating-to business taxes relating
to a prior year. Further changes in the French government’s
interpretation of the tax laws or in the tax laws themselves
could have either an adverse or a favorable effect on our results
of operations. Qur 2005 Consolidated Statement of lncome
includes a pre-tax gain of $18.8 million and a net aftertax gain
of $14.2 million associated with the resolution of certain busi-
ness tax matters related principally to prior years. |

Market Risk Disclosures

Our primary market risk exposures are {1} market prices for
propane and other LPG, natural gas and electricity; {2} changes
in interest rates; and (3} foreign currency exchange rates.

The risk associated with flﬂptuations in the prices the
Partnership-and our International Propane operations pay for
LPG is principally a result of market forces refiecting changes in
supply and demand for propane and other energy commodities.
Their profitability is sensitive.to changes in LPG supply costs.
Increases in supply costs are generally passed on o customers.
International Propane and the Partnership may not, howevaer,
glways be able to pass through product cost increases fully or
on a timely basis, Partlcularly when product costs rise rapidly. In
order to reduce the volatility of LPG market price risk, the
Partnership uses contracts for the forward purchase or sale of
prapane, propane fixed-price supply agreements, and over-the-
counter derivative commodity instruments including price swap
and option contracts and Antargaz hedges a portion of its future
U.S. dollar denominated LPG product purchases through the
use of forward foreign exchange contracts. Antargaz may also
enter into other contracts, similar to those used by the
Partnership. Flaga has and may use derivative commaodity
instruments to reduce market risk associated with a portion of
its propane purchases. Currently, Flaga's hedging activities are
not material to the Company's financial pesition or results of
operations. Over-the-counter derivative commaodity instruments

utilized to hedge forecasted purchases of propane are generally
settled at expiration of. the contract. In order to minimize credit
risk associated with its derivative commodity contracts, the
Partnership monitors established credit fimits with the contract -
counterparties. Although we use derivative financial and com-
maodity instruments to reduce market price risk associated with
forecasted transactions, we do not use derivative financial and -
commodity instruments for speculative or trading purposes.
Gas Utility's tariffs contain clauses that permit recovery of
substantially all of the prudently.incurred costs of natural gas it
sells to its customers. The recovery clauses provide for periodic

“adiustments for the difference between the total amourits actu-

ally collected from customers through PGC rates and the recov-
erable costs incurred. Because of this ratemaking mechanism,
there is limited commeodity price rlsk assocuated wuth our Gas
Utility operations. v

Electric Utility purchases its electric power needs from electrici-
ty suppliers under fixed-price energy and capacity contracts and,
to a much lesser extent, on the spot market. Prices for electricity
can be volatile especially during periods of high demand or tight
supply. As previously mentioned and in acéordance with POLR
settlements approved by the PUC, Electric Utility may increase its
POLR rates up to certain limits through Becember 31, 2009. In
accordance with these settlements, Electric Utility increased its
POLR rates by 4.5% on January 1, 2005 and by 3% on January 1,
2006 (a total of 75% above the total rates in effect on December
31, 2004). Electric Utility is permitted, but not required, to further
increase its POLR rates annually in January of 2007 2008 and
2009. Electric Utility expects to increase its POLR rates effective
January 1, 2007 which will affect all metered customers. This
increase is expected to raise the average cost to residential cus-
tomers by approximately 35% over the costs in effect during cal-
endar year 2006. Wholesale prices for electricity can be volatile,
especially during periods of high demand or tight supply. Currenthy,
Electric Utility's fixed-pricé contracts with electricity suppliers miti-
gate most risks associated with the POLR service rate limits in
effect through December 31, 2008, With respect to its existing
fixed-price power and capacity contracts, should any of the coun-
terparties fail to provide electric power or capacity under the
terms of such contracts, any increases in the cost of replacement
power or capacity could negatively impact Electric Utility results,
In order to reduce this nonperformance risk, Electric Utility has
diversified its purchases across several suppliers and entered into
bilateral coilateral arrangements with certain of them. From time
to time, Electric Utility enters into electric price swap agreements
to reduce the volatility in the cost of a portion of its anticipated
electricity requirements. At September 30, 2006, Electric Utility
had an electric price swap agreement associated with purchases
of a portion of electricity anticipated to occur in 2007

In order to manage market price risk relating to substantially
all of Energy Services’ fixed-price sales contracts for natural
gas, Energy Services purchases exchange-traded and overthe-
counter natural gas futures contracts or enters into fixed-price
supply arrangements. Energy. Services’ exchange-traded natural
gas futures contracts are guaranteed by the New York
Mercantile Exchange {"NYMEX") and have nominal credit risk.
The change in market value of these contracts generally

-
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- require$ daily cash deposits in margin accounts with brokers. At
September 30, 2006, Energy Services has $11.5 million of .
restrictéd.cash on'deposit in such margin accounts. Although
Energy Services' fixed-price supply arrangements mitigate most

-risks associated with its fixed-price sales contracts, should any
of the natural gas suppliers under these arrangements fail to
perform, increases, if any, in the cost of replacement natural
gas would adversely impact Energy Services' resuits. In order
1o reduce this risk of supplier nonperformance, Energy Services
has diversified its purchases across a number of suppliers.

UGID has entered into fixed-price sales agreements for a
portlon of the electncny expected to be generated by its inter-

T ests.m electnc generatron assets. In the event that these gener-
atlon assets would not be able to produce all of the electricity
needed| to supply electncr(y under these agreements, UGID
would be requwed {0 purchase such electncny on the spot mar-
ket or under contract with other efectricity suppllers
Accordlngly |ncreases in the cost of replacement power | cou!d
negatlvely lmpact ‘the Company’s results.

Asset Management has entered and may continue to enter -
“into fixed- -price sales agreements for a portion of its propane
, sales. In order 1o manage the market prlce risk relatlng to sub-

' stantlally all of |ts fixed- price sales contracts for propane Asset
Management enters into price swap and optlon tontracts:

We have both fixed-rate and-variable-rate debt. Changes in
interest: rates.impact the.cash:flows of variable-raté debt but
generally do not impact its fair value.” Conversely, changes in
interest rates impact the fair value of fixed-rate debt but do not
impact their cash flows.

Our variable-rate debt includes borrowings under AmeriGas
QOLP’s Credit Agreement, UGI Utilities” short-term borrowings
and a substantial portion of Antargaz’' and Flaga's debt. These
debt agreements have interest rates that are generally indexed
to short-term market interest rates. At September 30, 2006 and
2005, combined borrowings outstanding under these agree-
ments totaled $771.1 million and $400.6 million, respectively,
Antargaz has effectively fixed the interest rate on its variable-rate
debt through March 2011 through the use of interest rate swaps.
Excluding the fixed porticn of Antargaz’ variable-rate debt, based
upon weighted average borrowings outstanding under variable-
rate agreements during Fiscal 2006 and Fiscal 2005, an increase
in short “term interest rates of 100 basis points {1%) would have
increased our interest expense by $2.1 million and $2.4 million,
respectively. (n November 2006, Fiaga effectively fixed the rate
of interest for the duration of its term loan by entering into an
interest rate swap agreement. )

The remainder of our debt outstanding is subject to fixed
rates of interest. A 100 basis point increase in market interest
rates would result in decreases in the fair value of this fixed-
rate debt of $975 million and $68.0 million at September 30,
2006 and 2005, respectively. A 100 basis point decrease in mar-
ket interest rates would result in increases in the fair value of
this fixed-rate debt of $109.1 million and $74.4 million at
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Cur long-term debt is typically issued at fixed rates of inter-
est based upon market rates for debt having similar terms and
credit ratings. As these long-term debt issues mature, we may
refinance such debt with new debt having interest rates reflect-

t - -

-
o

ing then-current market: condltlons This. debt- may have’an.inter:
est rate that is more or less than the refinanced debt. In order .
to reduce interest rate risk associated with near to-medium: -
term forecasted issuances of fixed-rate debt, we may enter- into
interest rate-protection agreements. Our primary exchange-rate
risk is associated with the U.S. dollar versus the eurc. The U.S.
dollar value of our foreign-denominated assets and liabilities will
fluctuate with changes in the associated foreign currency
exchange rates. We use derivative instruments to hedge por-
tions of our net investment in foreign subsidiaries {“net invest-
ment-hedges”). Realized gains or losses associated with net
investments in foreign operations remain in other comprehen-
sive income until such foreign operations are liquidated. At
September 30, 2008, we have no unsettied net investment
hedges. With respect to our net investments in Flaga and
Antargaz, a 10% decline in the value of the euro versus the U.S.
dollar, excluding the effects of any net investment hedges,*
would reduce their aggregate net book value by approximately
$60.4 miltion, which amount would be reflected in other com-
prehensive income.

The foliowing table summarizes the fair values of unsettled
market risk sensitive derivative |nstrurnents held at September ,
30, 2006 and 2005 Falr values reflect the estrmated amounts
that we would receive or lpayl to termlnate the contracts at the
reporting date based upon quoted market prices of comparable
contracts at September 30, 2006. The table also includes the
changes in fair value that would result if there were a ten per-
cent adverse change in (1} the market price of propane; (2) the
market price of natural gas; (3) the market price of electricity;
(4) interest rates on ten-year U.S. treasury notes and the three-
month Euribor and; {5) the value of the euro versus the U.S. dol-
lar. Gas Utility’s exchange traded natural gas call option and
futures contracts are excluded from the table below because
any associated net gains or losses are included in Gas Utility’s '
PGC recovery mechanism. '

_ . .Change in
Fair Value.  Fair Value
{Millions of dollars)

September 30, 2006
Propane commodity price risk $26.4) - $(21.2)
Natural gas commaodity price risk _ (6.0} {10‘.4)
Electricity commodity price risk 5.2 1.3
Interest rate risk 144 (12.9)
Foreign currency exchange rate risk 24 {13.8)

September 30, 2005:
Propane commodity price risk $50.8 $(19.6}
Natural gas commaodity price risk {19) 7.2}
Elgctricity commodity price risk .B.1 - (1.4}
Interest rate risk (6.2) (3.9)
Foreign currency exchange rate risk 7.5 (16.3)

Because the Company's derivative instruments generally gualify
as hedges under SFAS 133, we expect that changes in the fair
value of derivative instruments used to manage commodity or
interest rate market risk wouid be substantially offset by gains
or losses on the associated anticipated transactions. -
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Financial Review {continued)

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in
compliance with accounting:principles generally accepted in the |
United. States of America requires the selection and application of
appropriate accounting principles to the refevant facts and circum-
stances of the Company's operations and the use of estimates -
- made by management. The Company has identified the following
critical accounting policies and estimates that are most important
to the portrayal of the Company’s financial condition and results
of operations. Changes in these policies and estimates could
have a,;materialieffection;the,financialstatementsyihe, aggggatloryw_

managementi’s most subjective or complex judgments regarding
estimates and projected outcornes of future events which could
have a material impact on the financial statements. Management
has reviewed these critical accounting policies, and the estimates
and assumptions associated with thern, with the Cormpany’s
Audit Committee. In addition, management has reviewed the fol-
lowing disclosures regarding the application of these critical
accounting policies and estimates with the Audit Committee.

Litigation Accruals and Environmental Remediation Liabilities.
We are involved in litigation regarding pending ¢laims and legal
actions that arise in the normal course of our businesses. In
addition, UGI Utilities and its former subsidiaries owned and
operated a number of MGPs in Pennsylvania and elsewhere, and
UGIPNG owned and Operated a number of MGP sites located in
Pennsylvania, at which hazardous substances may be present. In
accordance with accountmg principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, the Company establishes reserves for
pending claims and legal actions or environmental remediation
obligations when it is probable that a liability exists and the
amount or fange of amounts can be reasonably estimated.
Reasonable estimates involve menagement judgments based on
a broad range of information and prior experience. These judg-
ments are reviewed quarterly as more information is received
and the amounts reserved are updated as necessary. Such esti-
mated reserves rmay differ materialty from the actual liability and
such reserves may change materially as more information
becomes available and estimated reserves are adjusted.

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. Gas Utility and Electric Utility
are subject to regulation by the PUC. In accordance with SFAS
71, we record the effects of rate regulation in our financial state-
ments as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities. We continually
assess whether the regulatory assets are probable of future
recovery by evaluating the regulatory environment, recent rate
orders and public statements issued by the PUC, and the status
of any pending deregulation legislation. If future recovery of regu-
iatory assets ceases to he probable, the elimination of those reg-
ulatory assets would adversely impact our results of operations
and cash flows. As of September 30,. 2006, our regulatory assets
totaled $72.9 million. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements,

Depreciation and Amortization of Long-lived Assets. We com-
pute depreciation on UGI Utilities' property, plant and equipment
on a straight-line basis over the average remaining lives of its-
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various classes of depreciable property and on our other proper-
ty, plant and equipment on-a straight-line basis over estimated
useful lives generally ranging from 2 to 40 years, We also use
amortization methods and determine asset:values of intangible
assets other than goodwill using reasonable assumptions.and
projections. Changes in the estimated useful lives of-property, .
plant and equipment and changes in intangible asset amortiza-
tion methods or values could have a material effect on our
results of operations. As of September 30, 2006, our net proper-
ty, plant and equipment totaled $2,214.7 million.and we record-.
ed deprec;atson expense of $130 _mllilon dunng Flscal 2006 L

enters |nto matenal busmess combmat:ons In accbrdance with
SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations” {“SFAS 141"}, the pur-
chase price is allocated to the various assets and liabilities
acquired at their estimated fair value. Fair values of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are based upon available informa-
tion and we may involve an independent third party to perform an
appraisal. Estimating fair values can be a complex and judgmentat
area and most commonly impacts property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets; including those with indefinite fives.
Generally, we have, if necessary. up to one year from the acquisi-
tion date to finalize the purchase price allocation.

Impairment of Goodwill. Certain of the Company’s businass
units have goodwill resulting from purchase busingss combina-
tions. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” ("SFAS 142"), each of our reporting units with
goodwill.is required to perform impairment tests annually or -
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the value of .
goodwill may be impaired. In order to perform these impairment
tests, management must determine the reporting unit's fair value
using quoted rmarket prices or, in the absence of quoted market
prices, valuation techniques which use discounted estimates. of .
future cash flows to be generated by the reporting unit. These
cash flow estimates involve management judgments-based on a
broad range of information and historical results. To the extent
estimated cash flows are revised downward, the reporting unit
may be required 1o write down all or a.portion of. its goodwill -
which would adversely impact our results of operations. As of
September 30, 2006, our goodwill totaled $1,418.2 million.

Deflned Benefit Pension Plans. The costs of providing benefits
under our Pension Plan is dependent on historical mformetron such
as employee age, length of service, level of compensation and the
actual rate of return on plan assets. In addition, certain assump-_
tions relating to the future are used to determlne pen5|on expense
including the discount rate applied to ‘benefit obhgatlons the
expected rate of return on plan assets and the rate of compensa-
tion increase, among others. Pension Plan assets are held in trust
and consist principally of equity and.fixed incorme mutual funds.
Changes in plan assumptions as well as fluctuations in actual equi-
ty or bond market returns could have a material impact on future
pension costs. We believe the two most critical assumptions are
the expected rate of return on plan assets and the 'diec_:ount rate.
An unfavorable change in the expected rate of return on plan
assets of 50 basis points would result in an increase in pre-tax pen-
sion expense of approximately $1.4 million in Fiscal 2007 An unfa-
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vorable ?::hange in-the discount rate of 50 basis points would result
in an increase in pre-tax pension expense of approximately $1.6.
milliort in Fiscal 2007 .

IncorneTaxes We use the asset and liability method of account-
mg fori mcome taxes. Under this method, income tax expense is
recogmzed for the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the

.current year and for deferred tax liabilities and assets for the, -

future tax consequences ‘of events that have been recognlzed in~
our financial statements or tax returns. We use assumptions,
judgments and estimates to determine our current provision for
income taxes. We also use assumptions, judgments and esti-
mates to determine our deferred tax assets and liabilities and any
valuation allowance to be recorded against a deferred tax asset.
Our assumptions judgmenis and estimates relative to the cur-
rent provision for income tax give consideration 10 current tax
laws, our mterpretatlon of current tax laws and possible out-
comes of current and future audits conducted by foreign and
domestic tax authorities. Changes in tax law or our interpretation
of such and the resolution of current and future tax audits could
significantly impact the amounts provided for income taxes in our
consohdated financial statements. Our assumptlons Judgments
and estimates relatwe to the amount of deferred income taxes
take :nto account estimates of the amount of future ‘taxable
mcome and actual operating results in future years could render
our current assumptions, judgments and estimates inaccurate.
Any of the assurmptions, judgments and estimates mentioned
above could cause our actual income tax obligations to differ sig-
nificantly from our estimates. As of September 30, 2006, our net
deferred tax liabilities were $435.6 million.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Below is a listing of recently issued accounting pronocuncements
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board or guidance provid-
ed by the SEC. See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial
Staterments for additional discusston of such pronouncements.

Title of Guidance Month of Issue

SFAS No. 156, "Accounting for Servicing of Financial

Assets - An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 140" March 2006
FASB Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty

in Income Taxes” June 2006 -
SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measures” September 2006
SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit

Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of

FASB Statement Nos. 87, B8, 106, and 132(R})" September 2006
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the

Effects of Prior Year Misstatements in Current Year

Financial Statements” September 2006

" oo P
- - T

Forward- Lookmg Statements

Information contalned in this Fmancnal Rewew and- elsewhere in
this Annual Report may contain forward-locking statements. -
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933
and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Such
statements use forward-locking words such as "believe,”

“plan” Zanticipate,”; “continue, “estimate,* "expect may,’. .~
"will” or other sumllar words. These statements discuss.plans,
strategies, events or developments that we expect or anticipate

will or may occur in the future.

A forward-looking statement may include a statement of the
assumptions or bases underlying the forward-looking state-
ment. We believe that we have chosen these assumptions or
bases in good faith and that.they are reasonable. However, we
caution you that actual results almost atways vary from
assumed facts or bases, and the differences between actual
results and assumed.-facts or bases can be material, depending
on the circumstances. When considering forward-looking state-
ments, you should keep in mind the following important factors
which could affect our future results and could cause those
results to.differ materially from those expressed in our forward-
looking statements: {1) adverse weather conditions resulting in
reduced demand; {2} cost volatility and availability of propane .
and other LPG, oil, electricity, and natural gas and the capacity -
to transport product to our market areas, (3} changes in domes-,
tic and foreign laws and regulations, including safety, tax and
accounting matters; (4) competitive pressures from the same -
and alternative energy sources; (5) failure to acquire new cus- . |
tomers thereby reducing or limiting any increase in revenues;
(6) liability for environmental claims; {7) increased customer
conservation measures due to high energy prices and improve-
ments in energy efficiency and technology resuiting in reduced
demand; {8} adverse labor relations; (3} large customer, counter-
party or supplier defaults; (10) liability in excess of insurance * "
coverage for personal injury and property damage arising from '
explosions and other catastrophic events, including acts of ter-
rorism, resulting from operating hazards and risks incidental to
generating and distributing electricity and transporting, storlng
and distributing natural gas, propane and LPG; (11} political, reg-
ulatory and ecenomic conditions in the United States and in for-
eign countries; including foreign cufrency rate fluctuations, par-’
ticularly in the euro; {12} reduced access to cépital markets and
interest rate fluctuations; {13} reduced distributions from sub-
sidiaries; and {14) the timing and success of the Company's
efforts 1o develop new business opportunltles '

These factors are not necessanly all of the important factors
that could cause actual results to differ materually from those *’
expressed in any of our forward- -looking statements. Other
unknown or unpredictable factors could also have material
adverse effects on future results. We undertake no obligation to
update publicly any forward-looking statement whether as a
result of new information or future events except as required by
the federal securities laws.

rou
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Report of Management

Financial Statements .

The Company’s consolidated financial statements and other
financial information contained in this Annual Report are pre-.
pared by managerment, which is responsible for their fairness,
integrity and objectivity. The consolidated financial statements
and related information were prepared in accordance with -
accounting principles generally accepted-in the-United States of
America and include amounts that are based on managements
best judgments and estimates.

- The Audit Committee of the Board of Drrectors is composed ”

of three members, none of whom is an employee of the
Company. This Cormmittee is responsible for overseeing the -
financial reporting process and the adequacy of internal control
and for monitoring the independence and performance of the - -
Company's independent registered public accouriting firm and -
internal auditors. The Committee is also responsible for main-
taining direct channels of communication among the Board of ~
Directors, management, and both the independent reglstered
public accounting firm and internal auditors.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP our independent registered
public accounting firm, is engaged to parform audits of our con:
solidated financial statements. These audits are performed in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our independent
registered public accounting firm was given unrestricted access
to all financial records and related data, including minutes of alt’
meetings of the Board of Directors and committees of the
Board. The Company believes that all representations made to
the independent registered public accounting firm during their
audits were valid and appropriate. iz -

.

Management’s Report on

Intemal Control over Financial Reportmg

Management is responsible for establishing and malntamlng
adequate internal control over financial reporting for the
Company. In order to evaluate the effectiveness of internal con-
trol over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, management has conducted an
assessment, including testmg of the Company's internal control
over financial reporting, using the criteria in. Internal Control -
integrated Framework, issued by the Commiittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commrssmn {("COSO
Framework '}. The scope of that assessment excluded the PG
Energy business acquired on.August 24, 2006 by UGl Penn
Natural Gas, Inc. {"UGIPNG”). As of September 30, 2006,
UGIPNG's total assets represented .approximate'ly 13% of the
Company's. consolidated total assets and.less than 1% of its
revenues. Such exclusion is permitted based upon current guid-
ance of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission.

Internal control over financial reporting refers to the process
designed by, and under the supervision of, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to provide reasonable, but -
not absolute, assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reportrng and the preparation of financial statements for exter-
nal purposes in accordance wrth accountrng principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and incfudes’policies
and procedures that, among other th:ngs provrdes reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded and that transactions are
executed in accordance with management's authorization and
are properly recorded t permit the preparation of réliable finan-
cial information. Because of its inherent limitations, internal con-
trol over financial reportrng may not prevent or detect mlsstate—
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectweness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may becorne
inadequate due to changing conditions, or the degree of comph-
ance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Based on its assessment, management has concluded that
the Company maintained effective internal contral over financial
reporting as of September 30, 2006, based on the COSO
Framework. Management's assessment of the effectiveness of the

- Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of September

30, 2006, has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP an
independent registered public accountmg frrrn as stated in their
report which follows.

Lon R. Greenberg
Chief Executive Officer

Anthony J. Mendicino
Chief Financial Officer

Michael J. Cuzzolina
Chief Accounting Officer
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To the_iBoard‘uf Directors and Stockholders of UGI Corporation:

We have completed-integrated audits of UG! Corporation’s 2006

and 2005 consolidated financial statements and of its interna!
control‘over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006 and
an audit of its 2004 consolidated financial statements in accor-
dance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our
audits, are presented below.

Consolidated Financial Statements

In gur opinion, the accompanying censolidated balance sheets
and the related consolidated statements of income, stockhold-
ers’ equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of UGI Corporation and its subsidiaries at
September 30, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their opera-
tions and their cash flows for each of the three vears in the
period ended September 30, 20086 in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is 10 express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with
the ‘standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and eval-
uating the overall financial staternent presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 8 1o the consolidated financial
statements effective October 1, 2005, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R)
“Share-Based Payment (revised 2004)

Interna! Control over Financial Reporting

Also, in our opinion, maﬁégement‘s assessment, included in the
accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting, that the Company maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of September 30,
2006 based on criteria established in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ), is fairly
stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria.
Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in ali
material respects, effective internal contral aver financial report-
ing as of September 30, 20086, based on criteria established in
Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSO.
The Company's management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over finan-
cial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on man-
agement’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our

Rei)o:rt of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. -~ . - .. . e

audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial
reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public -
Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those -
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management'’s assessment, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control, and performing such other procedures as we consider
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit pro-
vides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finan-
cial statements for external purposes in accordance with gener-
ally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal con-
trol over financial reporting includes those policies and proce-
dures that (i} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in rea-
sonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; {ii) provide reason-
able assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accor-
dance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and {iii}) provide reasonable assurance regarding pre-
vention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inade-
quate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.,

As described in Management's Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reparting, management has excluded the PG
Energy business from its assessment of internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2006 because it was
acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination -
on August 24, 2006. We have also excluded the PG Energy
business from our audit of internal control over financial report-
ing. The PG Energy business is a wholly-owned subsidiary
whose total assets represent approximately 13% of total con-
solidated assets and total revenues represent less than 1% of
total consclidated revenues as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2006,

pmw&h\lma_ﬁw-(u@ cef

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
December 8, 2006
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Consolidated Balance Sheets. - - R .
{Millions of dollars)

%

"+ + Septermber 30,

Assets o : - - 2006 2005

Cument Assets T ) ' ’

Cash and cash equivalents 7 o ' $ 186.2 $ 3101

Restricted cash ) ‘ 14.2 4.9

Short-term investments (at cost, which approximates fair value) . " 0.6 70.0

Accounts receivable (less allowances for doubtful accounts of $38.0 and $29.2, respectively} 3872 4218
10.4

Accrued utallty revenues. . . ... . , 16.6

Income taxes.recoverable S . . - . Co 1.0

Derivative financial instruments ; L 5.8 60.3
Prepaid expenses and other current assets : ' 22.7. 305
Total current assets SR - ' ' . 1,040.6 11723
Property, Plant and Equipment- . .
AmeriGas Propane . . 1,211.8 . - 1, 162 £ %
International Propane Lo : 588.0 541 8
UGI Utilities - o - 1,563.9 985.7
Other : 1076° 98.3
' 3,461.3 ©2,789.6
Accumulated deprematlon and amortization : . {1,246.6) {986.9)
Net property, plant, and equipment - 2,214.7 1,802.7
Other Assets ‘ .
Goodwill 1,418.2 1,231.2
intangible assets {less accumulated amortlzatlon of $62.8 and $45.4, respectwely) © 163.3 172.6
Utility regulatory assets : 72.9 613
Investments in equity investees 58.2 12.8
Other assets 126 - - 118.6
Total assets . $ 5,080.5

$4,5715

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Y et B T . o
T - e s .

; AT N September 30,
Liabilities and Stockholders’. Equity 2006 2005
Current Liabilities -
Current maturities of long-term debt $ 319 $ 2520
UGI Utilities bank loans 216.0 81.2
‘Other bank loans 9.4 "16.2
Accounts payable 373.0 399.7
Ernployee compensatlon and benefits accrued- L ) ‘ . : 75.4 - 786
Duwdends and interest accrued v ) ) o - 311 7 408
Income taxes accrued . P : o - . 401
Deposat§ and advances 3 ' ‘ R 1450 S 1240

‘ Derwatn.;e financial instruments ) " : o L _.‘1"27.6_ e B 78
Other cicrent iiabilities L : IR (VR 122.6
: Total Ccurrent liabilities : s . . ) 1,026.6 .. 1,183.1
l - :
Debt and Other Liabilities R
Long-term debt . : . 1,965.0 © [ 1.3925
Deferred income taxes T 4915 ] T 4775
Deferred investment tax credits 6.8 72
Other noncurrent liabilities 3515 3273
Total liabilities 3.841.4 3,3676
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Minority. interests, principally in AmeriGas Partners 139.5 206.3

\ w3 E 0 e RS
(':'ommo;1 Stockholdérs Equ‘lty Lo . - .- ) o -
Common Stock without par value ‘ - - ' o ) S

(alithorizéd — 300,000,000 shares; issued - 115 152,994 shares) = ' T 8075 793.6
Retained earnings . ' 3700 - .266.3
Accumulated other comprehensive {loss) income (3.8) 16.5
L o 1,173.7 1,076.4
Treasury stock, at cost (74.1) (78.8)

Total common stockholders’ equity ’ ' 1,099.6 ‘ 9976

Total liabilities and stockhotders’ equity $5,080.5 $4,5715
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Consolidated Statements-of Income
{Millions of dollars, except per share amounts} -

Year Ended September 30,

Lo

<3 P 2006, LT CUIYI2005 . 0 v o 2004
Revenues . - BT B
AmeriGas Propane - -~ $2,119.3 .- $1,963.3 ..$1,775.9
International Propane * 945.5 943.9 . . 333.4
UGI Utilities 822.0 681.2 650.1
Energy Services and other 1,334.2 1,300.3 . 1,025.3
' 5,221.0 14,8887 3.784.7
Costs and Expenses )
v nr-oC0OSt-0F 8AES - o it - 36579 _.33060 . _2.55]0
.Operating and admm:stratwe expenses - T .. 9692 7 -.9866 4 . 7678 -
Utility taxes other than income taxes 14.3 134 I* 12 5
Depreciation and amortlzatlon 148.7 146.4 132.3
Other income, net {36.8} (46.7} {10.2}
' 4,753.3 4,385.7 3,453.4
Operating Income 467.7 503.0 331.'3
Income {loss) from equity investees (2.2) (2.6) 1.3
Loss on extinguishments of debt {18.5) (33.6) } -
Interest expense .. {123.6) (130.2) - (119 1),
| lncome before IncomeTaxes and’ Mmorltv Interests T 3234 ' 336.6 c 223 5
' Income taxes . R ‘ : (98.5) - - {119.2) (64.4]
' Minarity interests, principally in AmeriGas Partners - (48.7) (29.9) (a7s)
Net Income ‘ $ 1762 '$ 71875 % M6
Earnings Per Common Share: )
Basic $ 167 -$ 181 8. 118
Diluted % 165 8 177, -$-115
Average Common Shares Outstanding (millions): T L T
Basic - - *105.455 .. “103.877 . L= 94,618
Diluted LT 106.727 105.723. 96.682
" See gccompanyiné n-otes to c_'onsolidated financia! statémen_ts. ) -
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Consolldated Statements of Cash Flows *
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% S S R BRI
(Mllhons of dollars) - - S '
! ]
. ! Year Ended September 30,
i 2006 2005 2004
.Cash Flows From Operatmg Act|wt|es _
Net income $ 176.2 $ 1875 $ 1116
Reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 148.7 146.4 132.3
Minority mterests principally i in AmenGas Partners _ 48.7 29.9 ) 47._?__ -
Deferired income taxes, net. S R 7 L ) I X I
“Provision for Uncollectible accounts - ' L - I X
Loss 'on extinguishments of debt Lo 185 ~ 7 ‘336, 0 7 "‘ T
© Tax beneﬁt on exercise of:stock options - 10.2 _ 29
Stock based compensation expense 6.9 - -
Net char\ge in settled accumulated other comprehensive income (3721) (3.8) . 9.0
QOther, net 10.3 {14.5) 9.4
Net change in:
Accounts receivable and accrued utility revenues 348 (81.5) 4.9
Inventories {31.9) (29.4} {39.4}
Deferred fuel costs (179} 9.5 (6.9
Accounts payable (61.1) 70.0 (49.7)
Other current assets and liabilities (49.1) 426 18.8
Net cash provided by operating activities 2794 4377 260.7
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment (191.7} (158.4} (133.7)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired {590.4) (33.3) {308.6)
Net proceeds from disposals of assets 8.8 16.7 s
Net proceeds from sale of Energy Ventures 133 . . — - -
Inyestments in'ZLH {10.1) - -
Decrease (increase) in short-term investments - 69.4 (20.0) -
Increasel' in restricted cash {9.3) (4.9 -
- «Other, net 25 36 . .18.0
Net cash used by investing activities {7075) {196.3) © {412.8)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
. Dividends on UGl Common Stock (72.5) 674) {56.3}
Distributions on AmeriGas Partners publicly held Common Units (73.6) (66.6) 62.4}
{ssuances of debt 1,145.4 576.0 30.1
Repayments of debt {918.3) {544°4) {774)
Increase {decrease) in UGI Utilities bank loans with maturities of three manths or less  204.8 {(49.7}) 20.2
Other bank loans {decrease) increase 2.2 03 o on
‘Redemption of UGI Utilities preferred shares subject to mandatory redemption - {(20.0 o=
Excess tax benefits from equity-based payment arrangements 0.9 - -
Issuances of AmeriGas Partners Common Units - 727 512
Issuances of UGI Cormmon Stock 10.8 271 -~ 2541
Repurchases of UGl Common Stock - - 0.6
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 299.7 (72.6) 159.0
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 45 {8.3) - 06
Cash and cash equivalents {decrease) increase $ (123.9) $ 160.5 - % 75
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
End of year $ 186.2 $ 3101 $ 1496
Beginning of year 310.1 149.6 1421
{Decrease) increase $ (123.9) $ 1805 § 75

See accompanying notes to consclidated financial statements.
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7

Accumulated Notes
Other Receivable
Common Retained  Comprehensive from - Treasury .- . - ... L.
] Stock Earnings Income {Loss) Employees . Stock . - . .- . Total
Balance September 30, 2003 5117 $909 $ 4.7 $(0.4} ${108.2) $ 498.7
Net income 111.6 o c 111.6
Net gain on derivative instruments

{net of tax of $15.0} 228 226
Reclassification of net gains on

derivative instruments (net of tax of $6.9) {10.8) 110.6}
Foreign currency translation adjustments

fnet of tax of $0.9) 5.9 - vt T R
Comprehensive income " 1116 179 I ’ " 1295
Cash dividends on Common Stock

($0.60 per share) {56.3}) (56.3}
Common Stock issued: - '

Public offering 2396 ‘ 2396

‘Employee and director plans 46 ' . 103 149

Dividend reinvestment plan : 1.3 1.2 2.h
Net gain in connection with issuances of units ‘ .
by AmeriGas Partners (net of tax of $_6_6) 5.6 5 . . b6
Common Stock reacquired . el {0.6) (0.6)
Payments on notes receivable from emplovees C 0.2 B - 0.2
Balance September 30, 2004 762.8 146.2 226 (0.2} - 1973) ' 834.1
Net income 1875 . P 1875
Net gain on derivative instruments . o

{net of tax of $7.9) 129 12.9
Reclassification of net gains on L

derivative instruments (net of tax of $2.1) (2.7) (2.7}
Foreign currency transiation adjustments ! - -

(net of tax of $6.5) {16.3) ' {16.3)
Comprehensive income (loss) 1875 (6.1) ' ~181.4
Cash dividends on Common Stock ' L

- {$0.65 per share} {674} -{67.4)
Common Stock issued: i S o

‘Employee and director plans 172 177 34.9

Dividend reinvestment plan 18 ~ w8 v 24
Net gain in connection with issuances of units N

by AmeriGas Partners {net of tax of $16.0) 12.0 . . 12.0
Payments on notes receivable from employees 0.2 R . 0.2
Balance September 30, 2005 P 793.6 266.3 16.5 - {788 . - .. 9976
Net income . 176.2 : ; 1762
Net loss on derlvat:ve instruments - o

(net of tax of $43.7) {63.7) - . 83.7)
Reclassification of net losses on ’ o, n

~ derivative instruments (net of tax of $13.2) 175 ‘T T - 175
Foreign currency translation adjustments T ’ - '

{net of tax of $8.1) : 259 . 259
Comprehensive income {loss) 176.2 {20.3) o ~ 155.9
Cash dividends on Common Stock
. (30.69 per share} {72.5) . _ {72.5}
Common Stock issued: et

- Employee and director plans . B 56 38" - 94

Dividend reinvestment plan 14 0.9 23
Stock-based compensation expense 6.9 C L 6.9
Balance September 30, 2006 $ 8075 $370.0 $ (3.8} $ - $(74.1) $1,099.6

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements T T S
(Mllllons of dollars and euros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise) : o

Note 1 - Organization and
Significant Accounting Policies

Organization. UGI Corporation ("UGI"} is a holding company
that owns and operates natural gas and electric utilities, elec-
tricity generation, retail propane distribution, energy marketing
and related businesses in the United States. Through foreign
subsrdranes and joint-venture affiliates, UGl also distributes Irq-
‘uefied pletro!eum gases (“LPG”) in France, central and eastern
Europe and Chrna We refer to UGl and its consolldated sub-. -
sudrarles collectuvely as “the Company” or “we. :

L We c'onduct a national propane distribution busrrress through

*AmerrGas Partners, L.P {"AmeriGas Partners”} and its principal
opera'ung subsidiaries AmeriGas Propane, L.P ("AmeriGas
OLP") and AmeriGas OLP’s subsidiary, AmeriGas Eagle
Propane, L.P ("Eagle OLP"}). AmeriGas Partners, AmeriGas OLP
and Eagle OLP are Delaware limited partnerships. UGI's wholly
owned second-tier subsidiary AmeriGas Propane, Inc. {the
"General Partner”) serves as the general partner of AmeriGas
Partners and AmeriGas OLP AmeriGas OLP and Eagle OLP (col-
lectively referred to as “the Operating Partnerships”) comprise
the largest retail propane distribution business in the United
States serving residential, commercial, industrial, motor fuel
and agricultural customers from locations in 46 states. We refer
to AmeriGas Partners and its subsidiaries together as “the
Partnership” and the General Partner and its subsidiaries,
including the Partnership, as “"AmeriGas Propane.” At
September 30, 2006, the General Partner and its wholly owned
subsrdlary Petrolane Incorporated {"Petrolane”) collectively held
al% general partner lnterest and'42.7% limited partner inter-
est in AmeriGas Partners, and an effective 44.3% ownership
interests in AmeriGas OLP and Eagle OLP

. Our Iimited partnership interest in AmeriGas Partners com-
prises 24,525,004 Common Units. The remaining 56.3% inter-
est in AmeriGas Partners comprises 32,272,101 publicly held
Common Units representing limited partner interests.

The Rartnership has no employees. Employees of the
General Partner conduct, direct and manage the activities of
AmeriGas Partners and AmeriGas OLP The General Partner also
pravides management and administrative services to AmeriGas
Eagle Holdings, Inc., the general partner of Eagle OLP under a
management services agreement. The General Partner is reim-
bursed monthly for all direct and-indirect expenses it incurs on
behalf of the Partnership including all General Partner employee
compensation costs and a portion of UGI employee compensa-
tion and administrative costs. Although the Partnership’s operat-
ing income represents a significant portion of our consolidated
operating income, the Partnership’s impact on our consolidated
net income is considerably less due io the Partnership’s signifi-
cant minority interest.

Our wholly owned subsidiary UGl Enterprises, Inc.
{*Enterprises”) (1) conducts an LPG distribution business in
France; (2) conducts LPG distribution businesses and partici-
pates in an LPG joint-venture business in central and eastern
Europe {collectively, "Flaga”); and (3) participates in an LPG
joint-venture business in the Nantong region of China. We refer

1o our foreign operations collectively as “Internaticnal Propane.”
Our LPG distribution business in France is conducted through
Antargaz, a subsidiary of AGZ Holding ("AGZ"), and its operating
subsidiaries (collectively, “Antargaz”). During 2006, we formed a
Dutch private limited liability company, UG! International
Holdings, B.V. to hold our interests in Antargaz and Flaga.

Our natural gas and electric distribution utility businesses are
conducted through our wholly owned subsidiary, UGI Utilities,
Inc. and its subsidiary; UGl Penn Natural Gas, Inc’{"UGIPNG )™= ™7
UGI Utilities, Inc. owns and operates {1) a natural gas distribution
utility in eastern Pennsylvania (“UGI Gas?), {2) a natural gas dis-
tribution utility. in northeastern Pennsylvania (“PNG Gas"} which
was acquired effective August 24, 2006, .and (3) an electric:distri- *
bution utility in northeastern Pennsylvania (“Electric Utility”). On
August 24, 2006, UGI Utilities, Inc., through UGIPNG, acquired
the natural gas businesses of PG Energy, an operating division of
Southern Union Company (see Note 2). UGI Gas and PNG Gas
(collectively, "Gas Utility”) are subject to regulation by the
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission ("PUC"). The term "UGI
Utilities” is used sometimes as abbreviated reference to UG
Utilities, Inc. or UG! Utilities, Inc. and UGIPNG.

In addition, Enterprises conducts an energy marketing busi-
ness primarily in the eastern region of the United States through
its wholly owned first- and second-tier subsidiaries (collectively,
“Energy Services”). Energy Services' wholty owned subsidiary
UGI Development Company ("UGID") and UGID's subsidiaries
own and-operate a 48-megawatt coal-fired electric generation sta-
tion and a 6% interest in Pennsylvania-based electric generation -
assets. In addition, Energy Services’ wholly owned subsidiary
UGH Asset Management, Inc. through its subsidiary Atlantic
Energy, Inc. {collectively, "Asset Management”) owns a propane _,
storage terminal located in Chesapeake, Virginia. Through other
subsidiaries, Enterprises owns and operates heating, ventifation,
airconditioning, refrigeration and electrical contracting services
businesses in the Middle Atlantic States (“HVAC/R"}).

UGI was incorporated in Pennsylvania in 1991. UGI is not’
subject to regutation by the PUC. UGl is a “holding company”
under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 2008 (" PUHCA'
2005"). PUHCA 2005 and the implementing regulations of the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission {“FERC"} give FERC
access to certain holding company bocks and records and
impose certain accounting, record-keeping, and reporting
requirements on holding companies. PUHCA 2005 also pro-
vides state utility regulatory commissions with access to hold-
ing company books and records in certain circumstances,
Pursuant to 'a waiver granted in accordance with FERC’s regula-
tions on the basis of UGI's status as a single-state holding com-
pany system, UGI is not subject to certain of the accounting,
record-keeping, and reporting requirements prescribed by
FERC's regulations.

Consolidation Principles. The consclidated financial statements
include the accounts of UGI and its controlled subsidiary com-
panies which, except for the Partnership, are majority owned.
We eliminate all significant intercompany accounts and transac-
tions when we consolidate. We report the public’s limited part-
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Note 1 continued

ner interests in the Partnership and other parties’ interests in
our consolidated, but less than 100%- owned, subsidiaries of
Antargaz, as minority interests. Entities in which -we own 50% -
or less and in which we exercise significant influence over oper-
ating and financial policies are accounted for by the equity
method {see Note 15}). Effective with our March 2004 acquisi-
tion of the remaining 80.5% ownership interests in AGZ and our
November 2004 acquisition of the remaining 50% ownership
interest in Atlantic Energy, Inc., we began consolidating all of
their operations (see Note 2}. Investments in equity investees
are included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Gains resulting from issuances and sales of AmeriGas
Partners” Commaon Units are recorded as increases to common
stockholders’ equity with corresponding decreases to minority
interests in accordance with U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission {“SEC") Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 51,
“Accounting for Sales of Common Stock by a Subsidiary.” In
addition, we record deferred income tax liabilities with a corre- .
sponding reduction in common stockholders’ eqmty associated
with such gains (see Note 14),

Reclassifications. \We have reclassified certain prioryear balances
to conform to the current-year presentation.

Use of Estimates. Ve make estimates and assumptions when
preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Regulated Utility Operations, We account for the operations of
Gas Utility and Electric Utility in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) Na. 71, "Accounting for
the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” {"SFAS 71"). SFAS 71
requires us to record the effects of rate regulation in the finan-
cial statements. SFAS 71 allows us to defer expenses and rev-
enues on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities
when it is probable that those expenses and income will be
allowed in the ratemaking process in.a period different from the
period in which they would have been reflected in the income
statement of an unregulated company. These deferred assets
and liabilities are then flowed through the income statement in
the period in which the same amounts are included in rates and
recovered from or refunded to cusiomers. ‘As requwed by SFAS
71, we monitor our regulatory and competmve environments to
determine whether the recovery of our regulatory assets contin-
ues to be probable. if we were to determine that recovery of
these regulatory assets is no longer prohable, such assets would
be written off against earnings. We believe that SFAS 71 contin-
ues to apply to our regulated utility operations and that the
recovery of our regulatory assets is probable. . . ...
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Regulatory assets and liabilities associated with Gas Utility
and Electric Utility operations included in our accompanying bal-

ance sheets at September’30 comprise the following: .
2067 ' 2005
Regulatory assets: .
Income taxes recoverable $64.3 $58.6
Postretirement benefits 54 17
(ther ' 32 1.0
Total regulatory assets $729 .- 8613

Regulatory liabilites:

“Postretirement benefits* © < v Tt § 38" 1§28
Deferred fuel costs ' 122 174
Total regulatory liabilities $16.0 $20.2

UGI Utilities’ regulatory liabilities relating to postretirement
benefits and deferred fuel costs are included in “other noncur- -
rent liabilities” and “other.current liabilities,” respectively, on the

- Consolidated Balance Sheets. UGI Utilities does not recover a

rate of return on its regulatory assets. -

Derivative Instruments, SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” {"SFAS 133"), as’
amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for
derivative.instruments and for hedging activities. it requires that
all derivative instruments be recognized as either assets or liabili-
ties and measured at fair value. The accounting for changes in
fair value depends upoen the purpose of the derivative instrument
and whether it is designated and qualifies for hedge accounting.
For a detailed description of the derivative instruments we use,
our objectives for using them, and related supplemental informa-
tion required by SFAS 133, see Note 11.

..

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. We define cash equiv-
alents as highly liquid investments with maturitias of three. *.-
months or less when purchased. We record cash equivalents at
cost plus accrued interest, which approximates market value.
Restricted cash represents cash deposited in our natural gas
futures accounts to satisfy margin requirements.

We paid interest-totaling $129.3 in 2006, $130.6 in 2005 and
$1177 in 2004. We paid income taxes totaling $142.6 in 2006,
$54.7 in 2005 and $70.2 in 2004.

Revenue Hecogmt:on We recognlze revenues from the sale of
propane and ather LPG principally as preduct is delivered to
custorners. Revenue from the sale of appliances and equipment
is recognized at the time of sale or instalfation. We record UGI
Utilities' regulated revenues for service provided to the end of
each month which includes an accrual for certain unbilied
amounts based upon estimated usage. We reflect the impact of
UGI Utilities" rate increases or decreases at the time they
become effective. Energy Services records revenues when
energy products are delivered to customers.

Inventeries. Our inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mar-
ket. We determine cost using an average cost method for natural
gas, propane and other LPG, specific identification for appliances
and the first-in, first-out ("FIFO") methed for all other inventories.
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Eamings Per Common Share. Basic earnings per share reflect
the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding.
Diluted earnings per share include the effects of dilutive stock -
options and common stock awards. In the following table, we
present shares used in computing basic and diluted earnings
per share for 2006, 2005 and 2004:

" 2006 2005 2004

Denominator (millions of shares):
Average commaon shares
outstanding for basic computation 105.455
Incremental shares issuable for stock

103.877 94,616

options and awards 1212 1.846 2.066
Average éommon shares outstanding for B )
diluted computation . 106.727 105,723 96.682

tncome Taxes. AmeriGas Partners and the Operating Partnerships
are not directly subject to federal income taxes. Instead, their tax-
able income or loss is allocated to the individual partners. We
record income taxes on our share of (1) the Partnership’s current
taxable income dr loss and (2} the differences between the book
and tax bases of the Partnership's assets and liabilities. The
Operating Partnershlps have subsidiaries which operate in corpo-
rate form and are,dwectly subject to federal income taxes.”

Gas Utility and Electric Utility-record deferred income taxes in
the ConsohdatedIStatements of Income. resultmg from the use of
accelerated depremauon methods based upon a o ts recog-
nized for ratemakung purposes. They also’ record a deferred
income’ tax ||ab|||ty for tax benefits that are flowed through to

'ratepayers when temporary differences originate and recorda
‘regulatory i income tax asset for the prohable increase in future
revenues that will result when the temporary differences reverse.

We are amortizing deferred investment tax credits related to
UGl Uti!ities' plant additions over the service lives of the related
property.-UG! Utilities reduces its deferred income tax liability
for the future tax benefits that will occur when investment tax
credits, which are not taxable, are amortized. We; also reduce
the regulatory income tax asset for the probable reduction in
future revenues that will result when such deferred investment
tax credits amortize.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Related Depreciation. The
amounts we assign to property, plant and equipment of business-
es we acquire are based upon estimated fair value at date of acqui-
sition. When Gas Utifity and Electric Utility retire depreciable utility
plant and equipment, we charge the original cost, net of removal
costs and salvage value, to accumulated depreciation for financial
accounting purposes. When our unregulated businesses retire or
otherwise dispose of plant and equipment, we remove the cost
and accumulated deprematlon from the appropriate accounts and
any resultmg gain or loss is recognized in “Other income, net” in
the Consolidated 'Staternents of Income. We record depreciation
expense for UGI Utilities' plant and equipment on a straight-line
method over the estimated average remaining lives of the various
classes of its depreciable property. Depreciation expense as a per-
centage of the related average depreciable base for Gas Utility was
2.5% in 2006, 2.4% in 2005 and 2.3% in 2004. Depreciation
expense as a percentage of the related average depreciable base

for Electric Utility was 2.8% in'2006, 2.9% in 2005 and 2.8% in
2004, We compute depreciation expense on plant and equipment
associated with our LPG operations using the straight-iine method
over estimated service lives generally ranging from 15 to 40 years
for buildings and improvements; 7 to 40 years for storage and cus- !
tomer tanks and cylinders; and 2 to 12 years for vehicles, equip-
ment, and office furniture and fixtures. We compute depreciation
expense on plant and eguipment associated with our electric gen-
eration assets on a straight-line basis over 25 years. Depreciation
expense was $130.9 in 2006, $1278 in 2005 and $119.9 in 2004,

Costs to install Partnership-owned tanks, net of amounts
bifled to customers, are capitalized and amortized over the esti-
mated period of benefit not exceeding ten years.

Intangible Assets. Intangible assets comprise the following at
September 3(_):

2006 2005
(oodwill (not subject to amortization) $1.418.2 $1.2012
Other intangible assets:

Customer relationships, noncompete

agreements and other - 183.0 $ 1772

Trademark {not subject to amortization) . . 431 - . 408

Gross carrying amount - T 226.1 2180

Accumulated amortization - {628). (454)

Net carrying amount $ 1633 .. § 1728

The changes in the carrying amount of intangible assets dur-
ing the year ended September 30, 2006 principally reflects busi-
ness acquisitioﬁs and the effects of foreign currency translation.

We amortize customer relationship and noncompete agree-
ment intangibles over their estimated periods of benefit which
do not exéeed 15 years. Amortization expense of intangible ™ - - -
assets was $16.5 in 2006, $16.9 in 2005 and $11.1 in 2004
including amortization expense associated with customer con-
tracts recorded in cost of sales. Estimated amortization
expense of intangible assets during the next five fiscal years is
as follows: Fiscal 2007 - $15.7; Fiscal 2008 - $15.4; Fiscal 2009 -
$14.7; Fiscal 2010 - $13.3; Fiscal 2011 -$12.7

In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill !
and Other Intangible Assets” (" SFAS 142", we amortize intangi- |
ble assets over their useful fives unless we determined their lives
to be indefinite. Goodwill and other intangible assets with indefi-
nite lives are not amortized but are subject to tests for impairment
at least annually. SFAS 142 requires that we perform impairment
tests annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indi-
cate that the value of goodwill might be impaired. When perform-
ing our impairment tests, we use quoted market prices or, in the
absence of quoted market prices, valuation technigues which use
discounted estimates-of future cash flows. No provisions for
goodwill impairments were recorded during 2006, 2005 ar 2004,

Stock-Based Compensation. Effective October 1, 2005, the
Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based
Payment” {"SFAS 123R"}. Prior to October 1, 2005, as permit-
ted, we applied the provisions of Accounting Principles Board
{"APB") Opinion Neo. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees™ ("APB 25), in recording cormpensation expense for
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Note 1 continued

grants of stock, stock options and other equity instruments
{"Units”) to employees. Under APB 25, the Company did not
record any compensation expense.for stock options, but provid-
ed the required pro forma disclosures as if we had determined
compensation expense under the fair value method prescribed
by the provisions of SFAS No. 123 {prior to its revision). As per-
mitted by SFAS 123R, under the modified prospective approach,
effective October 1, 2005, we began recording compensation
expense for awards that were not vested as of that date and
we did not restate any prior periods. The adoption of SFAS 123R
resulted in pre-tax stock option expense of $3.8'during the~
twelve months ended September 30, 2006. SFAS 123R also

using historical data from the effective date of SFAS No. 123
(prior to its revision), We have calcutated a tax windfall pool
using the shortcut methed and any future tax shortfalls related
10 equity-based compensation.will be charged against common
stock up to the amount of the tax windfall pocl.

In accordance with SFAS 123R, all of our equity-based cormpen-
sation cost is measured on grant date, date of modification, if any,
or at the end of the pericd based upon the fair value of that award
and is recognized in the income statement over the requisite serv-
ice period. For periods prior to and subsequent to the adoption of
SFAS 123R, we used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to
estimate the fair value of each option. Equity-based awards that
can be settled at our option in ¢cash or shares of UGI Common
Stock are presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as liabili-
ties. Effective in June 2008, the Company modified the settlement
terms of certain awards granted to 28 employees January 1, 2006
which did not impact the number of thefawards to employees. As
a result of this modification, a portion of these awards is presented
as equity {fixed settlement terms) and a portion remains a liability
(settlement in cash or Common Stock at the employees’ discretion)
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2006. We
used the Monte Carlo valuation mode! to estimate the fair value of
these modified Unit awards. The Company did not record any incre-
mental compensation expense as a result of this modification.

We also modified the settlernent terms of all Unit awards
granted to our seven non-employee directors. Unit awards
made to our non-employee directors are now. settled 65% in
shares of UGl Common Stock and 35% in cash. Prior to this
modification, these Units were settled 100% in shares of UGI
Common Stock, As a result of this modification, we recorded
additional pre-tax stock-based cornpen_éation expense of $1.0 .
during the year ended September 30, 2006. '

Certain employees of the General Partner have heen granted
the right to receive AmeriGas Parmers Common Units. Awards up
to a total of 500,000 AmeriGas Partners Common Units may have
performance.terms similar to UGI Unit awards and compensation
expense is estimated and recorded in the same.manner and
awards up to a totat of 200,000 AmeriGas Partners Common
Units have service requirements only. The General Partner-made a
modification to the settlement of certain of its AmeriGas Partner
Common Unit awards. The Partnership did not incur any incremen-
tal compensation expense as a result of this modification.

We recognized total pre-tax equity-hased compensation -
expense of $9.0 ($6.0 aftertax), $15.5 ($10.1 aftertax) and $14.3
{$9.3 aftertax} in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The chart
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below reflects the effects on net income”and basic and diluted
earnings per share for 2005 and 2004 as if we had applied the
provisions of SFAS 123R {(prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R).

Year Ended September 30,
2005 2004
Net income, as reported $1875 16
Add: Stock and unit-based employee
expense included in reported net
income, net of related tax effects 101 93
Deduct; Total stock and unit-based '
employee compensation expense - U Ber T e g vt
determined under the fair value method W
for alt awards, net of related tax effects T g - {104}
Pro forma net income $185.7 $1105
Basic earnings per share:
As reported $1.81 $1.18
Pro forma $1.79 $1.17
Diluted earnings per share:
As reported $1.77 $1.15
Pro forma $1.76 $1.14

For a description of our stock and unit-based compensation
plans and related disclosures, see Note 8.

Deferred Debt Issuance Costs. included in other assets are net
defarred debt issuance costs of $19.9 at September 30, 2006
and $10.1 at September 30, 2005. We are amortizing these costs
over the terms of the related debt.

Refundable Tank and Cylinder Deposits. Included in other non-
current lisbilities are customer paid deposits on Antargaz owned
tanks and cylinders of $2074 and $200.6 at September 30,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Depuosits are refundable to cus-
torners when the tanks or cylinders are returned in accordance
with contract terms.

Computer Software Costs. We include in property, plantand
equipment costs associated with computer software we develop
or obtain for use in our businesses. We amortize_computer soft-
ware costs on a straight-line basis over expected periods of bene-
fit not-exceeding fifteen years once the installed software is
ready for its intended use.

Deferred Fuel Costs. Gas Utility’s tariffs contain clauses which
permit recovery of certain purchased gas costs through the appli-
cation of purchased gas cost {* PGC") rates. The clauses provide
for periodic adiustméht's to PGC rates for the difference between
the total amount of purchased gas costs collected from cus-
tomers and the recoverable costs mcurred In accordance with
SFAS 71, we defeér the difference between amounts recogmzed
in revenues and the appl:cable gas costs incurred until they are
subsequently billed or refunded to customers.

Environmental and Other Legal Matters. We accrue environmen-
tal investigation and cleanup costs when it is probable that a liabili-
ty exists and the amount or-range of-amounts can be reasonably
estimated. Amounts accrued generally reflect our best estimate of
costs expected to be incurred or the minimum liability associated
with a range of expected environmental response costs. Our esti-
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mated. liability for. environmental contamination is reduced'to
reflect anticipated participation.of other responsibte parties but is
not reduced for possible recavery from insurance carriers. In

those instances for which the amount and timing of cash pay--- "
ments a:ssociated_ with enwvironmental investigation and cleanup
are reliaply determinable, we discount such liabilities to reflect the
time'valle of money. We intend to pursue recovery of incurred
costs through all appropriate means, including regulatory rétief.
UGI Gas is permitted to amortize as removal costs site-specific -
envrronr'*nental investigation and remediation costs, net of related
third-party payments, associated with Pennsylvania sites. UG! Gas
is currently perrnltted to include in rates, through future base rate
proceedmgs a five-year average of such prudently incurred
removal costs. In accordance with existing regulatory practices at
the PUC, site-specific environmental investigation and remediation
costs associated with.PNG Gas are amortized as removal costs
over-a five-year period. At Septerber 30,.2008, neither the
Company's undiscounted amount’nor-its-accrued liability for envi- .
ronmental |nvest|<'gat|on and cleanup costs was material.

Similar to enwronmental issues, we- accrue investigation and
.other legal costs'for other matters when it.is probable that a lia-
-bility exists and the amount or range of amounts can be reason-

ably estimated {see Note 10).

Foreign;Currency Translation. Balance sheets of international sub-
sidiaries and our invéstment in international LPG joint ventures
are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at the bal-
ance sh'eet date. Income statements and equity method results
are translated into U.S. dollars using an average exchange rate for
each reporting period. Where the local currency is the functional
curency, translation adjustments are recorded in‘ other compre-
hensrve income. Where the focal currency is not the functronal
currency, translatlon ad;us‘[ments aré recorded in net income.

Employee Retlrement Plans. The Company uses a market related
value of plan assets and the expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets to determine the expected return on plan assets
assoctated with its pension plans. The market related value of
plan assets other than equities in.our pension plans is based
upon the-market price of the plan assets or similar assets. The
market related value of equities in our pension plans is calculated
by rolling forward the prioryear's market related value with contri<
butions,; disbursements and the expected return on plan.assets. .
One:third of the difference between the expected and the actual
vatue is then added to or subtracted from the expected.value to
determine the new market related value. See Note 5.

Compréhensive'lncome Comprehensive income comprises net
income and other comprehensive (loss) income. Other compre—
hensive (Ioss) mcome pnncspaily results from gains and losses on
derivative r|nstruments qualifying as cash flow hedges and foreign
currency translation adjustments.

The compenents of accurmnulated other comprehensive
income (loss) at September 30, 2006 and 2005 follow:

Derivative Fareign
Instrumenits Currency
Gains Translation
{Losses)  Adjustments Total
Balance — September 30, 2006 $(23.4} $19.6 $(38)

Balance — September 30, 2005 $17.7 $01.2} $165

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements. In September 2006,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued SFAS
No. 158, “Employers Accountrng for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirernent Pians'= an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 87 88, 106 and 132(R}," (”SFAS 158"): SFAS 158 requires an
employer to recognize the' funded status of each of its defrned pen-
sion and'postrétirement bénefit plans as a net asset or liability in its
balance sheet with an offsetting amount in accumulated other
comprehensive income, and to recognize changes in that funded
status in the year in which changes occur through comprehensive
income. SFAS 158 is effective as of the end of our fiscal year end-
ing September 30, 2007 Had SFAS ]58 been applied to our
Septernber 30, 2006 Balance Sheet, we estimate that the impact
would havé resulted in'a reduction of long-term assets of $19.3, an
increase of long-term liabilities of $24.3, a net reduction of deferred
tax liabilities of $174 and decreased stockholders’ equity of $26.2.
However, the effect at any future date could differ significantly
depending on the mea_su_rérnent of our pension and other postre-
tirer'nent benefit plan assets and obligations at that date. '

" in September 2008, the FASB'issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair
Value'Measurements,’ ("SFAS157"}: SFAS 157 defines fair value;
establishes a framework for measunng fair value in’ generall\/
accepted accountrng prmcrples and expands disclosures about
fair value measurements. The provisions of this standard apply to
other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair
value measurements. The provisions of SFAS 157 are effective for
our fiscal year beginning October 1, 2008. We are currently evalu-
ating the impact, if any, of the provisions of SFAS 157

In September 20086, the SEC issued Staff Accounting
Bultetin No. 108 "Considering the Effects of Prior Year
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements” ("SAB
108°). SAB 108 provides interpretive guidance on how the
effects of the carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements
should be 'considered when guantifying a current year misstat'e-
maent. The provisions of SAB 108 are effectwe for the end of our
fiscal year ending September 30, 2007

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48 {“ FIN -
48"), "Accounting for Uncertainty in Incaome Taxes,” which clari-
fies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in
the financial statements in accardance with FASB Statement No!
109, “Accounting for Income Taxes” FIN 48 provides guidance on
the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax *
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 -
also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest
and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosures, and -
transition. FIN 48 is effective for our fiscal year beginning
Qctober 1, 2007 We are currently evaluating the impact that this
standard will have on our Consclidated Financial Statements.

in March 20086, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
SFAS No. 158, "Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets - An
Amendment of FASB Staternent No. 140 {"SFAS 156"). SFAS 156
requires that all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing
liabilities be initially measured at fair value, unless it is impracticable
to do so. SFAS 156 permits, but does not require, the subsequent
measurement of servicing assets and servicing liabilities at fair
value. SFAS 156 is effective as of the beginning of our fiscal year
ending September 30, 2007 The adoption of SFAS 156 will not have
a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

a1
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|
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Millions of dollars and euros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise)

Note 2 - Acquisitions' and Investments The following table presents unaudited pro forma income
statement and basic and diluted per share data for the years
On August 24, 2008, UGI Utilities acqutred cenaln assets and ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 as if the acquisition of

assumed certain liabiities of Southern Un|0n Companys {: "SU° S ) .. PNG Gas.had OCCUrred as Of the begmmng of that penod
PGmelsron nturg_i[@j_i‘stnbumn Business]iocated]i : o .-
northeastern Pennsylvania, and all of the issued and outstanding T it 2905—-'-
stock of SU’s wholly-owned subsidiary, PG Energy Services, Inc. . (pro forma} {pro formay
tthe "PG Energy Acquisition”} pursuant to a Purchase and Sale Revenues $5.545.7 $5,176.1
Agreernent as amended, between SU and UGI dated as of Net income .- 885 1995
Jalmuarv 26, 2006 {the “Agreement”). The acquired businesses

are referred to herein as PNG Gas. Immediately prior to,the PG

Earnings per share:

Elnergy Acquisition, UG assigned its rights and obligations under Basic : $ 084 $ 192

ti{e Agreement to UGH Utilities' newly formed subsidiary, UG Diluted $ 083 $ 1.89

Penn Natural Gas, Inc. ("UGIPNG™). Consistent with our growth The pro forma results of operations reflect PNG Gas' historical

strateg1es the PG Energy Acquisition added approximately operating results after giving effect to adjustments directly attrib-

158 000 customers increasing UGI Utilities” presence in north- utable to the transaction that are expected to have a continuing

easter Pennsylvana. effect. The pro forma amotints are not-necessarily indicative of
m| \Undenthe,terms of,the Agreement, on August 24, 2006, UG the operating results that would have occurred had.the PG Energy.. «-

Ut|l|t|es paid SU the acquisitton price of $580 {excluding transactlon Acquisition been completed as of the date indicated; nor are they :

fees and expenses) which is subject to working capital adjustments. necessarily indicative of future operating results. The unaudited

The cash payment of $580 was funded with net proceeds from the pro forma results for the twelve months ended September 30,

issuance of $275 of UGI Utiles bank loans under a Credit 2006 include a writedown of goodwill of $98 recorded by SU dur-

Agreement dated as of August 18, 2006 (the “Bridge Loan"}, cash ing the three months ended December 31, 2005,

capital contributions from UGI of $266 and $40 from borrowings Pursuant to the Agreement, SU and UGIPNG entered into a

under UGI Utilities’ revolving credit agreement for working capital. In Transition Services Agreement {"TSA") whereby each party will
September 2006, UGI Utilities repaid the Bridge Loan with pro- be a provider and receiver of certain services to the other. The
ceeds from the issuance of $175 of 6,753% Senior Notes due 2016 principal services include general business continuity, informa-

and $100 of 6.206% Senior,Notes due 2036.. tion technology accounung and tax services. Services under

|

The assets and liabilities of PNG Gas are included in our the TSA will be provided through the expiration of the term :
Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2006. The operating relating to each service or untit such time ag mutually agreed o
B results of BNG Gas are_ mcluded inour consolldated results begin- . upon by SU and UGIPNG. T
mng August 24 2006 The prehmmary purchase price a!locatton has Oon February 15, 2006; Flaga entered |nto a joint venture wnth Eas| |
not been finalized because we are still.in the process of reviewing a sub5|d|ary of Progas GmbH & Co KG ("Progas”) to create a
and determining the fair value of certain of PNG Gas’ assets company for the retail distribution of LPG in portions of central
acquired and liabilities assumed, principally working capital adjust- . and eastern Europe. Headquartered in Dortmund, Germany,
merits and amounts associated with environmental liabilities. The Progas is controlled by Thyssen'sche Handelsgesellschaft m.b.H.
purchase price is subject toa working capital adjustment, pursuant The joint venture company, Zentraleuropa LPG Holding {“ZLH"),
to the terms of the Agreem:ent, equal to the difference between an an Austrian limited liability company, through its subsidiaries
estimated $68.1 and the actual working capital as of the closing ‘engages in the business of retail distribution of LPG in the
date agreed to by both UG”U“'”'GS and SU. Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Slovakia and Romania. In
The preliminary purchase price of PNG Gas, including estimated forming the joint venture, Flaga contributed the shares of its .
. transaction fees.and expenses of $9.8, has been allocated to the L.PG subsidiaries operating in the Czech Republic and Slovakia
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as follows: - ; to ZLH and paid €9.2 cash to Progas. Progas-contributed the -
. I shares of its LPG subsidiaries cperating in the Czech Republic,
Warking capital - { . r $ 4956 Hungary, Poland, Romania and Stovakia to ZLH. These LPG-
Property, plant and equipment : 362.3 operating subsidiaries distributed approximately 77 million gal- )
Goadwill | 1829 lons of LPG in these five countries in 2005. ZLH is owned and
Regulatory assets - . 67 controlled equally by Flaga and Progas. In a related transaction,
Other assets | ‘ " 08 Flaga purchased Progas’ retail LPG business in Austria.
Noncurrent liabilities ! x {12.5) Also during 2006, AmeriGas OLP acquired two retail propane
Total : B $589'8 distribution businesses and a cyllnder refurblshlng business for
' total cash consideration of approximately $2.8. The pro forma
Substantlally al of the estrmated goodwill is expected to be effects of these and Flaga's transactions were not material. The
deductible for income tax purposes aver a fifteen- year period. operating results of these businesses have been included in our

results of operations from their respective dates of acguisition.

1
|
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In"March 2006, UGID sold its 50% ownership interest in
Hunlock Creek Energy Ventures {“Energy Ventures”) to
Allegheny Energy Supply Hunlock Creek, LLC. Energy Ventures’
assets primarily comprised a-44-megawatt gas-fired combustion
turbine electric generator and a 48-megawatt coal-fired electric
generation facility. As part of the consideration in this sale,
Energy Ventures transferred the 48-megawatt coal-fired electric

.generation statro}n to UGID. UGID recorded a net pre-tax gain of
$9.1 ($5 3 after tax] associated with this transaction, which is
reflected in other income, net in the Consolidated Statement of
‘Income for the twelve months ended September. 30,-2006.

-Dunng 2005, AmeriGas OLP acquired several retail propane
dlstrrbutlon businesses for total cash. consideration of approxi-
_mately $22.7 HVAC/R acquired a commercial and residential
Eelectnt:al contracting business in September 2005. The operat-
ing resullts of these businesses have been included in our oper-
ating results from their respective dates of acquisition. The pro
forma effects of these transactions were not material,

In Novemnber 2004, UG Asset Management, Inc. acquired
from ConocoPhillips Company and AmerE Holdings, Inc. (a wholly
owned, indirect subsidiary of AmeriGas OLP} in separate transac-
tions 100% of the issued and outstanding common stock of
Atlantic Energy for an aggregate purchase price of approximately
$24 in cash, including post-closing adjustments (the "AEI
Acquisition”). The AE| Acquisition has been accounted for as a
step acquisition in the Consolidated Financial Statements. In con-
nection with this acquisition,:Atlantic Energy and AmeriGas OLP
entered into a long-term propane supply agreement.

On March 31, 2004 (the “Closing Date”), UGI, through its
subsidiary, UGl Bordeaux Holding (as assignee of UGH France),
completed its acquisition of the remaining outstanding 80.5%
ownership interests of AGZ, a French corporation and the parent
company of Antargaz, a French corporation and a leading distrib-
utor of LPG in France, pursuant to the terms of {i] a Share
Purchase Agreement dated as of February 17 2004, by and
among UGI France, UGI, PAl partners, a French corporation, and
certain officers, directors and managers of AGZ and Antargaz
and their affiliates, and (i} that certain Medit Joinder Agreement
dated February 20, 2004, by and among UGI France, UGI, Medit
Mediterranea GPL, S.r.L., a company incorporated under the
laws of ltaly ("Medit”), and PAIl partners (herein referred to as
the "Antargaz Acquisition”). The acquisition of the remaining
interests in AGZ is consistent with our growth strategies and
core competencies.

The purchase price on the Closing Date of €261.8 or $319.2
(excluding transaction fees and expenses) was subject to post-
closing working capital and net debt adjustments. UGl used the
cash proceeds from its March 2004 public offering of 15 miltion
shares of its common stock and $89.0 of available cash to fund
the purchase price. In accordance with the Share Purchase
Agreement, UG! paid an additional €5.8 {$7.1) as a result of
post-closing adjustments. In addition, we incurred transaction
fees and expenses of $5.4. See Note 8 for additional informa-
tion regarding the issuance of UGl Common Stock.

The Antargaz Acquisition has been accounted for as a step
acquisition. UG!'s initial 19.5% equity investment in AGZ has

been allocated to 19.5% of AGZ's assets and liabilities at March
31, 2004. The amount by which the carrying value of UGI's equi-
ty investment exceeded the aforementloned allocation has

been recorded as goodwill.

The purchase price of the remaining 80.5% of AGZ, including
transaction fees and expenses, has been allocated to the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, as follows:

Warking capital - ) i . $ 287

Property, plant and equipment ! .30
Goodwill ' e 4693
Customer relationships {estimated useful life of twelve years) : a7.1
Trademark and other intangible assets  * 386
Long-term debt (including current maturities) B (392.6)
Deferred income taxes . {108.8)
Minority interests . N (1.1}
Other assets and liabilities N o (126.5}
Total _ $331.7

None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The assets and liabilities of AGZ have been included in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets since March 31, 2004. The operat-
ing results of AGZ are included in our consolidated results
beginning April 1, 2004. For pertods prior to Aprit 1, 2004, our
19.5% equity interest in AGZ is reflected in our Consolidated
Financial Statements under the equity method of accounting.

The following table presents unaudited pro forma income
statement and basic and diluted per share data for the year
ended September 30, 2004 as if the Antargaz Acquisition had
occurred as of the beginning of that period:

2004

{pro forma)

Revenues $4,293.0

Net income 168.2
Earnings per share: )

Basic $ 166

Dituted $ 162

The pro forma results of operations reflect AGZ's historical
operating results after giving effect to adjustments directly
attributable to the transaction that are expected to have a con-
tinuing effect. The pro forma amounts are not necessarily indica-
tive of the operating results that would have occurred had the
acquisition been completed as of the date indicated, nor are
they necessarily indicative of future operating results.

In addition, during the year ended Septemnber 30, 2004, -
AmeriGas OLP completed several smaller acquisitions of retail
propane businesses, HVAC/R acquired a commercial refrigeration
business and Flaga acguired a retait propane distribution business
in the Czech Republic. The pro forma effect of these transactions
is not material.
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Notes to Conso!idated Financial Statements
{(Millions of doflars and eujros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise)
|
Note'3 — Debt - : S . Scheduled principal repayments of long-term debt due in fig-
cal years 2007 to 2011 follows: N

Long term debt comprlses the followmg at September 30:

]
| R L 00 WB /9 WD M
‘ AmeriGas Propane: oot i ) AmeriGas Pmpane $14 $ 0.7 $705 $802 $147
AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes: L ) - UGI Utilities - 200 . - - -
8.875%. due May 2011 [including unamertized - International Propane - 86 . -.79 78 77 05124
premium of $0.2 and $0.3, respectively, Other 14 37 16 0.1 -
- effective rate — B.46%)1- - $148 .S 149 — :
- 10%, due April 2006 leffective rate - 10.125%) - gpp ol $314 5123 . §799.  $830 36771
' +:7.25%, due May 2015 8150, .. s 4150 Lo Lo : !
i oAbl 1 20%, due;May; 201 6 sl 3 e S ROTE
B, AmenGas OLP-First: MongageNoIe ? e o ) : :
Series A, 9.34% - 11.71%, due Apnl 2[] through Notes generany cannot be redeemed at our option pnor to May 20,
‘ - Apiil 2009 {including unamortized premium of 2010 and 2011, respectively. The 8.875% Senior Notes generally
$3.6 in 2005, effective rate ~8.91%) - 163.6 may be redeemed at our option (pursuant to a tender offer), howev-
Series , 8.83%, due April 2006 through April 2010 - 68.8 era redemptlon premium applies through May 19, 2009. In January

Series D, 7.11%, due March 2008 {including

. . 2006, AmenGas Partners refinanced its Series A and Series C First
unamortized premium of $0.9 and $1.3,

Moﬁgage Notes totaling $228.8, a $3b term loan and $59.6 of the

Serir:ss %etétlgg;\,‘; Zﬁgcjm rzant;au tl?lgﬁz{:lg Il—l.s n3 Partnerships $60 10% Senior Notes with $350 of its 7125% Senior
unamortized premium of $0.1, effective , ) L. Notes due 2016..In May 2005, AmeriGas Partners refinanced
rate — B.47%) 8D . B0t $373.4 of its 8.875% Senior Notes pursuant-to.a tender offer with
AmeriGas OLP Term Loan . -7 350 $415 of 725% Senior Notes. AmeriGas Partners recogﬁized losses
Other™ .. o .29 48 of $171 and $33.6 associated with these refinancings which®
Total AmeriGas Propane - oL -89, 9135 amounts are reflected in “Loss on extinguishments of debt” in the.
International Propane: e L 2006 and 2005 Consolidated Statements of Income, respectively.
Antargaz, Semgr Famlmes term. Iuan oo . L AmeriGas Partners may, under certain circumstances following the
" due March 207} . . ‘ -, &85 .. 2104 disposition of:assets or-a change of control, be requiréd to offer to
Antargaz 10% High Yreld Bonds due July 2011 : prepay its 725% and 7125% Senior Notes, ; .
{mcludmg unamomzed premmm of $17.01n ' '
2005, effective fate =7, 68%) SR T 215.4 AmeriGas OLP Flrst Mortgage Notes As of November 6, 2008,
Fiaga Acquisition Note, due through oo T " AmeriGas OLPs First Mortgage Notes are no Ionger collateralized
September 2006 B ' T - T 559 by substantially all of its assets. The General Partner is coobhgor of
Flaga euro special purpose facility - 20 the Series D and E First Mortgage Notes. AmeriGas OLP niay pre-
Flaga Term Loan e 60.8 - . pay the First Mortgage Notes, in whole or in part. These prepay- .
Other . 26 54 ments jnctude a make whole premium. Following the disposition of
Totaf International Propane 547.0 4893 assets or a change of control, AmeriGas OLP may be Tequired to
UGl Utilities: i offer to prepay the First Mortgage Notes, ln_ wl)ole orin.part.
Se'_“s‘_’;’,i;z‘fqite <. due Ootober 2018 750 _ AmeriGas OLP Credit Agreement. Effectivé November 6, 2006,
" 6.21% Notes, due October 2034 100.0 _ AmeriGas'OLP entered into a new unsecured Credit Agreement -
Medium-Term Notes: ) {"Credit Agreement”) consisting of {1} a-Revolving Credit Facility
7.14% Notes, due December 2005 _ , . and {2) an Acquisition Facility. The General Partner and Petrolane are
A{effective rate - 6.64%) B i - 300 guarantors of amounts outstanding urider the Credit Agreement.
7. 14% Notes, due December 2005 ) - 200 Reference made to the Credit Agreement relates to both the former
_ 7.7% Notes, due June 2007 s 200 200 and new Credit Agreement, as appropriate.
5.53% Notes, due September 2012 a0 400 Under the Revolving Credit:Facility, AmeriGas OLP may bor-
5.37% Notes, due August 2013 %0 250 row up to $125 ($100 prior to November 6, 2006), including a : ,
5.16% Nates, dus May 2015 20 200 100 sublimit for letters of credit, which is subject to restric-
7.37% Notes, due October 2015 .20 220 . at 16C1 1o restnic !
5.64% Notes: due December 2015 50.0- — tions in the AmeriGas Partners Senior Notes indentures {see
7.25% Notes, due November 2017 200 . 200 “Restrictive Covenants " below). The Revolving Credit Facility -
6.50% Notes, due August 2033 . 200 200 may be used for working capital and general purposes of
6.13% Notes, due Octobar 2034 . 200 200 AmeriGas OLR The Revolving Credit Facility expires on October
Total UG Utitities. ) 5120 9370 15, 2011, but-may be extended for additional one-year periods
Other ] a2 49 with the consent of the participating banks representing at least
Total long-term debt 1999 TBAA5 ’ 50% of the cqmmitments thgreunder. :fhere were no bqrrow—
Less current maturities {including net unamortized : ' ings outstanding under AmeriGas OLP's Revglwng Credit " . ‘
premium of $0.5 and $4.2, respectively) (31.9) {252.0) Agreement at September 30, 2006 and 2005: Issued and out:
Total long-term debi due after one year $1,965.0 $1.3925
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standing letters of credit, which reduce, availablg borrowings
under the Revolving Credit Facility, totaled $58 9 and $56. 3 at
September 30, 2006 anhd 2005, respectively. )

The Acqursrtron Facility provides AmeriGas OLP with the abil-
ity to borrow up to $75 to finance the'purchase of propane busr-
nessés or propane busmesls assets or, 1o the extent it is not so
used, for working capital and general purposes, subject to )
restrictions in the Senior Notes indentures. The Acquisition
Facility operates as a revolving facility through October 15,

2011, at which time amounts then outstanding will be immedi-

ately due an_d payable. There were no amounts outstanding
under the Acquisition Facility at September 30, 2006 and 2005.

The Revolvrng Credrt Facrhty and the Acquisition FaC|I|ty per— ]

mit AmeriGas OLP to borrow at prevailing interest rates, ‘includ-
rng the base rate/ defrned as the higher of the Federal Funds’
rate plus 0.560% or the agent bank’s prime rate (8.25% at
September 30, 2006}, or at a two-week, one-, two-; three-,"or
srx—month Eurodoltar Rate, as defined in the Credit Agreement,
plus a margin. The margin on Eurodoflar Rate borrowings (which
ranges from 1.00% to 1.75%, and the Credit Agreement facility
fee rate (which ranges from 0.25% to 0.375%]) are dependent
upon AmeriGas OLP’s ratio of funded debt to earnings before
interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization
{"EBITDA"), eac"h as defined in the Credit Agreement.

AmeriGafs OLP Term Loan. In April 2005, AmeriGas OLP entered
into a.$35.0 variable-rate term loan due October 1, 2006 {"AmeriGas
OLP-Term Loan"}, which bore interest plus margin at the same rates
as the Credlt Agreement. Proceeds from the AmeriGas OLP Term.
Loan were used to repay a portion of thé $53.8 rmaturing AmeriGas
OLP First Mortgage Notes. The Partnership used a portion of the
proceeds. from.the issuance of the 7125% Senior-Notes due 2016
to0 repay the AmeriGas OLP Term Loan in January 2006.

Restrictive Covenants. The'725% and 7125% Senior Notes of
AmeriGas Partners restrict the ability of the Partnership and
AmeriGas OLP to, among other things, incur additional indebted-
ness, make investments, incur liens, issue preferred interests, pre-
pay subordinated indebtedness, and effect mergers, consolidations
and sales of assets.

The Credit Agreement and Frrst Mortgage Notes restrict the
incurrence of additionat indebtedness and also restrict certain
liens, guarantees, investménts, loans and advances, payments,
mergers, consolidations, asset transfers, transactions with affili-
ates, sales of assets, acquisitions and other transactions. The
Credit Agreement and First Mortgage Notes require a maximum
ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA, as defined. In addition,
the Credit Agreement requires that AmeriGas OLP maintain a
minimum ratio of EBITDA to interest expense, as defined.
Generally, as long as no default exists or would result, the
Partnership and AmeriGas CLP are permitted to make cash dis-
tributions not more frequently than guarterly in an amount not to
exceed available cash, as defined, for the immediately preceding
calendar quarter.

¥

International Propane - "

On December 7, 2005, Antargaz executed a new five-year, float-
ing rate Senior Facilities Agreement with a major French bank
providing for a €380 term loan and a €50 revolving credit facility.
AGZ Finance riotified the holders of its High Yield Bonds of its
decision to’ redeem them; including a premium, pursuant to the
Trust Deed. The proceeds of the term loan were used in
December 2005 to repay immediately the existing €175 Senior
Facilities term loan, to fund the redemption of the €165 High'
Yield Bonds in January 20086, including a premium, and for gen-
eral corporate purposes. As a result of this refinancing, we
incurred a pre-tax loss on extinguishment of debt of $1.4 (30.8
aftertax). In addition, AGZ has executed interest rate swap
agreements with the same bank to fix the rate of interest on
the term loan for the duration of the lean at a rate of eppro><|-
mately 3.25% (see Note 11}, o : - &

Antargaz' term loan bears interést at euribor or lihor plus
margin, as defined by the Senior Facilities Agreement. The mar+
gin (which ranges from 0.70% to 1.15%) is dependent upon ~
Antargaz’ ratio of total net debt to EBITDA, each as defined by
the Senior Facilities Agreement. The Senior Facilities debt has
been collateralized by substantially all of Antargaz’ shares in its
subsidiaries and by substantialty all of its accounts receivable.

Effective in July 2006, Flaga entered into a euro-based, vari-
able-rate term loan facility in the amount of €48 and a working
capital facility of up to €8 which expire in September 2011. The
term loan bears interest at a rate of 0.52% 1o 1.45% over one-
to twelve-month euribor rates {as chosen by Flaga from time to
time): Generally, principal payments of €3 on the term loan are
due semi-annually on March 31 and' September 30 each year
with final payments totaling €24 due in 2011. The effective inter-”
est rate-on Flaga's term loan, at September 30, 2006 was
3.72%. In November 2006, Flaga effectively fixed the rate of
interest for the duration of its term loan at 3.91% plus margin
by entering into an interest rate swap agreement. Flaga may
prepay the term loan, in whole or in part, without incurring any
premium. Flaga refinanced its multi-currency acquisition note
(“Acquisition Note”) with the proceeds from its term loan. The
Acquisition Note bore interest at a rate of 1.25% over one- to
twelve-month euribor rates {(as chosen by Ftaga from time to
time}. The effective interest rate on the Acquisition Note was
3.44% at September 30, 2005.

Flaga's borrowings under its working capital facility at
September 30, 2006 totaled €74 {$9.4}. Borrowings at
September 30, 2005 under its former working capital loan
commitments totaled €13.5 ($16.2). Amounts outstanding
under the working capital facilities are classified as bank loans.
Borrowings under its working capital facility bear interest at
market rates (a daily euro-based rate) plus a margin and borrow-
ings under Flaga's former special purpose facility bore interest
at market rates. The weighted-average interest rates on Flaga's
bank loan borrowings outstanding were 4.23% at September
30, 2006 and 3.45% at September 30, 2005.
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Note 3 continued

Restrictive Covenants and Guarantees. The Senior Facilities -
Agreement restricts the ability of AGZ and its subsidiaries, .
including Antargaz, to, among other things, incur additional
- indebtedness, make investments, incur liens, and effect:merg-
ers, consolldatlons and,salesiofiassets. Under¢th|s.agreement
AGZis generally permlned to make restricted.payments, such
as dividends, if the ratio of net debt to EBITDA on-a French
GAAP basis, as defined in the agreement is less than 3.75 to 1.00
and if no event of default exists or would exist upon payment of
such restricted payment.

The Flaga term loan and working capital facility are subject to

= “guarantees of UGI. In addition, under certain conditions regard-

ing changes in certain financial ratios of UGI, the lending bank
may accelerate repayment of the debt.

Flaga's joint venture, ZLH, has. multi-currency working capltal
faciiities that provide for borrowings up to a total of €14, half of
which is subject to guarantees by UGI.

UGI Utilities

Revolving Credit Agreements. UG! Utilities has a revolving credit
agreement with banks providing for borrowings of up to $350.
This agreement is currently scheduled to expire in August 2007,
but may be automatically extended by UGI Utilities to August
201M. Under this agreement, UGI Utilities may borrow at various
prevailing interest rates, including LIBOR and the banks’ prime
rate. UGl Utilities pays, quar‘terly,iggllty fees on.this.credit ling.;;-

= G EUtitiSS HAd revo'l’vmg credﬁ{agreement borrowmngs tétaling

W$216'0°at September 30, 2006 and $11.2 at September 30,
2005, which we classify as bank loans, From time to time, UGI
Utilities has entered into other short-term borrowings in order to
meet liquidity needs. Such borrowings are also classified as
bank toans. At September 30, 2005, UGI Utilities had two sepa-
rate $35 borrowings outstanding under uncommitted arrange-
ments with major banks. Thase borrowings were repaid in
February and March 2008. The weighted-average interest rates
on UGI Utilities’ bank loans were 5.58% at September 30, 2006
and 4.41% at September 30, 2005.

Restﬁﬂive Covenants. UGI Utilities’ credit'agreement requires
UGI Utilities to maintain a maximum ratio of Consolidated Debt
to Consolidated Total Capital, as defined, of 0.65 to 1.00.

~
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Note 4§ - Income Taxes
Incorne before income taxes compnses the fol!owmg

Coe T TigggS 0057 2004
Demésic 7 T T s2017°  $1587 . $1607
Foreign ' 6.0 ° 148.0 15.3

Total income before income taxes $2743 $308.7 $176.0

The provisions for income taxes consist of the following: -

0060 2005 2004
Current expense: L T
Federal . $s2 ° $498  $468
State ) 120 146 14.4
Foreign 249 X 0.2
Total current expense 91.1 107.1 61.4
Deferred (benefit) expense:
Federal 23 03 43
State 13 1.6 (1.6)
Forgign 42 i06 0.7
Investment tax credit amortization (0.4} (0.4) {0.4)
Total deferred expense{benefit} - 14 <121 " 30
Total income tax expense S 985  $1192 $64.4.

S TONREE . : B R "'f-‘,,}-)d-hA B

eFederaInncome taxes for 2006 and-2006 aré net of forelgmsr
tax credits of $41.4 and $25.4, respectively. The tax benefits
associated with nonqualified stock options reduced taxes cur-
rently payable by $0.8, $10 2 and $2.9 for 2006, 2005 and 2004
respectively.

A reconciliation from the statutory federal tax rate to our
effective tax rate is as follows;

2006 . 2005 - 2004
Statutory federal tax rate "350% - 350% 35.0%
Difference in tax rate due to; T C
State income taxes, net of federal - 34 26 48
Planned repatriatien of foreign : i B
earnings net of foreign tax credits {3.3) © 22 : —
Other, net" ' 09 {09 - {3.2}
Effective tax rate 36.0% '38.9% 36.6%
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Deferred tax Irabllmes (assets) comprrse the fol!owmg at.
September 30: .
2006 2005

Excess book basis over tax basis of property, plant
and equipment $3329 $3302
SAB 51 gams ) 94.1 94.1
nangibles 53.1 53.7
Utitity regulatory assets 299 25 4
Pension plan assets and liabilities . - _. a6 .7 93
: Unrepatrlaged foreign; jgamings . - _‘ 44’ ‘ “g4
Accumulated ather cpmprehenswe |ncome . . :'_ T ‘_ . 1[] 3.
Deferred expenses - P e 19.‘;‘; o 22
Other | o " T 50° v 63
Gross deferred tax liabilities | 5437 5409
Self-insured property and casualty liability {12.9) {12.2}
Employee-related benefits (29.6) {23.5)
Premium on long-term debt {0.2) 6.7)
Tax litigation (1.n (4.4)
Deferred investment tax credits (2.8) (3.0)
Utility reguiatory liabilities {9.1) (7.4)
Operating loss carryforwards {20.2) {12.6)
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1049) {6.8)
Foreign tax credit carryforwards {28.3) (31.7)
- Accumulated other comprehenswe income "~ o LA - =
Other ' 1~ . . Y R I (YA )
Gross deferred tax assets ~ - o e (1474) - -1254)
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance ’ 393 . 376
Net-deferred tax liabilities $4356 $ 4531

UG Utilities had recorded deferred tax liabilities of approxi-
mately $40.4 as of September 30, 2006 and '$373 as of
September 30, 2005, pertaining to utility temporary differences,
principally a result of accelerated tax depreciation for state '.
income tax purposes, the tax benefits of which previously were’
or will be' flowed through to ratepayers. These deferred tax liabili-
ties have been reduced by deferred tax assets of $2.8 at
September 30, 2006 and $3.0 at September 30, 2005, pertaining
to utility deferred investmnent tax credits. UGH Utilities had record-
ed regulatory income tax assets related to these net deferred
taxes of $64.3 as of September 30, 2006 and $58.6 as of

September 30; 2005. These regulatory income tax assets repre- )
sent future revenues expected to-be recovered through the . -
ratemaking process. We will recognize this regulatory income tax
asset in deferred tax expense as the corresponding temporary
differences reverse and additional incorme taxes are incurred.
Foreign net operating loss carryforwards of Flaga totaled
approximately $35.0 all of which have no expiration date. At - .
September 30, 2006, deferred tax assets relating to operating
loss carrvforwards include $8 5 for Flaga, $1.6 for-certain opera--- =

- taons of AGZ $2.4or certalnloperatrons of AmeriGas Propane

and $77 of deferred-tax assets associated with state net operat-
|ng foss carryforwards exprrmg through 2025. A valuation - > *
“allowance f $9.4 has beenprovided for all deferred tax-asséts
related to state net operating loss carryforwards and other state
deferred tax assets of certain subsidiaries because, on a state
reportable basis, it is more likely than not that these assets will
be unusable. A valuation allowance of $1.6 was also provided for
certain operations of AGZ.

We have foreign tax credit carryforwards of approximately
$28.3 expiring through 2010, resulting from the planned repatria-
tion of AGZ's accumulated earnings and profits included in LS.
taxable income since its acquisition. Since we expect that these
credits will expire unused, a valuation allowance has been provid-
ed f_or the entire foreign tax credit carryforward amount.

-

-. "

Note 5 - Employee Retirement Plans

Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans We
sponsor two defined benefit pension plans (*Pension Plan”) for
employees of UGI, UG} Utilities, including employees of
UGIPNG, and certain of UGI's other wholly owned subsidiaries.
In addition, we provide postretirement health 'care benefits to
certain retirees and a limited humber of active employees, and
postretirement life insurance benefits 1o nearly all domestic
active and retired employees. In addition, Ahtargaz'employees
are covered by a defined benefit pension plan and a postretire-
ment medical plan. As a result of the PG Energy Acquisition, we
acguired the pension assets and assumed the pension liabilities
related to the Employees’ Retirement Plan of Southern Union
Company Pennsylvania Division (the “Division Plan”),
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Note & continued

The following provides a reconciliation of projected benefit
obligations, plan assets, and funded status of these plans as of
September 30:".

Other Pastretirement
Benefits

Pension
Benefits

2006 2005 2006 2005

Change in benefit obligations:
Benefit obligations —

Net periodic pension expense and other postretirement ben-
efit costs include the following components: -

R Pension . . Other Postietirement .
Benefits Benefits

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 - 2004
Service cost $61 $§56 § 50 sS04 8§04 302

Interest cost 143 140 130 t3 1.7 18
Expected return on assets  {19.3)  {18.0) {17.3) 06) (05 (05

beginning of year $2479 $2323 $2134 - $328 Amortization of:
Service cost 6.1 56 04 04 Transition {asset}
Interestcost, - ... ..., .143.. 140 . . 13 . 17 . ..  obligation - - (14 o02._ 08 08
Actuarial {gainlloss,. - (121} - 69 {04 (L 7} . Prior service cost 08 0.7 07 02 [y _ -
PG Energy Acquisition Mni. - 24 Actuarial {gain} loss 20 15 12 02 02 03
Plan amendments - - - {7.6} Antargaz Acquisition {a) - - 0.3 - - 02
Plan settlement _ - - ne Net benefit cost (incomet 39 38 15 13 25 29
Forelg_n currency loss {gain} 06 {02 02 {0.1) Change in regulatory .
Benefits paid ma) . o7 . 08 21 -and other assets ' j o
Benefit obligations — end of year $3167 32479 $28 §$234 and liabilities {0.4) - - 2.7 16 09
Change in plan assets: Net expense liﬁcr;me) $35 $38 $15 $40 $41 $38
Fa" value of plan asset§ - o 7 fa) In 2004, amounts related to Antargaz’ pension and othér postretirement welfare ben-
eglnnmg of year T U $2153 782002 $1w3  §102 -..efits are reflected in the above table as "Antargaz Acquisition.” Such amounts in
ctual returion plan assets T 16 255 0.9 08 - 2006 and 2005 are not segregated and are included in the apprapriate components.,
Foreign currency gain - 02 (0.1} - Pension Plan assets are held in trust. Although the Pension
Employer contributions 0.4 04 17 23 Plan projected benefit obligations exceeded plan assets at
PG Energy Acquisition - 623 . " = September 30, 2006 and 2005, plan assets exceeded accumulat-
Plan SF'H|EIIIEHI - - (08) - ed benefit cbligations by $6.0 and $74, respectively. The Company
Benefits paid 4 (t07) (1.8 (2.1} did not make any contributions in 2006 nor does it believe it will
Fair value of plan assets — ' be required to-make any contributions to the Pension Plan during
-end of year - $2784 $2153  $ma3  §$112 the year ending September 30, 2007 for ERISA funding purposes.
Funded status of the plans_ $(383) $(3261  S(t26) $(12.2) At September 30, 2006, the accumulated benefit obligation of
Unrecognized net actuarial l0ss 3.2 462 24 37 AGZ benefits exceeded the plan assets by $5.3. However, the
Unrecognized prior service cost {0.4) 11 (2.3) (2.5) accrual recorded in aur Consolldated Balance Sheet at September
Unrecognized net transition (asset) . ' 30, 2006 exceeds the minimum pensmn liability. Antargaz does
obligation _ oD - a1 08 not expect to make any contributions to fund AGZ benefits. during
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost — the year ending September 30, 2007
end of year . s 4'.5 $ 147 S8  $(102) Pursuant to orders issued by the PUC, UGI Utilities has estatr
- . ||shed a Voluntary Employees Beneficiary Association (“VEBA'"}
Weighted-average assumptions trust to pay retireg health care and life insurance benefits by
as of September 30 (a): ' - ' depositing into the VEBA the annual amount of postretirement
Discount rate 60% 57%  60% 57%  penefits costs determified under SFAS No. 106, “Employers
Expected return on plan assets 85%  90%  S56%  58%  Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions.” The
Rate of increase in:salary levels 38% 40%  38% 40%  difference between such amounts and amounts included in UGI

{2) Represents domestic plan assumptions, Assumptions for the foreign plans are
based on market conditions in France.

Net pension expense is determined using assumptions as of
the beginning of each fiscal year and, in the case of UGIPNG’s
pension and postretirernent plans, as of August 31, 2006.
Funded status is determined using assumptions as of the end
of each fiscal year. The expected rate of return on assets
assumption is based on the rates of return for certain asset
classes and the allocation of plan assets among those asset
classes as well as actual historic long-term rates of return on
our plan assets.

Gas' and Electric Utility's rates is deferred for future recovery
from, or refund to, ratepayers. Effective July 1, 2005, substantial-
ly all retirees and their beneficiaries participating in the UGH
Utilities” postretirement benefit program were enrolled in insured
Medicare Advantage plans. As a result, the net benefit cost
declined for periods subsequent to July 1, 2005. Additionally, the
UGI Utilities' required contribution to the VEBA during the year
ending September 30, 2007 is not expected to be material.
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Expei:ted payments for pension benefits and for other
postretirement welfare benefits are as follows:

Other

Pension Pastretirement

Benefits Benefits

Fiscal 2007 $147 $1.7
Fiscal 2008 151 1.7
Fiscal 2009 195 18
Fiscal 2010 L i: ) ) . 60 - o 1.8
Fuscal 2011 ‘ L 66 - 18
Fiscal 20122016 ° » “ g1 . T ga

in acclordance with our investment strategy 1o obtain long-term
growth, our target asset allocations are to maintain a mix of 60%
equities and the remainder in fixed income funds or cash equiva-
lents. The targets and actual allocations for the Pension Plan
assets and VEBA trust assets at September 30 are as follows:

Note 7 Serles Preferred Stock

UGH has 10,000, 000 shares of UGI Series Preferred Stock, |nclud|ng
both series subject to and series not subject to mandatory redemp-
tion, authorized for issuance. We had no shares of UGI Series
Preferred Stock cutstanding at September 30, 2006 or 2005.

UGI Utilities has 2,000,000 shares of UGI Utilities Series

Preferred Stock, including both series subject to and series not sub-
ject to mandatory redemptlon authorized for issuance. At
September 30, 2006, there were no G| Utlhtles Series Preferred .
Stock outstanding. - . - -

On October 1, 2004 UGI Utllmes redeemed a!l 200 000 shares
of its $775 UGI Utilities Series Preferred Stock at a price of $100 per
share together with full cumulative dividends. The redemption was
funded with proceeds from the October 2004 issuance of $20 of
6.13% Medium-Termn Notes due October 2034,

Note 8 — Common Stock and Incentive Stock
Award Plans

Target Pension Plan VEBA
Pension Plan VEBA 2006 2005 2006 2005
Equities 60% 60% 60% 60% 63% 62%
Fixed income funds 0% 30% 4% 40% 0% 3%
Cash equivalents N/A  10% N/A  N/A 1% 7%

UGI Common Stock comprised approximately 7% and 11% of
Pension Plan assets at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The assumed domestic health care cost irend rates are 10%
for fiscal 2007 decreasing to 5.5% in fiscal 2011. A one percent-
age point change in the assumed health care cost trend rate
would change the 2006 postretirement benefit cost and obliga-
tion as follows:

v ' 1% Increase- 1% Decrease

. , .
Etfect on tolal service and interest costs $0.1 $10.1)
Effect on postretuemem benefit obllgatlon $0.7 '$10.6}

We also sponsor unfunded and non-qualified supplemental
executive retirement plans. At September 30, 2006 and 2005,
the projected benefit obligations of these plans were $170 and
$14.8, respectively. We recorded net benefit-costs for these plans
of $2.4 in 2006, $2.0 in 2005, and $1.9 in 2004. We also recorded
a settlement loss of $1.5 in 2004 associated with these plans.

Defined Contribution Plans. We sponsor 401{k} savings plans for
eligible employees of UGI and certain of UGl's domestic sub-
sidiaries. Generally, participants in these plans may contribute a
portion of their compensation on either a before-tax basis, or on
both a before-tax and aftertax basis. These plans also provide for
either mandatory or discretionary employer matching contribu-
tions at various rates. The cost of benefits under the savings
plans totaled $78 in 20086, $8.3 in 2005, and $8.2 in 2004.

Note 6 — Inventories

Inventories comprise the following at September 30:

2006 2005
LPG and natural gas $140.5 $1345
Utility natural gas and LPG 157.0 69.2
Materials, supplies and other 429 36.1
Total inventories $340.4 $239.9

In March 2004, UGI Corporation sold 15.6 million shares {including
shares sold 1o the underwriters upon exercise of their overallot-
ment option in April 2004) of UGI Cornmon Stock in an underwrit-
ten public offering at a public offering price of $16.05 per share. As
stated in Note 2, the proceeds of the public offering of approxi-
rmately $239 were used primarily to fund a portion of the purchase
price of the remaining ownership interests in AGZ.

UGI Common Stock share activity for 2004, 2005, and 2006
follows:

Issued Treasury Outstanding
99,596;194 . (14,197,478)- 85,398,716

Balance September 30, 2003 -~
Issued:
Public offering
Employee and directer plans
Dividend reinvestment plan

16,556,800 - 15,556,800
1,306,500 1,306,500
160,380 160,380

i

oy e e e ey

Reacquired - - -
Balance September 30, 2004 115,152,994 (12,730,598} 102,422,396
Issued: .
Employee and director plans - 2320478 2320478
Dividend reinvestment plan ) - 106,584 106,584

Balance September 30, 2005
Issued:
Employee and director plans
Dividend reinvestment plan

115,152,994 (10,303,536} 104,849,458

438,642 498,642
106,262 106,262

Balance September 30, 2006 115,152,994  {9,698,632) 105,454,362

Stock Option and Incentive Plans. Under UGI's 2004 Omnibus
Equity Compensation Plan (“OECP"}, we may grant options to ~
acquire shares of Common Stock, or issue Units to key employ-
ees and non-employee directors. The exercise price for optiens
may not be less than the fair market value on the grant date.
Grants of stock options or Units may vest immediately or rat-
ably over a period of years (generally three to four year periods),
and stock options generally can be exercised no later than ten
years from the grant date.

Under the QECP awards representing up to 7000,000 shares
of Common Stock may be granted. The maximum number of
shares that may be issued pursuant to grants other than stock
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Note 8 continued

options or dividend equivalents is 1,600,000 shares. In addition, -
the OECP provides that both optaon grants and Unrts may pro-
vide for the crediting of Commaon Stock dividend equivalents to
participants' accounts. Dividend equivalents on'employee
awards will be paid in cash. Dividend equivalents on non-employ-
ee director awards are paid in additional Commaon Stock -Units.
Unit awards granted to employees and non-employee directors
are settled in shares of Common Stock and cash. Beginning with
20086 grants, Unit awards granted to Antargaz employees are
settled in shares of Common Stock. The actual number of shares
{or their cash equivalent) ultimately issued, and the actual
amount of dividend equwalents paid.to employees, is generally..
dependent upon the achievement of market performancé goals -
and service conditions. It is the Company’s practice to issue
treasury shares to:satisfy option exercises and Unit-awards. The
Company does not expect to repurchase shares for such purpos-
es during the year ending September 30, 2007 During 2006,
2005 and 2004, the Company'made stock:based' awards other -
than stock options representing 187326, 286,230, and.293,569;
shares, ‘respectively, having weighted-average grant “date fair val-
ues per Unit of $22.74; $22.62 and $20.46, respectivély. At
September-30, 2006, awards representing 923,662 shares of - -
Commion Stock were outstanding-under our equity compensa--
tion plans. There are stock options outstanding Linder other pred-
ecessor plans, - however, since January 2004 no awards have
been made under any plan other than the OECP

Stock option transactions under alt of our plans for 2004
2005 and 2006 follow:"

Average Intrinsic
Shares Option Price  Value

Shares under option - SeptemberSD 2003 4964978 941

Granted i 1,494 500 16.82
Exercised {1,042 052) - 783 386
Forfeited ©(B8, 500) 12.85

. Shares under option - September 30, 2004 5328 926 nmn .
Granted © 1,596,100 . 2113
Exercised (1,913,668} 8.41 $30.4
Forfeited ‘ (58,340} . , . 219t |
Shares under aption - September 30,2006 4953018 . : 1595
Granted . . 1,159,100, - 20.67 R
Exercised (232,766) no $27
Forfeited (35,500) 19.26
Shares under option - September 30, 2006 = 5,843,852 17.06 $43.2
Options exercisable 2004 2,718,670 a.01
Optrons exercisable 2005 2,093,821, 12.38 .
Options exercisable 2006 3,146,952 186 831
Non-vested options - September 30, 2006 2,696,800 = 1997  §$121

Cash received from the exercises of stock optrons and asso-
ciated tax beneflts were $2.6 and $1. 0, respectlvely during the
year ended September 30, 2008. As of September 30, 20086,
the average remaining terms of shares under optuon options
exercisable and unvested options were 7.3 years, 6.4 years and
8.4 years, respectively. As of September 30, 2006, there was
$3.1 of unrecognized compensation cost associated with non-
vested stock options that is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.9 years.
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The following table presents additional information refating to
stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2006:

R s Range of Exercise Prices

§6.88-  $1257-  $1823-
$1063  $1701 . $27.90

Options outstanding at September 30, 2006:

_ Number of options 798,850 2,299902 2.745.100
Weighted average remaining

contractual fife {in years) 458 6.66 8.59

Weighted average exercise price $9.64 $15.06 $20.89

i

798850 1743902 ' 604,200
S964  $1458  $2103

Optmns exercisable at September 30, 2006
- Numbgr of optlons
Welghted average exercise price

The fo'.!owmg table lustrates Unit award actw'.ty

ey

We|ghted Average
- Number of Grant Date Fair ~

T C ) UGI Units Valug (per Unit}
Non-vested Units - September 30, 2005 -~ 313,227 $21.35
Granted . 187,326 - $2274
Forfeited g S {967 . VA L]
Vested* - R (274681).. . $21.42
Non-vested Units - September, 30,-2006 22490 . $22.46

" During 2008, a portion 6f vested Unit awards were settled in
shares of UGI Common Stock and approximately $2.3 in cash. As
of September 30, 2006 there was a total of apprommateiy $6.1
of unrecognized' compensatlon cost associated with 656 417 Unrt
awards that is expected to be recognized over a welghted aver-
age period of 1.6 years. The total fair values of Units that vested
during 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $76, $9.3 and $2.4, respec-
tively. As of September 30, 2008, total liabilities of $13.9 associat-
ed with Unit awards are reflected in other current liabilities and
other noncurrent liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet,

" At September 30, 2008, 1,896,508 shares of Common Stock
were available for future grants under the OECP of which up to
644,595 may be issued pursuant to grants other-than stock -
options or dividend equivalents.. :

Other Equrty—Based Compensatlon Plans and Awards. Under the
AmeriGas Propane, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive Plan {2000
Propane Plan), the General Partner may grant to key empioyees -
the right to receive a total of 500,000 AmeriGas Partners Common
Units {“Common Units"}, or cash equivalent to the fair market
value of such Common Units. In addition, the 2000 Propane Plan -
authorizes the crediting of Partnership Common. Unit distribution
equwalents to participants’ accounts. Any distribution equivalents
wilt be paid.in cash. The actual number of Common Units (o their
cash equivalent) ultimately issued, and the actual amount of distri-
bution equivalents paid, is dependent upon the achievement of
market performance goals and service conditions.'Generally, each '
grant, unless paid, will terminate when the participant ceases to be
employed by the General Partner. We also have a nonexecutive
Comrmon Unit plan under which the General Partner may grant -
awards of up to a total of 200,000 Comman Units to key employ-
ées who do not participate in the 2000 Propane Plan. Generally,
awards under the nonexecutive plan vest at the end of a three-year
period and will be paid in Common Units and gash. The General -
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Partner made awards under the 2000 Propane Plan and the nonex-
ecutive plan representing 38,350, 41,100, and 51,200 Commoen -
Units in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, having weighted-aver-
age grant date fair values per Common Unit of $35.33, $36.09 and .
$35.42, respectively. At September 30, 2006 and 2005, awards
representing 113,517 and 116,000 Common Units, respectively,
were outstanding."At September 30, 2006, 346,972 and 150,750
Cornmon Units were available for future grants under the 2000
Propane Plan and the nonexecutive plan, respectively.

The following table illustrates AmeriGas Partners Common
Unit award activity:

. Number of Waighted-Average
i AmeriGas Partners Grant Date Fair
. Common Units Value {per Unit)
Non-vested Units - September 30, 2005 . 16000 ... <R
Granted *! 38,350 : $35.33
Forfeited (9,000} $30.89
Vested (6,750)a) $23.20
Performance criteria not met {25.083) $30.43
Neon-vested Units - September 30, 2006 113,517 " 33389

{al Represénts awards under the pun-execmive plan of 4,500 that were settled through
the issuance of new AmeriGas Partners Common Units and 2,250 that were settled
in cash. . .-

As of September 30, 2006, there was a total of approximately
$1.5 of unrecognized compensation cost associated with
113,517 Common Unit awards that is expected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of 1.7 years. The total fair values
of Common Units that vested during 2006, 2005 and 2004
were $0.2, §1.0 and $1.6, respectively. As of September 30,
2006, total liabilities of $2.2 associated with Common Unit
awards are reflected in other current liabilities and other noncur-
rent liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Fair Value Information. The per share weighted-average fair
value of stock options granted under our option plans was
$3.88 in 2006, $2.81 in 2005 and $1.89 in 2004. These amounts
were determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model,
which values opticns based on the stock price at the grant date,
the expected life of the option, the estimated volatility of the
stock, expected dividend payments, and the risk-free interest
rate over the expected life of the option. The expected life of
option awards represents the period of time which option
grants are expected to be cutstanding and is derived from his-
torical exercise patterns. Expected volatility 1s based on.the his-
torical volatility of the price of UGI's Common Stock. Expected
dividend yield is based on the historical UGt dividend rates. The
risk free interest rate is based upon U.S. Treasury bonds with
comparable terms to the options in effect on the date of grant.

The assumptions we used for option grants during 20086,
2005 and 2004 are as follows:

Stock Ownership Policy. Under the terms of our Stock
Ownership Policy, executives and certain key employees are
required to own UGI Common Stock in amounts ranging from
6,000 to 300,000 shares. Prior to the enactment of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, we offered full recourse, interest-bearing
loans to employees in order to assist them in meeting the owner-
ship requirements. The Company is'no tonger offering loans
under this program. At September 30, 2006 and 2005, there
were no loans outstanding under this program. At September 30,
2004, loans outstanding totaled $0.2.

Note 9 — Partnership Distributions

The Partnership makes distributions to its partners ‘approximate-
ly 45 days after the end of each fiscal quarter in a total amount
equal to its Available Cash for such quarter. Available Cash gen-- -
erally means: ' R

1. all cash on hand at the end of such quarter,

2. plus alt additional cash on hand as of the date of determi-
nation resulting from barrowings after the end of such
quarter,

3. less the amount of cash reserves established by the
General Partner in its reasonable discretion.

The General Partner may ‘establish reserves for the proper
conduct of the Partnership’s business and for distributions dur-
ing the next four quarters. In addition, certain of the
Partnership’s debt agreements require reserves be established
for the payment of debt principal and interest.

Distributions of Available Cash are made 98% to limited part-
ners and 2% to the General Partner. The Partnership may pay an
incentive distribution to the General Partner if Available Cash
exceeds the Minimum Quarterly Distribution of $0.55 and the
First Target Distribution of $0.055 per unit on all units.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

We lease various buildings and other facilities and transportation,
computer and office equipment under operating leases. Certain of
our leases contain renewal and purchase options and alsc contain
step-rent provisions. Our aggregate rental expense for such leases
was $60.3 in 2006, $55.1 in 2005, and $50.4 in 2004,

Minimum future payments under operating leases that have
initial or remaining noncancelable terms in excess of one year are
as follows:

After

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2011

AmeriGas Propane $470 $406 $347 3296 §237 3507

UG Utitities 42 32 21 15 1.1 25
International Propane

and other 39 25 07 0.2 - -

Total $55.1 $463 $375 $31.3 §248 532

2006 2005 2004
Expected life of option 6 years 6 years 6 years
Weighted-average volatility 21.3% 172.7% 18.2%
Weighted-average dividend yield 34% 4.1% 49%
Expected volatility 21.2%-22.6% 17.1%-17.8% 17.6%-18.4%
Expected dividend yield 28%-34% 37%-42% 44%-50%
Risk free interest rate 43%-4.9% 39%-43% 35%-44%

Gas Utility has gas supply agreements with producers and
marketers with terms not exceeding one year. Gas Utility also
has agreements for firm pipeline transpartation and natural gas
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Note 10 continued

storage services, which Gas Utility may terminate at various
dates through 2016. Gas Utility's costs associated with trans- -~
portation and storage capacity agreements are included in its -
annual PGC filing with the PUC and are recoverable through «
PGC rates. In addition, Gas Utility has short-term gas supply
agreements which permit it to purchase certain of its gas sup-
ply needs on a firm or interruptible basis at spot-market prices.

Electric Utility purchases its capacity requirements and elec-
tric energy needs under contracts with various suppliers and.an
the spot market. Contracts with: producers for capacity and
energy needs expire at various dates through fiscal 2011.

MEnergv.Serwces enters into fixed price contracts with suppli-

ers to purchase natural gas to meet its- sales commltments -t
Generally, these contracts have terms of less than two years.

The Partnership enters into fixed-price and, from time to
time, variable-priced contracts to purchase a portion of its sup-
ply requirements. These contracts generally have terms of less
than one year.

International Propane, particularly Antargaz, enters into vari-
able-priced contracts to purchase a portion of its supply require-
ments. Generally, these contracts have terms that do not
exceed three years.

The following table presents contractual obhganons undEr
Gas Utility, Electric Utility, Energy Servnces AmeriGas Propane
and International Propane supply, storage and service contracts
existing at Septermnber 30, 2006:

After

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2014

Gas Utility and Electric
Utility supply storage
and transportation ‘ . ‘
contracts $367.2 $1571 $1445 $840 $464 3869

Energy Sefvices ) ' o :
supply contracts 5481 131

AmeriGas Propane
supply contracts

international Propane
supply contracts 1162 50 432 ° - . - =

Total $1.0522 $3282 $188.0 $840 $464 $86.9

coaT s

0.3 - - -

07 - - oL

The Partnership and International Propane alsc enter into
other contracts to purchase LPG to meet supply requirements.
Generally, these contracts are one- to three-year agreements
subject to annual review and call for payment based on either
market prices at date of delivery or fixed prices.

On August 21, 2001, AmeriGas Partners, through AmeriGas
OLP acquired the propane distribution businesses of Columbia
Energy Group (the “2001 Acquisition”) pursuant to the terms of
a purchase agreement (the 2001 Acquisition Agreemsent”) by
and among Columbia Energy Group (*CEG”), Columbia Propane
Corporation {“Columbia Propane”}, Columbia Propane, L.P
{"CPLP"), CP Holdings, Inc. ("CPH," and together with Columbia
Propane and CPLP the "Company Parties"), AmeriGas Partners,
AmeriGas OLP and the General Partner (together with AmeriGas
Partners and AmeriGas OLF the "Buyer Parties”). As a result of
the 2001 Acquisition, AmeriGas OLP acquired all of the stock of
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Columbia Propane and CPH and substantially all of the partner-
ship interests of CPLP Under the terms of an earlier acquisition
agreement (the " 1999 Acquisition Agreement”), the Company
Parties agreedto indemnify the former generai partners of
National Propane Partners, L.P {a predecessor company of the
Columbia Propane businesses) and an affiliate (collectively,
“National General Partners”} against certain income tax and
other losses that they may sustain as a result of the 1999 acqui-
sition by CPLP of National Propane Partners, L.P-{the-"1999 -
Acquisition”} or the operation of the business after the 1999
Acquisition ("National Claims™). At September 30, 2006, the
potential amount payable under, this indemnity, by the Companyge.
Parties was approximately $58 These indemnity-obligations' will *r<rm
expure on the date that CPH acquures the remaining outstanding -
partnership interest of CPLP which is expected to occur on or
after July 19, 2009. Under the terms of the 2001 Acquisition
Agreement, CEG agreed to indemnify the Buyer Parties and the
Company Parties against any losses that they sustain under the
1999 Acquisition Agreement and related agreements (“Losses”},
including National Claims, to the extent such claims are based
on acts or omissions of CEG or the Company Parties prior to the
2001 Acquisition. The Buyer Parties agreed to inderﬁnify CEG
against Losses, including National Claims, to the extent such
claims are based on acts or omissions of the Buyer Parties or
the Company Parties after the 2001 Acquisition. CEG and the
Buyer Parties have agreed to apportion certain losses résulting
from National Claims to the extent such losses result from the .
2001 Acquisition itself. '

Samue! and Brenda Swiger and thelr son (the “Swigers”) sUs-_f o
tained personal injuries’ gnd property damage as a result of a'fire”
that occurred when propane that leaked from an underground
line ignited. In July 1998, the Swigers filed a class action lawsuit
against AmeriGas OLP (named incorrectly as “UGl/AmeriGas, ‘
Inc’), in the Circuit Court of Monongalia County, West Virginia, in
which they sought to recover an unspecified amount of compen-
satory and punitive damages and attorney’s fees, for themselves
and on behalf of persons in'West Virginia for whom the defen-
dants had installed propane gas lines, allegedly resulting from the
defendants’ failure to install underground propane lines.at depths
required by applicable safety standards. In 2003, AmeriGas OLP
settled the individual personal injury and property damage claims
of the Swigers. In 2004, the court granted the plaintiffs” motion
to include customers acquired from Columbia Propane in August
2001 as additional potential class. members and the plaintiffs .
amended their complaint to name additional parties pursuant to
such ruling. Subsequently, in March 2005, AmeriGas OLP filed a
crossclaim against CEG, former owner of Columbia Propane,
seeking indemnification for conduct undertaken by Columbia
Propane prior to AmeriGas CLP’s acquisition. Class counsel has
indicated that the class.is seeking compensatory damages in
excess of $12 plus punitive damages, civil penalties and attor-
neys’ fees. We believe we have good defenses to the claims of
the class members and intend to defend against the remaining
claims in this lawsuit.

From the late 1800s through the mid-1900s, UGI Utilities and
its former subsidiaries owned and operated a number of manu-
factured gas plants (*“MGPs"} prior to the general availability of
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natural gas. Some constituents of coal tars and other residuas
of the manufactured gas process are today considered haz-
ardous substances under the Superfund Law and may be pres-

ent on the sites of former MGPs. Between 1882 and 1953, UGI ]

Utilities owned the stock of subsidiary gas companies in -
Pennsylvania and elsewhere and als¢ operated the businesses
of some gas compan:es under agreement. Pursuant to the
requirements of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935;
UGI Utilities divested all of-its utility operations other than those
which now constitute UG! Gas and Electric Utility.

UGI Utilities does not expect its costs for investigation and
remediation of hazardous substances at Pennsylvania MGP
sites to be material to its results of operations because UG

. Gas is currently pérmitted to include in rates, through future
base rate proceedings, prudently incurred remediation costs
associated with such sites. In accordance.with existing regula-

“tory practices of the PUC, PNG Gas currently amortizes as
removal cost over a five-year period site-specific environmental
investigation and remediation costs.

As a result of the acquisition of PG Energy by UGH Utilities’
wholly-owned subsidiary, UGIPNG, UGIPNG became party to a
Multi-Site Remnediation Consent Order and Agreement between
PG Energy and the Pennsylvania Department of Environmental
Protection dated March 31, 2004 {"Multi-Site Agreement”}. The
Multi-Site Agreement requires UGIPNG to perform annually a
specified:level of activities associated with environmenta!l inves-
tigation and remediation work at eleven currently owned proper-
ties on which MGP-related facilities were operated
{"Properties”). Under the Multi-Site Agreement, UGIPNG is not
required‘to spénd more than $1.1 in any calendar year for such
environmental expenditures, including costs to perform work on
the Properties. Costs related to investigation and remediation of
one property formerly owned by UGIPNG are also included in
this cap. The Multi-Site Agreement terminates at the end of fif-
teen years but may be terminated by either party at the end of
any two-year period beginning with the effective date.

UGI Utilities has been notified of several sites outside
Pennsylvania on which private parties allege MGPs were for-
merly owned or operated by it or owned or operated by its for-
mer subsidiaries. Such parties are investigating the extent of
environmental contamination or performing environmental
remediation. UGI Utilities is currently litigating four claims
against it relating to out-of-state sites. We accrue environmental
investigation and cleanup costs when it is probable that a liabili-
ty exists and the amount or range of amounts can be reason-
ably estimated.

Management believes that under applicable law UGI Utilities
should not be liable in those instances in which a-former sub-
sidiary owned or operated an MGP There could be, however,
significant future costs of an uncertain amount associated with
environmental damage caused by MGPs outside Pennsyivania
that UGI Utilities directly operated, or that were owned or oper-
ated by former subsidiaries of UGl Utilities, if a court were to
conclude that {1} the subsidiary’s separate corporate form
should be disregarded or (2) UGI Utilities should be considered
to have been an operator because of its conduct with respect
to its subsidiary’s MGP

On September 22, 2008, South Carolina Electric & Gas
Company {("SCE&G"),.a subsidiary of SCANA Corporation, filed
a lawsuit against UGI Utilities in the District Court of South
Carolina seeking contribution from UGH Utilities for. past and
future remediation costs related to the operations of a former
MGP located in Charleston, South Carolina. SCE&G asserts that
the plant operated from 1855 to 1954 and alleges that UGI
Utilities controlled operations of the plant from 1910 t0-1926
and is liable for 47% of the costs associated with the site.
SCE&G asserts that it has spent approximately $22 in remedia-
tion costs and $26 in third-party claims relating to the site and
estimates that future remediation costs could be as high as
$2.5. SCE&G further asserts that it has received a demand from
the United States Justice Department for natural resource dam-
ages. UGI Utilities believes that it has good defenses to this .
claim and is defending the suit.

In April 2003; Citizens Commumcauons Company (“Citizens")
served a complaint naming UGI Utilities as a third-party defen-
dant in a civil action pending in the United States District for the
District of Maine. In that action, the plaintiff, City of Bangor,
Maine (" City"”) sued Citizens to recover environmental response
costs associated with MGP wastes generated at a plant alleged-
ly operated by Citizens’ predecessors at a site on the Penobscot
River. Citizens subsequently joined UGI Utilities and tén other
third-party defendants alleging that the third-party defendants
are responsible for an equitable share of costs Citizens may bhe
required to pay to the City for cleaning up tar deposits in the
Penobscot River. Citizens alleges that UGI Utilities and its prede-
cessors owned and operated the plant from 1901 to 1928,
Studies conducted by the City and Citizens suggest that it could
cost up to $18 to clean up the river. Citizens’ third party claims
have been stayed pending a resolution of the City’s suit against
Citizens, which was tried in September 2005, Maine's
Department of Environmental Protection {*DEP") informed UG-
Utilities in March 2005 that it considers UGI Utilities to be a
potentially responsible party for costs incurred by the State of .
Maine related to gas plant contaminants at this site. On June 27
2006, the court issued an order finding Citizens responsible for
60% of the cleanup costs. The amount of Citizens’ liability has
not been finally determined. The court has stayed further pro-
ceedings while the City and Citizens discuss settlement. UGI
Utilities believes that it has good defenses to Citizens’ cfaim and
to any claim that the DEP may bring to recover its costs, and is
defending the Citizens’ suit.

By letter dated July 29, 2003, Atlanta Gas Light Company
{"AGL") served UGI Utilities with a complaint filed in the United
States District Court for the Middle District of Florida in which
AGL alleges that UGI Ukilities is responsible for 20%.of approxi-
mately $8 incurred by AGL in the investigation and remediation
of a former MGP site in St. Augustine, Florida. UGI Utilities for-
merly owned stock of the St. Augustine Gas Company, the
owner and operator of the MGP On March 22, 2005, the trial
court granted UGI Utilities” motion for summary judgment. AGL
appealed and on September 6, 2006, the Eleventh Circuit Court
of Appeals affirmed the trial court’s entry of summary judg-
ment, effectively terminating the case.

'

53




UGI Corporation 2006 Annual Report

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{Millions of dollars and euros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwisa)

Note 10 continued

AGL previously informed UG! Utilities that it was investigat-

ing contamination that appeared to be related to MGP opera- . .

tions at a site owned by-AGL in Savannah, Georgia. A former-

subsidiary of UGI Utilities operated the MGP. in the early 19005‘

AGL has mformed UGLUtilities that it has begun remediation of
MGP wastes af the-site and believes that the total cost of -
remediation could be as high as $55. AGL has not filed suit
against UGI Utilities for.a share of these costs. UGI Utilities
believes that it will have good defenses to any action that may
arise out of this site.

On September 20, 2001, Consolidated EdlSOﬂ Company of -
New York ("ConEd") filed suit against UGI Utilities in the United
States District Court for the Southern District-of New York,

b

seeking contribution from UGI.Utilities for an allocated share of -

response costs associated with investigating and assessing gas
plant related contamination at former MGP sites in Westchester
County, New York. The complaint alleges that UGI Utilities

“owned and operated” the MGPs prior to 1904. The complaint
also seeks a declaration that UGI Utilities is responsible for an
aliocated percentage of future investigative and remedial costs
at the sites. ConEd believes that the cost of remediation for all
of the sites could exceed $70.

*. The trial court granted UG Utilities’ motion for surnmary judg-
ment and dismissed ConEd's complaint, The.grant of summary
judgment was entered April 1, 2004, ConEd appealed and on
Septermnber 9, 2005 a panel of the Second Circuit Court of Appeals
affirmed in part and reversed in part the decision of the trial court.
The appellate panel affirmed the trial court’s decision dismissing
claims that UGI Utilities was liable:under CERCLA as an operator
of MGPs owned and operated by its former subsidiaries. The
appellate panel reversed the triat court's decision that UGI Utilities
was released from liability at three sites where UGI Utilities oper-

ated MGPs under lease. On October 7 2005, UGI Utilities filed for-

reconsideration of the panel's order, which was denied by the .
Second.Circuit Court of Appeals on January 17, 2006. On April 14,
2006, Utilities filed a petition requesting that the United States .

Supreme Court.review the decision of the Second Circuit Court of”

Appeals, On October 2, 2006, the Supreme.Court entered an
order inviting the Solicitor General to file a brief expressmg the -
views of the United States in this case.

By letter dated June 24, 2004, KeySpan Energy (* KeySpan )
informed UGI Utilities that KeySpan has spent $2.3 and expects
to spend another $11 to clean up an MGP site it owns in Sag
Harbor, New York. KeySpan believes that UGI Utilities is respon-
sible for approximately 50% of these costs as a result of UG
Utilities” alleged direct ownership and operation of the plant
from 1885 to 1902, By letter dated June 6, 2006, KeySpan
reported that the New York Department of Envirenmental
Conservation has approved a remedy for the site that is esti-
mated to cost approximately $10. KeySpan beiieves that the
cost could be as high as $20. UGI Utilities s in the process of
reviewing the information provided by KeySpan and is investi-
gating this claim.

+On September 11, 2008, UGI Uttlmes received a complaint
filed by Yankee Gas Services Company and Connecticut Light

and Power Company, subsidiaries of Northeast Utilities, (togeth-
er the "Northeast Companies”} in the United States District
Court for the District of Connecticut seeking contribution from

-UGI Utilities for past and future remediation-costs-related to .

MGP operations on thirteen sites owned by the Northeast
Companies in nine cities in the State of Connecticut. The-
Northeast Companies allege that UGI Utilities-controlled opera-
tions of the plants from 1883 to 1941. The Northeast Companies
estimated that remediation costs for all of the sites would total
approximately $215 and asserted that UGI Utilities is responsi-
ble for approximately $103 of this amount. Based on informa-
tion supplied by the Northeast Companies and UGl Utilities”
own investigation, UGI-Utilities believes that it may have's operat-

ed one of the sites, Waterbury North, under lease for a portion
of its operating history. UGI Utilities is reviewing the Northeast
Companies’ estimate that remediation costs at Waterbury North
could total $23. UGI Utilities believes that it has good defenses
to this claim and is defending the suit.

French tax authorities levy various taxes on legal entities and
individuals regularty operating a business in France which are
commonly referred to collectively as “business tax” The amount
of business tax charged annually is generally dependent upon
the value of the entity's-tangible fixed.assets. Prior to the

~ Antargaz Acquisition, Antargaz filed suit against French tax

authorities in connection with'the assessment of business tax
related to certain of its owned tanks at customer locations. EIf.
Antar France and Eif Aquitaine, now Total France, former owners
of Antargaz, agreed:to indemnify Antargaz for all payments
which would have been due from Antargaz in respect of the tax .
related to its tanks for the period from January 1, 1997 through
December 31, 2000. During the year ended September 30, .
2008, Antargaz was required to remit payment td the French tax
authorities with respect to this matter and Antargaz was fully

reimbursed pursuant to the indemnity agreement. The indemnity:

from the former owners is reflected in our balance sheet as both
an asset and a liability. At September 30, 2006, the remaining',
amount subject to the indemnification is immaterial. )

On-February 4, 2005, Antargaz.received a letter that was
issued by the French government to the French Cormittee of
Butane and Propane {"CFBP!"), a butane/propane industry group,
concerning the business tax, that eliminated the requirement for
Antargaz to pay business tax associated with'tanks at certain
customer-locations. In addition, during 2005 resclution was.
reached relating'to business taxes relating to a prior year. Further
changes in the French government or tax authorities’ interpreta-
tion of the tax laws or in the tax laws themselves, could have
either an adverse or a favorable effect on our results of opera-
tions. Our 2005 Statement of Income includes a pre-tax gain of
$18.8 and net aftertax gain of $14.2 associated with the resolu-
tion of business tax matters related principally to prior years.

-In addition to these matters,. there are other pending claims
and legal actions arising in the normal course of our business-
es. We cannot predict with certainty the final results of environ-
mental and other matters. However, it is reasonably possible
that some of them could be resolved unfavorably to us and
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result in: Iosses m excess of.recorded.amounts.-We are unable', -'
to estimate any posmb!e losses in BXCess of recorded arnounts
Although we currently believe, after consultation with counsel
that: damages or settlements, if any, recovered by_the plaintiffs
in such clalms orjactions will not have a material adverse effect -
on our financial position, damages or setttements could be -,
material;to-our oﬁeratmg results or cash flows.in+future pericds -
dependmg on-the nature and timing of future-developments - -
with respect to these matters and the amounts of future oper-
ating results and cash flows.

Note 11 — Financial Instruments

In accordance with its comrhodity'hedging policy, the Partn'ership
uses derlvatrve instruments, mcludrng price’ swap and optlon con-
tracts and contracts for the forward sale of propane, to manage
the cost of a portron of its forecasted purchases of propane and to
manage market risk associated W|th propane storage inventories.
These derwatrve rn'struments have beén designated by the
Partnership as cash flow or fair value hedges under SFAS 133. The
fair values'of these derivative rnstruments are affected by changes
in propane product prices. In addition to these derivative instru-"
ments, the Pannershlp may also enter into contracts for the for-
ward purchase of propane as well as fixed-price’ supply agree- *
ments 10 manage propane market price risk. These contracts gen-
erally qualify for the normal purchases and normal sales exception
of SFAS ~133 and therefore aré not adjusted 'to fair value.

Flaga also uses derivative instruments, principally price swap
contracts to reduce market risk associated with purchases of
LPG. These contracts may or may not qualrfy for hedge account-
ing under SFAS 133

Antargaz uses forward forelgn exchange contracts and may
use other denvatrve |nstruments similar to those used by the
Partnership, to-manage the cost of a portion of its forecasted
purchases of LPG.

Energy Services uses exchange-traded and overthe-counter
natural gas futures contracts to manage market risk associated
with forecasted purchases of natural gas it sells under firm com-
mitments. In addition, Energy Services uses price swap and
option contracts to manage market risk associated with forecast-
ed purchases of prepane it sells under firm commitments. These
derivative instruments are designated as cash flow hedges. The
fair values of these futures and swap and option contracts are
affected by changes in natural gas and propane prices.

In accordance with its commodity hedging policy, Gas Utility
may enter into natural gas call option and futures contracts to
reduce volatility in the cost of gas it purchases for its firm- resi-
dential, commmercial and industrial {"retail core-market”) cus-
tomers and Electric Utility may enter into electric swap agree-
ments in order to reduce the volatility in the cost of anticipated
electricity requirements. Because the cost of the natural gas
option and futures contracts and any associated losses or gains
will be included in Gas Utility's PGC recovery mechanism, as
these contracts are marked to fair value in accordance with
SFAS 133, any losses or gains are deferred for future recovery
from or refund to Gas Utility's ratepayers.

We are a party to a number of contracts that have elements
of-a derivative instrument. These contracts include, among ¢th- .
ers, binding purchase orders, contracts which provide for.the .

. purchase and delivery.of natural gas and electricity, and service

contracts that:require the counterparty to provide commaodity
storage, transportation or capacity service to meet our normal -
sales commitments. Although many of these contracts have the
requisite elements of-a derivative instrument, these contracts
are not subject to the accounting requirements of SFAS 133
because they provide for the delivery of products or services in
guantities that are expected to be used in the normal course of
operating our business or the value of the contract is directly
associated with the price or value of a service.

We enter into.interest rate protection agreements ("IRPAs")
designed to manage interest rate risk associated with planned

- issuances of fixed-rate long-term debt. We designate these

IRPAs as cash flow hedges. Gains or losses on IRPAs are
included in other comprehensive income. and are reclassified to
interest expense as the interest expense on the associated
debt issue aﬁects earnings.

Antargaz has entered into interest rate swap agreements to
fix the vanab%e interest rates on its. Senior Facilities term Ioan
through 2011, -

- During the years ended September 30; 2006, 2005 and 2004,
amounts recognized in earnings representing cash flow hedge
ineffectiveness were not material.

Gains and losses included in accumulated other comprehen-
sive income at September 30, 2006 relating to cash flow.hedges
will be rectassified into {1} cost of sales when the forecasted-
purchase of LPG, natural gas or electricity subject to the hedges
impacts net income and (2) interest expense when interest on’
anticipated issuances of fixed-rate long-term debt is reflected in
net income. Includad in accumulated other comprehensive
income at September 30, 2006 are net aftertax losses of
approximately $2.4 from IRPAs associated with forecasted
issuances of debt generally anticipated to occur during the next
several years and with settled IRPAs. The amount of this net loss
that is expected to be reclassified into net income during the
next twelve months is not materiai. Also included in accumulat-
ed other comprehensive income at September 30, 2006 are-(1}
net aftertax losses of approximately $25.0 principally associated
with future purchases of natural gas and propane generally antic-
ipated to occur during the next twelve months, (2} net aftertax
gains of approximately $3.0 associated with future electric sup-
ply purchases expected to occur in 2007 and (3) gains of $1.6
associated with forecasted U.S. dollardenominated purchases of
LPG generally anticipated to-occur during the next three years.
The amount of the gains that is expected o be reclassified into
net income during the next twelve months associated with the
U.S. dollardenominated purchases is not material. The actual
amount of gains or-losses on unsettled derivative instruments
that ultimately is reclassified into net income will depend upon
the value of such derivative contracts when settled. The fair
value of derivative instruments is in¢luded in other current
assets, other assets, other current liabilities and other noncur-
rent tiabilities in the Consofidated Balance Sheets.
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Note 17 continued

The primary currency for which the Company has exchange
rate risk is the éuro. The U.S. doltar value of our foreign-denomi-
nated assets and liabilities will fluctuate with changes in the

associated foreign currency exchange.rates. We use derivative - - -

instruments-to hedge portions of our net investments in foreign
subsidiaries. if a derivative is designated as a hedge of an
investment in a foreign subsidiary and quaiifies for hedge
accounting, any realized gains or losses remain in other com-
prehensive income until such foreign operations have been liqui-
dated. At September 30, 2006, a net aftertax loss of $0.6 is
included in accumulated other comprehensive income associat-
. ed with. settled net investment hedges. : -

The carrying amounts of financial instruments tncluded in-
current-assets and current liabilities (excluding unsettled deriva-
tive instruments and current maturities of long-term debt)
approximate their fair values because of their short-term nature.
The carrying-amounts and estimated fair values of our remain-
ing financial instruments (including unsettled derivative instru-
ments} at September 30 are as follows:

Carrying  Estimated
Amount  Fair Value
2006:
Natural gas futures and options contracts $ (6.0 $ (6.0
Electric supply swap 52 52
Propane swap and option contracts (26.4) (26.4)
Interest rate protection and swap agreements 14.4 14.4
Foreign currency swaps 24 24
Long-term debt 1,996.9 20068
2005 '
Natural gas futures and options contracts $ (1.9 $ (15
Electric supply swap 6.1 6.1
Propane swap and option contracts 50.8 508
Interest rate protection and swap agreements (6.2) (6.2)
Foreign currency swaps 15 15
long-termdebt ' " 156445 1,730.7

We estimate the fair value of long-term debt by using cur-
rent market prices and by-discounting future cash flows using
rates available for similar type debt: Fair values of derivative
instruments reflect the estimated amounts that we would,
receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting date
based upon quoted market prices of comparable contracts at
September 30, 2006 and 20065.

We have financial instruments such as short-term invest-
ments and trade accounts receivable, which could expose us to
concentrations of credit risk. We limit our credit risk from short-
term investments by investing only in investment-grade com-
mercial paper, money market mutual funds and securities guar-
anteed by the U.S. Government or its agencies. The credit risk
from trade accounts receivable-is limited because we have a
large customer base, which extends across many different U.S.
markets and several foreign countries. We attempt to minimize -
the credit risk associated with our derivative financial instru-
ments through the application of credit policies.
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Note 12 - Energy Services Accounts Recewahle
Securitization Facility .

UGI Energy Services, Inc. (“ESI")-has a $200 receivables pur-.
chase facility (“Receivables Facility”) with an .issuer.of recaiv-
ables-backed commercial paper expiring in April 2009, although -
the Receivables Facility may terminate prior to such date due to
the termination of commitments of the Receivables Facility's
back-up purchasers. Prior to September 2008, ESI’s Receivables
Facility was $150. In order to provide additional short-term lig-
uidity during the peak heating season due to increased energy
product costs, the maximum level of fundlng avallable at any
one time from this facility wasrt?‘empo‘ranl\'fr mcreased 10 5300&'&%
)

for the period from November 1, 2005 to April 24 2006 e

Under the Receivables Facility, ESI transfers, on an ongoing .
basis and without recourse, its trade accounts receivable to its
wholly owned, special purpose subsidiary, Energy Services
Funding Corparation (“ESFC”), which is consolidated for finan-
cial staterment purposes. ESFC, in turn, has soid, and subject to
certain conditions, may from time to time sell, an undivided
interest in the receivables t0 a commercial paper conduit of a
major bank. ESFC was created and has been structured to iso-
late its assets from creditors of ESI and its affiliates, including
UGI. This two-step transaction is accounted for as a sale of
receivables foilowing the provisions of SFAS No. 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and
Extinguishments of Liabilities” ES| continues to service, admin-
ister and collect trade receivables on behalf of the commercial
paper issuer and ESFC,

During 2006 and 2005, ESI sold trade receivables totaling
$1,306.0 and $‘l 253.8, respectively, to ESFC. During 2006 and
2005, ESFC sold an aggregate $859.5 and $475.5, respectively,
of undivided interests in its trade receivables to the commercial
paper conduit. At September 30, 2008, the.outstanding balance
of ESFC trade receivables was $24.1 which is net of $60.5 that
was sold to the commercial paper conduit and removed from
the balance sheet. At September 30, 2005, the outstanding bal-
ance of ESFC trade receivables was $77.8 which is net of $23.5
that was sold to the commercial paper conduit and removed
from the balance sheet. Losses on sales of receivables to the
commercial paper conduit that occurred during the years ended_
September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, which are included in
other income, net, were $3.3, $0.9 and $0.4, respectively.

In addition, a major bank has committed to issue up to $50
of standby letters of ¢redit, secured by cash or marketable
securities ("LC Facility”). Energy Services expects to fund the
collateral requirements with borrowings under its Receivables
Facility, The LC Facility expires April 2007
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Note 13 - Other Income, Net

Other income {loss), net, comprises the following: N

2006 2005 2004

Interest and interest-refated income $153 $63 $32
Utility non-tariff service income . 1.0 13 <20

- _Gain (loss} on sales of fixed assets . ) 34 0.1
Gain on sale of Energy Ventures 91 - -
Foreign currency hedge loss - - (9.1)
Finance charges 84 76 8.5
French bus:iness tax reversal - 19.9 -
QOther - i . ... 28 . 82 . 1.5
Total other income, nét $36.8 $46.7 $10.2_.

El

Note 1|4 AmenGas Partners Common
Unit lssuances '

Gains on sales of AmeriGas Partners Common Unit issuances
are determined in accordance with the guidance in SEC Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 61, "Accounting for Sales of Common
Stock by a Subsidiary” {(“SAB 51"}. Gains result when the pub-
lic offering price of the AmeriGas Partners Common Units
exceeds the associated carrying amount of our investment in
the Partnership on the date of sale. .

in September 2005, AmeriGas Partners sold 2,300,000
Common Units in an underwritten public offering at a public
offering price of $33.00 per unit. The net proceeds of the public
offering totaling $72.7 and the associated capital contributions
from the General Partner totaling $1.5 were contributed to
AmeriGas OLP and used to reduce indebtedness under its bank
credit agreement and for general partnership purposes.
Concurrent with this sale of Common Units, the Company
recorded a gain in the amount of $28.0 which is reflected in the
Company’s balance sheet as an increase in common stockhold-
ers’ equity and a corresponding decrease in minority. interesis
in AmeriGas Partners in accordance with the guidance in SAB
51. The gain had no effect on the Company’s net income or cash
flow. Total deferred income tax liabilities of $16.0 associated
with this gain with a corresponding decrease to stockholders' .
equity were recorded and reflected in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet at September 30, 2005.

On May 26, 2004, AmeriGas Partners'sold 2,000,000 | « .
Common Units in an underwritten public offering at a public
oftering price of $25.61 per unit. On June 10; 2004, the under-

“writers partially exercised their overallotment option in the

amount of 100,000 Common Units. The net proceeds of the
public offering totaling $51.2 and associated capital contribu-
tions from the General Partner totaling $1.0 were contributed to
AmeriGas OLP and used to reduce indebtedness under its bank
credit agreement and for general partnership purposes.
Concurrent with this sale of Common Units, the Company
recorded a gain in the amount of $12.2 which is reflected in the
Company's balance sheet as an increase in common stockhold-
ers’ equity. Deferred income tax liabilities of $6.6 associated
with this gain'with a corresponding decrease in common stock-
holders’ equity were recorded and reflected in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet at September 30, 2004. The gain had no effect
on the Company's net income or cash flow.

Note 15 - Investments in Equity Investees

Our principal investments accounted for using the equity
method and our approximate percentage ownership interest in
each at September 30, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Company 2006 2005
2LH (a) 500% . N/A
China Gas Partners 50.0% 50.0%
Energy Ventures [b) N/A 50.0%
Geovexin 44.9% 44 9%

{a) Flaga entered into this joint venture in February 2006 (see Note 2).

{b) Energy Services sold its 50% ownership interest in Energy Ventures in March 2006
{see Note 2)

(Loss) income from our equity investees was ${2.2) in 2006,
$(2.6).in 2005 and $11.3 in 2004. Income from our equity
investees in 2004 reflect our 19.5% ownership interest in
Antargaz.untit March 31, 2004 (see Note 2). Undistributed net
earnings of our equity investees.included in consolidated. .
retained earnings were not material at September 30, 2006,
2005 or 2004. Summarized financial information for our equity
investments are not presented because they are not material to
our Consolidated Balance Sheets or Consolidated Statements
of Income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{Millions of dollars and euros, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise}

Note 16 — Quarterly Data (unaudited)

The followmg unaudited quarterly data includes adjustments (con5|st|ng cnly of normal recurring adjustments) which we consider nec-
essary fora fair presentation unless otherwise indicated. Our quarterly results fluctuate because of the seasonal nature of our busi-
nesses. " i : . ) : .

Septemher 30,

December 31, March 31 June 30,

- 2005 2004{a) - 206{h) 2005 - 2008(c}) 2005(d) - 2006 2005
Revenues i $15779  $13624 $1.8455  $17877 $919.1 $9325 $8785  $806.1(e)
Operating income . $1602 § 1750 $ 2626 % 2877 $ 385 $376 " $ &4 $ 27
Income {loss} from equity investees % (06 3. (0N $ (08 §$ (06 s - 07 $ (1.0) $ (08
Net income (loss) - S -$ .55 % 782 $1040 § 1173 $187 $ 07 $ 40" $ (87
Earnings (loss) per share; - - - . . . Lo " i _ S I
Basic R -5 085 -$076 S 0% 5 1130 S0i8 - SO0 S0 S{0n-
Diluted . L $ 054  $074  $088 § 112 '$018 ° S001  -$(0.0a) ${0.08)

(a) Inciudes the effects of the fesolution of certain Antargaz business tax contingencies which increased operating income by $19.3 and net income by $14.9 or $0.14 per diluted share.

(b} Includes a gain on the sale of our 50% ownership interest in Energy Ventures which increased net income by $5.3 or $0.05 per diluted share and 2 loss on early extinguishment of
AmeriGas Fropane’s debt which decreased net income by $4.6 or $0.04 per diluted share.

{c} Includes the effects of changes in management’s estimate of taxes to be paid associated with planned repatriation of foreign earnings which increased net income by approximately

$5.0 or $0.05 per diluted share.

{d) Includes a loss on early extinguishment of AmeriGas Propane’s debt which increased net loss by $9.4 or $0.09 per diluted share,

{e) Bevenues reftect the elimination of fiscal year 2005 intercompany transactions of approximately $124.

Note 17 — Segment Information

We have organized our business units into six reportable seg- .
ments generally based upon products scld, geographic location
(domestic or international) and regulatory environment. Our
reportable segments are: (1) AmeriGas Propane; (2} an internation-
al LPG segment comprising Antargaz; (3) an international LPG
segment comprising Flaga and our international propane eguity
investment ("Other™); (4) Gas Utility; (8) Electric Utility; and (8}
Energy Services. We refer to both international segments collec-
tively as “International Propane.” ‘

AmeriGas Propane derives its revenues principally from the
sale of propane and related equipment and supplies to retail cus-
tomers from locations in 46 states.'Our International Propane seg-
ments’ revenues are derived principally from the distribution of
LPG to retail custorners in France and Austria. Gas. Utility's rev--
enues are derived principally from the sale and distribution of natu-
ral gas to customers in eastern Pennsylvania. Electric Utility
derives its revenues principally from the distribution of electricity
in two northeastern Pennsylvania counties. Energy Services rev-
enues are derived from the sale of natural gas and, tc a lesser
extent, LPG, electricity and fuel oil to customers located primarily
in the eastern region of the United States.
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The accounting policies of our reportable segments are the
same as those described in'Note 1. We evaluate AmeriGas
Propane’s performance principally based upon the Partnership's
earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and
amortization ("Partnership EBITDA"). Although we use Partnership
EBITDA to evaluate AmeriGas Propane’s profitability, it should not
be considered as an alternative to net income (as an indicator of
operating performance) or as an alternative to cash flow {as a
measure of liquidity or ability to service debt obligations) and is
not a measure of performance or financial condition under
accounting pnnmples generally accepted in the United States of
America. The Company's definition of Partnership EBITDA may be
different from that used by other companies. We evaluate the per-
forrmance of our International Propane, Gas Utility, Electric Utility
and Energy Services segments principally based upon their
income {loss) before income taxes.

No single customer represents more than ten percent of our
consolidated revenues. In addition, all of our reportable seg-
ments’ revenues, other than those of our International Propane
segments, are derived from sources within the United States,
and all of our reportable segments’ long-lived assets, other than
those of our International Propane segments, are located in the
United States.
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Financial information by reportable business segment follows:

Reportable Segments

International Prapane
. AmeriGas Gas Electric Energy Intenational  Corporate &
i Total  Eliminations Propane Utility Utitity Services Antargaz Other {b) Other {c)
Revenues $5221.0 $196.14d) $2,1193 § 7240 $ 980 $1.4143 $ 8819 $636- $ 760
Cost of sales $36579 $152.30d)  $1,3438 $ 5229 § 510 $1.3282 $ 4784 § 388 § 41
Operating income $ 4677 $§ - 8 1841 § 842 $207 § 531§ 154 $ 39 $ 63
income (loss) from equity investees (2.2) - - - - - {1.6) {0.6) -
Loss on extinguishments of debt {185} - 174 - - - 1.4 - -
! Interest expense - - - iz "~ . - {74.1) {218) (25 - {231 A1 pa . .
5, Minority interests {48.7) 04 7 513 - - . 30 T - - - —
" Income before income taxes $ 247 . 804 § 416 $ 624 _ $182 % 31§ @3 § 167  § 53
Depreciiation and amortization $ 1487 $ - § 725 $ 233 $ 33 $ 67 $ B2 _ § .38 $ 08
Partnership EBITDA (a) $ 2379 :
Total assets $5,0805 f3407 316272 $1,5043 $105.3 $ 2385 $1,4068 $1834 $355.7
Capital expenditures $ 1917 $ - & 07 $ 492 $ 90 $ 70 $ 479 $ 76 $ 03
Investments in equity investees $ 582 $§ - 3 - § - £ - $ - $ - $582 I -
Goodwill $14182 $ 4o  $ 6191 $ 1829 § - $ 1B $ 5607 § 409 $ 68
2005
Revenues $48887 $124.14d} $1,9633 § 5851 $ 96.1 $1,3550 § 8699 $ 740 $ 694
Cost of sales $3.306.0 $12004d) $1,2200 $ 3901 $ 478 $1.281.4 § 4015 $ 426 $ 426
Operating income $ 5030 $ - 8§88 $ 818 3216 $§ 375 8 1883) § 55 § 04
Income {loss) fram equity investees 26) - - - - - (2.5} (0.1} -
Loss on extinguishments of debt {33.6) - (336) - - - - - -
Interest expense (130.2} - {79.8) {16.6) {(1.7) - {28.6) (29} (0.6)
Mingrity interests :. (29.9) 39 (33.1) . - - - {07) - -
Income before income taxes $ 3067 $ 33 § N6 $ 650 $193 $ 375  § 15 3 25 $.102
Depreciation and amortization $ 1464 § - $ 737 £ 207 $ 31 $ 57 $ 376 $ 49 $ 07
Partnership EBITDA {a) $ 2159 : :
Total assets $45715 $3481)  $16729 $ 8036 $ 998 $ 296 $1.4048 $1524 $490.0
Capital expenditures $ 1584 $ - § 626 § 388 $ 75 § 62 § 385 § 35 $ 13
* Investments in equity investees $ 128 £t - 3 - $ - $ - § 85 $ 1B g 27 P -
Goodwili $1.231.2 $ {40) § 6182 $ - $ - § 138 § 5314 $675 $ 63
2004 ]
Revenues $37847 £ - $1.775.8 $ 5604 $ 897 $ 96712 $ 2708 $ 626 $ 581
Cost of sales $2551.0 5§ - $1.0292 § 36849 § 433 $ 9122 $ 1301 § 320 $ 353
Operating income $§ 3313 $ - § 1760 $ 80 $ 208 § A1 $ 151 $ 54 $ 27
Income {loss) from equity investees 1.3 - 07 - - - 108 {0.2) -
Interest expense (119.1} - 83.1) (15.9) 2.0 - (14.0 {36) (05
Mingrity interests {47.5) - 47.7) - - - 01 01 -
Income before income taxes $ 1760 $ - § 49 $ 642 $ 189 $ 31 £ 120 § 17 $ 22
Depreciation and amartization $ 1323 $ - § 807 8§ 195 $30 § 40 & 185 $ 55 $ 1
Partnership EBITDA (a) ) $ 2559
Total assets $42426 ${3221)  $15679 $ 7655 $897 5% 1828 $1.3523 $196.2 '$450.3
Capital expenditures § 1337 £ - % 617 $ 3Bs $ 53 $ 29 $ 236 $ 40 $ 07
[nvestments in equity investees $ 200 $ - % 35 8 - $ - § 96 § 41 $ 28 8§ -
Goodwill $1,245.9 5§ - $ 6082 $ - P - $ 28 $ 5616 $ 68.2 $ 51
{a) The foltowing table provides a reconciliation of Partnership EBITDA to AmeriGas {b} International Other principally comprises Flaga, its joint-venture business, ZLH, and our
Propane operating income: joint-venture business in China. .
Year ended September 30, 2006 2005 2004 (c} Corporate & Other results of operations principally comprise UG Enterprises’
Partnership EBITDA {i} $737.9 $215.9 $255.9 HVAC/R operations, net expenses of UGI's captive general liability insurance compa-
Depreciation and amartization {ii) 725 {736) [80.6) ny and UGI Corporation’s unallocated corporate and general expenses, and interest
Minerity interests {iii) 16 13 14 income. Corporate & Other assets principally comiprise cash and short-term invest-
Income {loss} from equity investees - - 0.7 ments and an intercompany loan. The intercompany interest asseciated with the
Intercompany gain on sale of Atlantic Energy - 9.1} - intercompany loan is eliminated in the segment presentation,
Loss on extinguishments of debt 17.1 336 = {d) Represents the elimination of intersegment transactions primaril\'(assnc[a'ted with
(Operating income $184.1 $168.1 $176.0 Energy Services' revenues from sales to Gas Utility and AmeriGas Propane totaling

{il Includes $9.1 gain on the sale of Atlantic Energy to Energy Services during Fiscal 2005.

Sea Nota 2.

{1 Excludes Genera! Partner depreciation and amortization of $0.1 in both 2005 and 2004
(iii) Principally represents the General Partner's 1.01% interest in AmeriGas OLP

$101.0 and $37.3 in 2006, respectively, and $89.2 and $25.9 in 2005, respactively.

{e

Internaticnal Propane-Antargaz’ operating income and income before income taxes

for Fiscal 2005 include $18.8 associated with the resolution of certain business tax
contingencies (see Note 10).
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Financial Statistics (Unaudited)
{Millions of dollars, except per share amounts and where indicated otherwise).
Year Ended September 30,
2006 2005 2004
Income Statement Data _ .
AmeriGas Propane revenues- . o $2,19.3 $1,963.3 $1,775.9
Utilities revenues ’ . ' 822.0 681.2 650.1
International Propane revenues 945.5 9439 333.4
Energy Services and other revenues 1,334.2 1,300.3 1,025.3
+Total revenues . $5,221.0 $4,888.7 $£3,784.7
Incorne from continuing operations $ 176.2 $ 1875 S Ms
Net income (loss} _ _ o . $ 1762 $ 1876  , & M6
Balance Sheet Data ' :
Capitalization at period end: - '
Bank loans - AmeriGas Propane $ - $ - 3 -
Total long-term debt - AmeriGas Propane 933.7 913.5 901.4
Bank foans-UGI Utilities 216.0 81.2 60.9

. Total long-term debt - UGI Utilities ) 512.0 2370 Lo 2172
Total long-term debt - Antargaz ‘ ' v " 4835 4311 474.5
Other bank loans and long-term debt ) . 771 79.1 94.2

Total debt ] ] 2,222.3 1,741.9 1,748.2
Minority interests, principally in AmeriGas Partners N 1395 206.3 178.4
UGI Utilities preferred shares subject to mandatory redemption - - . 20.0
Common stockholders’ equity : 1,099.6 9976 834.1i

Total capitalization . $3.4614 $2,9458 $2,780.7

Total assets . $5,080.5 $45715 $4,242 6
Common Stock Data L :
Shares outstanding - end of year (millions) 105.5 104.8 102.4
Average shares outstanding {miflions} 105.5 103.9 94.6
Return on average common equity .. . . S : 16.8% 20.5% 16.7%
Per common share: - - : ' ' ) -
Earnings from continuing operations - diluted $ 165 $ 177 $ 115
Net earnings - diluted $ 165 5§ 177 $§ 115
Book value - end of year $ 1042 $ 9582 $ "8.15
Dividends declared i _ $ 069 $ 065 $ 060
Annual dividend rate - end of year , . $ on $ 0868 $ 063
Dividend yield - end of year 1 2.9% 2.4% 3.4%
Price range:

- High $ 2864 $ 2098 $ 18.68
Low $ 20.21 $ 18.45 $ 14.43
Close $ 2445 $ 28.15 $ 1863

Other Data .
Invesiments and acquisitions, net : $ 5904 $ 333 $ 3086
Capital expenditures : $ 1917 § 1584 ’ § 1337

{a} Includes cumulative efféct of accounting changes of $4.5 million or $0.06 per share associated with (1) the Partnership's changes in accounting for
tank fee revenue and tank installation cost and (2) the adoption of SFAS 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”

+
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! Year Ended September 30,
. 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 " 1998 1997
. $1,6284 $ 1,3079 $1,418.4 $1,120.1 '$ 8725 '$ 9144 -$1,0778
| 628.7 488.0 . 582.7 436.9 4206 4223 461.2
' 545 46.7 50.9 50.5 - .- .-
7145 - 3711 416.1 154.2 90.5 103.0 103.0
| $3,026.1 $2,213.7 $2,468.1 $1,761.7 $1,383.6 $1,439.7 $1,642.0
$ 989 § 755 $ 520 § 447 § 5570 $ 403 § 521
$ 989 $ 755 $ 565 $ 447 $ 557 $ 403 $ 521
$ - $ 100 $ - $ 300 $ 220 $ 100 $ 280
. 9273 945.8 1,006.9 8572 744.7 709.0 691.1
407 372 578 100.4 874 68.4 670
2173 " 2484 - 208.4 1729 180.0 1872 169.3
918 " 90.1 90.9 89.8 103.2 8.2 8.6
1,280.1 } 1,3315 1,363.0 1,250.3 1,1373 982.8 964.0
134.6 1 276.0 246.2 1771 209.9 2365 266.5
., 2001 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 35.2
4987 " 313.8 251.0 2420 2451 363.4 376.1
$1.9334 | $1,9413 $1,880.2 $1,689.4 $1,612.3 $1,602.7 - $1,641.8
- $2,795.2 | $2,6245 $2,557.3 $2,279.1 $2,136.4 $2,070.9 $2,151.7
.~ 854 83.2 81.8 81.0 818 98.4 98.6
! gaa 826 815 816 95.8 99.0 99.2
24.3% ° 267% 22.9% 18.4% 18.3% 10.9% L 138%
$ 114 $ 090 $ 064 $ 055 $  0.58(b) $ 041 s 053
$ 114 $ 090 $ 0.69@) $ 055 $ 0.58(b) $ 041 $ 053
$ 584 $ 377 $ 307 $ 299 $ 300 $ 370 $ 382
$ 057 $ 054 $ 053 $ 051 $ 049 $ 0.9 $ 048
$ 057 $ 0.55 $ 054 $ 052 $ 050 $ 049 $ 048
3.9% 4.5% : 5.9% 6.4% 6.5% 6.3% 5.2%
$ 1753 $ 12.26 $ 9.826 $ 8.104 $ 8583 $10.041 $ 9.333
$ 1164 $ 856 $ 7125 $ 6.062 $ 5.00 $ 6.833 $ 6.958
$ 14.47 $ 1212 $ 9.033 $ 8.083 $ 775 $ 7708 $ 9.208
‘g 903" $ 10 $ 2415 $ 653 $ 825 '$ 101 $ .18
: $ 1014 $ 947 $ 793 $ . 710 $ 737, $ 692 $ 688
{b) Includes net aftertax merger termination fee income from Unisource Worldwide, Inc. net, of $12.9 million or $0.14 per share.
“Weather in International Propane Area mmargazl e -. Weather in Gas Unllthrea 5 ‘. e e
- %\famm:lhnmNnmul oo . - -T_ 3 ,“‘I"-" %VananunlmmNnmml Ty . -
. - o
20| 1o DR
L2000 000 - * -
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Operating Statistics

Year Ended September 30,

2006 2005 2004
AmeriGas Propane
Retail sales - millions of gallons - . - )
ReSIdentia1 e o 378.6 4223 443.2
= Commerdial/fdustrial 343.2 © 3528 354.3
- Motor fue! 1478 142.0 128.7
Agricultural 52.0 60.5 721
Transport 53.6 572 60.8
Total 975.2 .1,034.9 1,059.1
Wholesale sales - miliions of gallons 119.7 148.7 225.0
Total customers - January 1 (thousands) 1,324 1,31 1,324
Retail distribution locations 608 650 663
Degree days - percent of normal - 90% 93% 95%
Number of employees: . 5,895 5,993 6.077
Property, plant and equipment, net (mﬂl:ons) $ 5806 3 584.5 $ 592.7
Intemational Propane '
Sales volume - millions of gallons
-Antargaz 315.2 338.4 336.4
Flaga (including ZLH} 65.0 372 347
Total customers (thousands)
Antargaz 210 216 218
Flaga (including ZtLH) 80 21 21
Degree days - percent of normal
Antargaz 96% 96% 95%
Fiaga {including ZLH} 96% 95% 98%
Number of employees
- Antargaz 1,133 7,194 1,270
Flaga {including ZLH) 700 350 359
Gas Utility {a)
System throughput - mitlions of cubic feet
Residential - firm 19,330 20,674 20,833
Commercial - firm 11,361 11,692 11,968
Industrial - firm 1,347 1,343 1,355
Transportation - firm + 23,747 - 23,354 23,727
Transportation - interruptible 26,292 26,617 23,669
Retail - interruptible 561 1,029 653
Total ' ) 82,638 84,709 82,205
Total customers {thousands) 473 307 30
Miles of gas main 7,700 - 508 4900
Degree days - percent of normal 91% 98% 97 %
Number of employees 1,336 , 912 941
Property, plant-and equipment, net (millions} $ 974.5 3 584.8 % 565.9
Electric Utility ’
Distribution system sales - thousands
of kilowatt hours
Residential 530,129 b43,167 517189
Commercial 348,059 354,396 348,603
Industrial and other 126,854 124,248 118,153
Total 1,005,042 1,021,811 - 983,945
Total customers {thousands) 62 62 62
Miles of line 2,150 2,141 2,141
Number of employees 97 - 97 105
Property, plant and equipment, net (millions} $ 76.3 % 65.4

% 705

{a) Includes data of UGI Penn Natural Gas, [nc. from August 24, 2006.
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Year Ended September 30,

i 2003- 2002 . 2001 2000 1999 1998 © 7 1997
A _ A o :
14458 .388.2 . . 3348 3083 . 3183 - 3175 - 330.4
| 3678 3516 . 306.6 2843 285.3 2873 2978
1 120.4- 119.0 Nn44 116.7 1124 106.0 106.2
78.1 74.0 65.2 61.9 672 745 73.0
62.8 54.7 46.0 465 46.3 50.4 58.2
1,074.9 9875 866.8 8177 829.5 835.7 865.6
' 200.8 195.3 2468 , 2115 1443 154.7 160.4
. 1,285 . 1,318 990 | 993 988 981 990
. 640 646 750 - 561 579 617 616
100%: 90% 103% 86% 90% 91% 99%
6,165 | 6,315 . - 6,306 4,874 .+ 502 - - 5107 -~ 513
$ 5950 | $ 6122 $ 6286 $ 4376 . 4377 $ 4454 $ 4493
i ' -
. 3415 3561 3353 ' - - _ - _ -
¢ 345 ) 36.7 367 - a0 . 0 - - . -
I 220 222 LA NPT
22 22 22 22 - - -
89% 91 % 87% - — - —
96% 90% 88% 96% - - -
1,268 1,368 1,454 - - - -
321 350 350 - - - -
22,049 16,848 20,197 18,447 17442 16,612 18,31
112,427 10,114 12,292 10,894 10,506 10,247 11,898
11,481 . 1,282 . 1,687 1,565 1,759 3,099 4,824
22,704 : 18,031 18,989 20,796 21,175 20,366 21,090
24,694 23,748 23,508 27167 24,308 23,243 22,389
490 475 656 851 913 1,345 1,727
83,845 70,498 : 77329 - 79,720 76,103 74,912 80,239
Y202 : 286 : 277 272 : 265 - 258 252
4,801 4,721 4,640 4,549 4,446 4,360 4,229
107% 83% 102% 0% 87% 84% 95%
936 922 946 932 246 987 1,028
$ 5481 $ 5276 $ 5141 $ 504.0 $ 4912 $ 4793 $ 466.0
517192 482,921 491,652 465,006 469,061 455,575 464,233
345,854 333,248 334,367 320,478 316,141 305,138 292,956
116,957 117373 119,445 121,710 115,199 115,694 111,278
980,003 933,542 945,464 907,194 900,401 876,407 868,467
.82 62 61 61 61 61 61
2,131 2,122 2,112 2,092 2,086 2,083 2,087
173 175 180 188 192 194 198

$ 1174 3 65.5 § 647 $ 66.0 $ 655 $ 646 $ 63.4
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Shareholder Information

Annual Meeting

The Annual Maeeting of Sharehoiders will be held at 10:00 a.m.
on Tuesday, February 27 2007 in Ballrooms A and B of the

Desmond Hotel and Conference Center, One Liberty Boulevard,
Malvern, Pennsylvania.

Common Stock Data

The Company's Common Stock is traded on the New York
and Philadelphia stock exchanges under the symbaol UG,
mShareholders of-record-numbered 8,910 on September 30, 2006

and common shares outstanding totaled 105,454,362.

Dividends

Dividends on UGl's Common Stock have been patd without
interruption since 1885. During the 2006 fiscal year, quarterly
dividends were paid on the first days of October, January, Apiil

and July.

Market Price of Common Stock and Dividends Paid

2006 Fiscal Year High Low  Dividends
1st Quarter $28.64 $20.1 $.16875
2ndl Quarter 2285 2060 .16875
3rd Quarter 24.75 20.93 16875
4th Quarter 25.73 23.74 17625
2005 Fiscal Year High low  Dividends
1st Quarter : $20.700 $18.450 $.15625
2nd Quarter 23605 19.205 15625
3rd Quarter 27950 - 21925 15625 -

| 4th Quarter 29.980 24250 16875

Investor Services

Transfer Agent and Registrar

Shareholder communications regarding transfer of shares ‘book-
entry shares, lost certificates, lost dividend checks or changes
of address should be directed to:

Mellon Investor Services LLC
Newport Office Center VI

480 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, NJ 07510
1-800-850-1774

Sharehoiders can also view real-time account information and
request transfer agent services online at the Mellon Investor
Services website: www.melloninvestor.com

Mellon Investor Services can be accessed through
telecommunications devices for the hearing impaired by calling
1-800-231-5469.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

. UGI's plan enables all shargholders to automatically purchase

shares of UGl Common Stock by reinvesting UGI Common
Stock dividends. All such purchases are without fees or com-
missions. The Plan also permits participants to maké monthly
cash purchases of Common Stock, up to $3,000 quarterly, with
no brokers’ fees or commissions. For information about the
Plan, write or call: )

Mellon Investor Services LLC
Investment Services

RO. Box 3338 | R ——
South Hackensack, NJ 07606-1938 B &
1-800-850-1774

Plan information is alsc available on the Mellon investor
Services website: www.melloninvestor.com

Investor Relations

Securities analysts, portfolio managers and other members of
the professional investment community should direct inquiries
about the Company to:

Robert W. Krick, Vice President and Treasurer

UGI Corporation

PO. Box 858

Valley Forge, PA 19482

1-610-337-1000 ot

News, Eamnings, Financial Reports and
Governance Documents
UGI has a toll-free, 24-hour, corporate news and investor infor-
mation service. By calling 1-800-UGI-8453, you can hear UGH
news on dividends, earnings and other matters and access
other shareholder services. You-can also request copies of
news releases, annual reports, annual reports on Form 10-K
and guarterly reports on Form'10-Q - all without charge.
Commprehensive news, webcast events, governance -docu-
ments and other information-about UGI and AmeriGas Partners,
L.P are also available via the Internet at: www.ugicorp.com.
You can also request all reports and governance documents,
including the Company’s Codes of Ethics and Principles of
Corporate Governance free of charge, by writing to Robert W.

- Krick, Vice President and Treasurer, UGI Corporation, at the

address above.

Corporate Governance

The Company's last annual meating was held on Febmar\;r 22,
2006. The Company submitted the certification required by Section
303A.12(a) of the New York Stock Exchange corporate governance
rules on March 8, 2006. The Company submitted the certification
required hy Section 86712(a) of the Philadelphia Stock Exchange
corporate governance rules on March 8, 2006. In addition, the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
each filed the certification required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act as an exhibit to the Company's Annua! Report on Form
10-K for the year ended September 30, 2006. '
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Board of Directors

Lon R. Greenberg

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Richard C. Gozon

Retired, former Exacutive Vice President, Weyerhaguser
Company (integrated forest products)

Marvin 0. Schlanger
Chairmen of Covalence Specialty Materials Carp.
[producer of plastics and adhesives productsk; Principal,
Cherry Hill Chemical investments, LL.C. Imanagement
and capital services)

John L. Walsh
President and Chief Operating Cfficer

Ernest E. Jones

President and Chief Executive Officer, Philadelphia
Workforce Development Corporation (employment and
HENT)

James W. Stratton
Chairman and Chief Executive Gfficer, Stratton Holding
Company {investment adviser)

Stephen D. Ban
Director, Technology Transfer Division of the Argonne
National Laboratory [research and development)

Anne Pol
Retired, former President and Chief Operating Officer,

Trex Enterprises Corparation {high technology research
and development)

Roger B. Vincent
President, Springwell Corparation {corporate financial
adviser)

Dfficers

UGl Corporation

Lon R. Greenberg
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

John L. Walsh
President and
Chief Operating Officer

Anthony J. Mendicino
Sr. Vice President —
Finance and Chief
Financial Officer

Michael J. Cuzzolina
Vice President -
Accounting and
Financial Contral and
Chief Risk Officer

Bradley C. Hall
Vice President — New Business
Development

Robert H. Knauss
Vice President and
General Counge}

Robert W. Krick
Vice President and Treasurer

Thomas A. Barry
General Auditor

Margaret M. Calabrese
Asscciate Gengral Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

AmeriGas Propane, Inc.

UGI HVAC Enterprises, Inc.

Eugene V. N. Bissell

President and Chief Executive Officer

UGI Ltilities, Inc.

Roben L. Pistar
Vice President

Antargaz

David W. Trego

President and Chief Executive Officer

UGI Enterprises, Inc.

Frangois Varagne
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Flaga GmbH

Bradley C. Hall
President

Josef Weinzierl
Managing Director

@ Printed on recycled paper.
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